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| May 2, 2006
Dear Stockholder | ‘

Herein we present our report for the ﬁrst full year in which CDT was a public company. In 2005 we were able to
increase revenues strongly to $18.1 mllhon and finished the year with $31.3 million of cash, mainly as a result of
a PIPE offering in December 2005 Wthh raised $17.5 million of gross proceeds. Your company is therefore in
strong financial condition as ant1c1patedw cash outflow for 2006 means that CDT had over two years of cash in
hand at end-2005. ]‘

Sumation™—the joint venture with Sumrtomo Chemical to develop, manufacture and sell P-OLED materials
was formed in September 2005 and alregdy the synergistic benefits of combining the technical resources of CDT
and Sumitomo are coming through strorigly with advances in lifetimes in red, green and blue emitters, as well as
large efficiency gains especially in red. §unutomo took over manufacturing from Dow Chemical at the beginning
of 2006 and reports from customers on E“luahty and consistency of product are excellent.
As expected, CDT sold its remaining 50  per cent stake in Litrex Corp., developer and assembler of advanced
inkjet printers for P-OLED and other apphcatrons to Ulvac of Japan. Cash received in this transaction was
$9.7 million and overall CDT recorded 2‘1 gain of $15.9 million from its investment in Litrex. Concurrently with
the change in ownership, CDT signed an agreement with Litrex under which it distributes Litrex printers for
P-OLED applications. Since taking 100 percent ownership, Ulvac has focused development at Litrex on the
production of Generation 5 (1000mm x 1200mm) and Generation 6 (1500mm x 1800mm) printers for color filter
printing in LCD lines. This is a very posmve development since the requirement for accuracy for this application
is the same as that required to print full- color P-OLED displays. In other words, printer advances and economics -
are now being driven by the established LCD industry and inkjet printing as a production tool is becoming
accepted. CDT sold nine printers in 2005 all in conjunction with the sale of printing process know-how, the
major development activity of CDT’s Technology Development Centre. This involves printer improvements in
conjunction with Litrex, formulation of P-OLED inks and refinement of device structures into which the
P-OLED inks are incorporated. All of thls know-how represents revenue opportunity as well as convincing the
display industry that printing of P- OLEDs is a viable production method for display manufacture. CDT printed
its first video-capable, full color P- OLED displays for a major Asian manufacturer using such in-house
developed technology. "

|

A disappointment in 2005 was the wrthcﬂawa] of Philips from P-OLED manufacture. This was only a component
of a major strategic shift by Philips out of advanced display manufacture as at the same time they withdrew from
active involvement in bi-stable displays (e -paper applications) and LCOS (rear-projection TV). However, Osram
has gained momentum in the sale of P- OLED displays in higher margin market segments such as Bluetooth-
enabled MP-3 players, medical 1nstrumeptat10n and handheld test instruments. MED, another licensee, has
started delivering P-OLED micro displays for use in night-scopes to be sold to the consumer market. We expect
other licensees to introduce products in 2007,




The most encouraging development of 2005 was the serious engagement of several Tier 1 display makers with
CDT’s technology. As described in the introduction to last year’s 10-K, the advent of streaming video feed to
mobile devices is creating a requirement for display screen image quality which particularly favours OLED—and
P-OLED specifically—due to its inherent scaleability.

As described last year, the imperative to reduce substantially the unit cost for larger display screens has brought
increased interest and development impetus from LCD manufacturers: the potential is for 50 percent cost
reduction in moving from LCD to P-OLED. Again the scaleability of P-OLED manufacture compared with other

OLED technology is a competitive edge.

Our development focus contmues to be on:

a) Developing P-OLEDs Wthh will satisfy the brightness and lifetime requirements of la.rge (TV)
: screens; ,

b) Large format, high accuracy inkjet printers capable of printing P-OLEDs for small screens with high
image resolution; and

c) - Printing process know-how.
We are making large strides in all these objectives.
Finally as a reminder that displays are only one application for P-OLEDs, Seiko Epson recently announced it had
successfully developed OLED (in fact P-OLED) to replace the laser and associated optics for projecting an image
to be copied onto paper. Epson stated the advantages of this technology switch ~ they include substantial ‘

reductions in weight and size of the printer—and potentially the ability to create higher resolution copies.

CDT has advanced cons1derably in 20035. It still has challenging goals to meet but we have a very strong team
and first-class partners. We remain confident that we will succeed! :

Yours smcerely

David Fyfe
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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| CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

CONCERNfNG FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
l
This Annual Report on Form 10- K including the information incorporated by reference contains some

“forward-looking statements” as deﬁned in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, This Annual
Report on Form 10-K also contains mf?rmatlon relating to us that is based on the beliefs of our management, as
well as assumptions made by, and the information currently available to, our management. Among other things,

these statements include, but are not lin“iited to, the statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K regarding:

* the outcomes of our ongoing and future research and development activities, and those of our licensees,
related to our polymer organic light emitting diode, or P-OLED, technology referred to below;

* the potential commercial applii;:ations of our P-OLED technology, and of OLED products in general;

* our ability to form and continu“:e joint ventures and other strategic relationships with manufacturers of
P-OLED materials and display?;

* successful commercialization df products including our P-OLED technology by our licensees;

* the willingness of these manufacturers and licensees to continue to develop, manufacture and sell
commercial products mtegratmg our technology;

» future demand for products usmg our P-OLED technology;

* the comparative advantages and disadvantages of our technology versus competing technologies
currently on the market; “

|

+ the nature and potential advantages of any competing technologies that may be developed in the future;
* our ability to compete against thjrd parties with resources greater than ours;

¢ our ability to maintain and i unprove our competitive position following the expiration of our
fundamental patents; ‘;
» the adequacy of protection afforded to us by the patents that we own or license and the cost to us of

enforcing that protection; ‘»l

* our ability to obtain, expand and maintain patent protection in the future and to protect our unpatentable
intellectual property; 3\\
|

+ the payments that we expect to receive in the future under our existing contracts and the terms that we
are able to enter into with new hcensees of our technology;

+ exposure of our international operatmns and those of our licensees to significant risks;
» our future capital requirements and our ability to obtain additional financing when needed; and

|

our future P-OLED technology licensing and other revenues and results of operations.

In addition, when used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the documents incorporated by
reference, the words “estimate”, “pro;ect” “believe”, “expect”, “intend”, “anticipate”, “seek”, “will”, “may” and
“plan” and similar expressions involving potenhal future developments are intended to identify forward-looking
statements. All of these forward-looking gtatements reflect our cwrrent views with respect to future events and are
subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated by

the statements, including those risks discul\ssed in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of
the date of this Annual Report on Form 10 K or, in the case of information incorporated by reference herein, the
date we file such information with the SEC as the case may be. We undertake no obligation to update beyond
that required by law any forward-looking staternents whether as a result of new information, future events or
otherwise. \




In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the terms “our company”, “CDT”, “we”, “us” and “our” refer to
Cambridge Display Technology, Inc. and its subsidiaries, unless the context otherwise requires.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains references to a number of trademarks that are registered
trademarks of ours or our affiliates or trademarks for which we or our affiliates have pending applications or
common law rights. These include P-OLED, CDT, Cambridge Display Technology and Sumation.




-~ PARTI

ITEM 1. BUSINESS |

Company Overview ' |

CDT is a'pioneer in the development of Polymer Organic Light Emitting Diodes, or P-OLEDs, and their use
in next-generation flat panel displays and: other applications. We believe we hold the most extensive and
significant intellectual property, or IP, pohfoho for P-OLED materials and-devices, including the fundamental
patents for the use of polymers in electrolummescent devices. P-OLEDs are part of the family of Organic Light
Emitting Diodes, or OLEDs, which are m‘atnxes of organic diodes that emit light when an electric current flows.
OLED:s are thin, lightweight and power efﬁc1ent devices used in flat panel displays, or FPDs, and other
applications. P-OLEDs offer an enhanced visual experience compared with alternative FPD technologies, such as

liquid crystal displays, or LCD. ('

Our P-OLED technology has the potentlal to drive OLED adoption by significantly lowering the cost of
producing OLED displays. P-OLED materials are solution processable, which enables them to be deposited on
panels using processes such as high pI'CCl%IOIl ink jet printing.

- |
|

Our business strategy is to capltahze“on our IP position to generate upfront license fees and recurring
royalty payments from sales by third parties of devices using our IP. In addition, we will receive royalties from
suppliers of red, green, blue and other P-OLED materials as well as certain display driver chips. We are targeting .
leading display manufacturers as potentxal licensees of our P-OLED technology and, in support of this prunary
objective, we prov1de these display manufacturers and others with a range of paid-for products and services
relating to technology development and l:ransfer including ink jet printers and polymer inks. We have already
licensed our technology to leading 1ntemat10nal companies such as Dai Nippon Printing, Delta Optoelectronics,
DuPont Displays, OSRAM Opto Semlconductors and Seiko Epson for display manufacture. Several products that
incorporate our licensed P-OLED technolﬁ)gy in their small-area displays have been introduced into the
commercial marketplace as monochrome displays. A number of our licensees and development partners have
demonstrated larger, full-color, video- capable displays using P-OLED technology and have announced intentions
to commercialize these and other product§ '

In addition to our licensing business, \lwe have formed a joint venture company with Sumitomo Chemical
Company Limited, or Sumitomo Chemicawl to develop, manufacture and sell polymer OLED materials. This
company, which is called Sumation Company Limited, or Sumation, has its head office in Tokyo and carries out

research and development through research teams in Japan and the United Kingdom.

The Flat Panel Display Market ‘)

The FPD industry continues to expenence strong growth. Accordmg to DisplaySearch, an independent
market research firm tracking the FPD mdustry the worldwide FPD market is expected to grow from $61.7
billion in 2004 to $91.4 billion in 2008, representing a compounded annual growth rate of approximately 10%.

|

. . I
This revenue growth has been attributed to a number of factors:

*  Proliferation of Mobile Consumér Electronic Devices. Consumers throughout the world are rapidly
adopting mobile consumer electromcs devices such as mobile phones, personal digital assistants or
PDAs, MP3 players, portable DVP players, mobile gaming devices and digital still and movie cameras.
Early mobile devices were equipped with simple, small monochrome displays with limited
functionality. As the cost of colo :dlsplays decreased and quality improved, consumers rapidly adopted
mobile devices with color displays. This trend towards greater display functionality in mobile devices
continues with the introduction 01" new phones with dual displays, embedded cameras and television
tuner video functionality. ' : o




*  Replacement of Older Technology by FPDs.  Although FPDs were initially adopted in the mobile
consumer electronics market and in notebook computers, they have largely displaced cathode ray tube
displays in desktop computer monitors, and are rapidly doing the same in televisions. This transition is
being driven by consumer preferences for appliances that are thinner and more lightweight, particularly
in larger display sizes. According to DisplaySearch, revenues from the sale of FPD televisions exceeded:

- the revenues from the sale of cathode ray tube versions for the first time in 2005. There is strong
competition between LCD, plasma and rear-projection technologies to replace cathode ray tube
technology. This competition has important implications for P-OLED adoption as manufactured cost is
critical to both the rate of replacement and to the market shares of the replacement technologles and
P-OLED holds important potential advantages in manufactured cost.

e Other Applications. In addition to consumer electronics devices, FPDs are increasingly being used in
other applications such as automotive GPS systems, advertising displays, medical instrumentation
panels and household appliances.

LCD: Today’s Dominant FPD Technology

LCD displays, in total, accounted for approximately 87% of total FPD sales in 2005 according to
DisplaySearch.

Driven by the strong demand for LCDs, particularly for LCD televisions, LCD panel manufacturers are
investing in fabrication facilities that enable significantly larger sheets of glass to be processed, thereby reducing
unit costs and allowing availability of large-sized television panels. This industry trend favors large, established
panel rﬁanufacturers who can afford the approximately $1 billion required to construct, equip, test and run a
Gen-5 facility which processes substrates, of approximately 39 inches by 43 inches, or the at least $2 billion
capital investment required for a more advanced Gen-6 or Gen-7 facility, which processes substrates of
approx1mately 59 inches by 71 inches. AU Optronics, Chi Mei, LG.Philips LCD and Samsung Electronics in a
joint venture with Sony have each announced plans for Gen-6 or Gen-7 LCD fabrication facilities while Sharp
has announced plans for a Gen-8 facility. The substrate size for Gen-8 may exceed 90 inches by 90 inches.
However, the huge capital commitments required are prohibitive to most industry participants. We believe that
this dynamic will result in continued consolidation within the LCD industry and present challenges for other
companies attempting to enter or sustain LCD display businesses.

While LCD is currently the dominant technology in the FPD market, other display technologies are also
gaining traction and experiencing significant growth. For example, plasma displays have taken a leading share of
the 42-inches-and-larger portion of the television market, but have not béen competitive at smaller sizes although
there are recent signs that plasma display manufacturers are attempting to penetrate the market of 40 inch
displays and smaller. Plasma displays are characterized by high contrast ratio, good color saturation and good
response times, but are known for more complex electronics and high power consumption. Rear projection
microdisplay-based technologies such as digital light processing and liquid crystal on s1hcon are other competing
technologies; espec1ally for screens greater than 50 inches.

OLED: The Next-Generation FPD Technology

Our technology is based on a discovery at the University of Cambridge in 1989 that organic polymers are
capable of emitting colored, color-tunable, light when stimulated electrically. This followed an earlier discovery
that electroluminescence was possible with ‘small molecules’ of relatively low molecular weight. The emissive
nature of OLED technology has important implications in display and lighting applications, and the lack of a
requirement for the backlight and color filter required in LCDs offers the opportunity for significant cost saving.

P-OLED technology shares all the visual ‘advantages, as well as low power consumption, of small molecule,
or SMOLED, technology, but has the additional advantage of solution processability which means that P-OLED
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materials can be deposited using printing techniques rather than requiring the use of vacuum evaporation

processes using perforated metal masks, ajprocess that is believed by many in the industry to be limited as to
scalability to large substrates. ; ‘
l
End user attractions of OLED displayJ

—w

*  Superior Viewability. The emis:;ivc nature of OLEDs enables bright, high contrast displays. OLED
displays also have a better color spectrum than most LCDs and very wide viewing angles. We believe
the superior viewability and i 1mage quality of OLED displays is a key dlfferentlator for consumers in
apphcatlons ranging from moblle phone to large screen televmons

* Faster Video Response for Dzsplaymg Moving Images. OLED displays have response times that are
approximately one thousand umeg faster than LCDs, and they are ideally suited for displaying moving
images without ‘smearing’. We of:lleve the faster video response of OLED displays will enable them to
further penetrate the mobile phone market as mobile phones add video features and television tuner

capabilities. "

*  Slimmer Form Factor. EIectromcs consumers have shown a strong preference for thinner, lighter form
_factors, as evidenced by the d1sp1acernent of cathode ray tube displays by LCDs even at higher prices.
We believe that the thinner and hghter displays enabled by OLEDs will increasingly displace LCDs for
both mobile and non-mobile apphcatlons both in sub-displays and main displays, particularly in high
resolution, v1deo -capable mobile ‘phones
J
The following chart is a schematic representation of the structures of display devices using our P-OLED
technology, the competing SMOLED technology and the incumbent LCD technology. This demonstrates the
simpler structure of P-OLED dlsplays devices since these devices require fewer component layers than either
SMOLED or LCD. '

P-OLED : SMOLED - LCD
Structure of polymer material results Multiple layer structure requires at ‘Complex layering process requires a
" in thinner and simpler device structure | least injection and transport layers significant number of steps and
- | 1o facilitate material depositionand | additional components
C(I)Llld require additional layers for ‘
opnmal usage

| powe—s R
Glass Substrate
Glass Substrate Glass Substrate SE—— _—— _
s B Pelizen it 0 T




Materials and Manufacturing
P-OLED Materials Technology

CDT’s 50%-owned joint venture with Sumitomo Chemical called Sumation™ provides both a large
development resource for the rapid development of polymer materials technology and for the supply of materials
and formulated inks for P-OLED manufacture.

Our other materials licensees, Merck OLED Materials GmbH, or Merck OLED, which is part of Merck
KGgA and was formerly known as Covion Organic Semiconductors GmbH, and H.C. Starck, a subsidiary of
Bayer, provide multiple sources of P-OLED materials for display manufacturers. Sumation is making rapid
progress in improving the lifetime and power efficiencies of red, green, blue, white and other colors of materials
and encourage their adoption in the industry. We share our research to improve lifetimes, color spectrum and
power efficiencies of P-OLED materials with selected display manufacturers.

Service Lifetimes

A key challenge facing the OLED industry is the development of OLED devices with service lifetimes
adequate for commercial applications. Lifetime is conventionally defined as the time for the brightness to fall to
half its initial level. Our P-OLED technology has demonstrated test cell lifetimes greater than 500,000 hours for
red devices, over 260,000 hours for green devices and over 150,000 hours for blue devices measured at our
standard initial brightness of 100 candelas per square meter, or cd/m2. Due to continuing advances in P-OLED
technology, we have started quoting service lifetimes at a higher initial brightness of 400 cd/m2 because we
believe that this brightness will meet the requirements of a wide range of future commercial products. Best
lifetimes for red, green and blue devices from 400 cd/m? are 31,200, 16,200 and 9,400 hours respectively.
Service lifetimes are extrapolated from laboratory testing of simple test devices at high brightness levels and used
to predict the lifetime from a lower figure. The rate of progress in improving lifetime performance has
accelerated over the last few years. This lifetime data for test cells has to be converted to a display system
lifetime using relevant design parameters such as aperture ratio, pixel layout, use of a polarizer and also taking
account of service conditions. We have developed a sophisticated computer model to convert test cell lifetime
into display system lifetime predictions.

We believe that we and our materials licensees can produce P-OLED materials that, when used in the
manufacture of display devices, are capable of satisfying the service lifetime requirements for small- to medium-
sized consumer product applications such as mobile phones, PDAs, digital cameras and camcorders (including
electronic viewfinders), portable DVD players, electric shavers, MP3 players, and in-car entertainment and
navigation displays, but are not yet sufficient for televisions, notebook computers or desktop computer monitors,
which operate at higher brightness levels and have longer service lives and, in the cases of notebooks and
monitors, operate under more demanding services conditions because of higher pixel utilization. While the
backlight of an LCD display is constantly on at peak brightness and is, therefore, drawing full power, a P-OLED
pixel only requires to be as bright as is needed at that location in the displayed image at any particular time.
Independent research has shown that televisions, for example, have a typical pixel brightness of less than 15% of
peak brightness. Still cameras operate at approximately 25% of peak brightness. This feature of only requiring
power when needed has important implications for the lifetimes and power consumption of P-OLED displays.

We are currently developing, in a program funded by partners, a transparent cathode structure to enable a
top-emission type device. In such a device, the light is emitted through the cathode side of the device rather than
having to pass between the gaps in the thin film transistors driving the display. This is expected to increase
system lifetimes by two to three times as it results in the pixels having to be driven less brightly in order to
achieve a given overall screen brightness.




Our Power Efficient Technologies

. We are striving to improve power efficiency through three routes. First, in addition to our P- OLED
fluorescent technology, we are developing high efficiency, solution processable, phosphorescent dendrimer
materials. Dendrimers are large, spherical molecules with branched chains emanating from their cores which
enable solution processable materials ahd device structures that allow OLEDs to emit light through a process
known as phosphorescence Itis beheved that phosphorescent devices are capable of device efficiencies up to
four times higher than those exhibited by fluorescent OLEDs. This would substantially reduce the power
requirements of an OLED display and i 1s potentially useful for hand-held devices, such as mobile phones, where
battery power is often a limiting factor. The least efficient fluorescent color is red and development of
phosphorescent red matenals has been the primary focus for this research to date. .

\

Second, we continue to research the findings at the University of Cambridge, Add-Vision, Inc., TDK
Corporation, UCLA, Yamagata Umversulty and Royal Philips Electronics or Philips which have shown that
higher efficiencies than were thought possrble can be obtained from fluorescent P-OLED materials. These
findings indicate that a greater proportlon of singlet excitons are being generated than previously thought to be
possible. We believe that these ﬁndlngs‘\ may allow fluorescent P-OLEDs to achieve significantly higher power
efficiencies than previously expected an:d may provide the only route to very high efficiency blue OLEDs, as

phosphorescent blue emission, ata practrcal color point, is difficult to obtain and sustain.

l

Manufacturing Technology \l‘

LCDs$ have a complex structure reguiring a substantial number of components such as backlights, color
filters, spacers, diffusers and alignment }ayers. OLEDs have an inherently simpler structure than LCDs, and as an
emissive technology OLEDs require no backlight or color filter. These components alone account for typically
50% of the cost of materials used in LCD displays. In addition to a lower cost of materials, we believe the
simpler nature of OLEDs should mean shorter manufacturing cycles and higher manufacturing yields. Backlights
that are used to illuminate LCD screens ‘[a.re becoming more complex to enable even illumination of larger LCD
screens. Recent industry data suggests that further LCD cost per unit area reductions through processing of yet
larger substrates may not be possible. This means that further cost reductions must come from reduced cost of
materials. Thus, we believe the advantaées of P-OLED device manufacture will become more compellmg as the

FPD 1ndustry contmues its transition towards larger substrate srzes and larger display panel sizes.

‘We believe that as production volumes and yields of OLED disp]ays increase, we should see the cost of
OLED displays dropping below that of LCDs It is possible that substaitial portions of LCD manufacturing
facilities could also be converted to manufacture OLED displays since that proportion of the LCD manufacturing
equipment used to create the thin film transistors, or TFTs, which drive the display would be applicable to OLED
manufacture. : ' '

P-OLED materials can form stable solutions in organic solvents, making inks which can be deposited in
pixel patterns using ink-jet and other prihting techniques. Low-cost spin-coating is also available for
monochrome or area color displays. Wej'beheve that this “solution processing”-capability offers significant
advantages over vacuum deposition wmch is required to pattern SMOLED materials, particularly for large
substrate sizes. The ability to pattern P- OLED materials on large substrates enables larger displays to be

produced and potentlally reduces the cos”t of smaller displays which can be cut from larger sheets.

rl
Compared with competing OLED technologles the simpler structure of P-OLED devices means they
require fewer manufacturing operations: \‘Deposmon of P-OLED materials using printing techniques enables more
efficient utilization of materials compared to vacuum evaporation. P-OLED printing may be operated under less
rigorous conditions than the vacuum env‘rronment normally used for SMOLED production. The P-OLED
advantages over SMOLED become more compelling when scaling to large substrate sizes, as the large masks

required for patterning in vacuum are difficult to align accurately at larger sizes resulting in lower yields.
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Although high precision ink jet printing is the current state-of-the-art patterning method for P-OLED -
materials, there are other printing technologies which have potential for low-cost manufacture such as screen
printing, offset 11thography, gravure and other flexographic methods common to the graphics 1ndustry in which
they, and ink _]et printing, are well established. Ink jet printing is beginning to be utilized in the LCD
manufacturing industry for use in color filter fabrication and spacer deposition. We believe that this will enhance
the development of high accuracy, reliable pnntmg equ1pment and improve, the acceptance of ink jet printing
technology by dlsplay manufacturers

Favorable Trends in Driver T echnologies

LCD and OLED display devices are classified as either passive matrix or active matrix devices. In passive
matrix devices, pixels are connected via a simple X-Y grid and rows or columns are addressed consecutively. In
active matrix devices, pixels are connected to an array of thin film transistors and can be addressed
simultaneously. Our licensees are currently shipping P-OLED passive matrix displays for applications where
performance demands are well within the current state of the technology. :

While we believe that the passive matrix segment is important for the overall success of our P-OLED
technology, we are directing most of our research efforts to the development of P-OLED technology for the
active matrix segment, which in the longer term has much larger revenue potential. We believe that our P-OLED
technology is particularly suited to the active matrix market, which allows extended display lifetime compared
with passive matrix, since each pixel can be driven at its most efficient operating voltage.

There are two primary types of thin film transistor substrates in use today: amorphous silicon wh1ch is the
most commonly used in the LCD industry, and low-temperature poly-silicon, or LTPS, which has certain benefits
due to.its higher current mobility. CDT and others, notably Casio Computer, have shown that P-OLED displays
can be used with amorphous silicon thin film transistor technology. Although more development is required, we
believe this work potentially increases the number of possible manufacturing facilities that could be converted
from L.CD to P-OLED and also the ability to scale P~OLED manufacturlng_ to Gen-5 and larger.

While amorphous silicon is promising for future OLED displays, most active matrix OLED displays ,
currently use LTPS. The key benefit of LTPS for P-OLED technology is the ability to drive a higher current for a
given voltage and, therefore, allow physically smaller thin film transistors to be used. This has benefits in that a
greater proportion of the area of the display is available for the emergence of light generated by the P~OLED, and
allows higher resolution displays to be made. Demonstrations of full-color prototype displays using our P-OLED
technology ona LTPS backplane include displays made by Seiko Epson, Toshiba and Philips

We believe that the compatibility of P-OLED with both LTPS and amorphous s1l1con thm film’ tran51stors
will allow P-OLED:s eventually to penetrate all LCD product markets '

Our Strategy

Our objective is to establish P-OLEDs as a leadmg technology for the FPD industry through the use of our
extensive IP portfolio,-manufacturing process and engineering expertise and commercialization partnerships. We
also intend to encourage expanded use of P-OLED technology in other addressable markets such as hghtmg The
principal elements of our strategy are to: : :

Drive Adoption of our P-OLED Technology Our strategy is to collaborate with a group of companies,
including material suppliers, equipment manufacturers, display makers-and component providets, with expertise
in a range of technologies that are necessary for the success of our P-OLED technology. For example, we have
formed a joint venture company, Sumation, with Sumitomo Chemical to accelerate the development: of better
performing P-OLED materials. Also, in order to provide specialized ink jet printers for printing P-OLED, we -
collaborate-with Litrex Corporatlon or L1trex and we are an excluswe distributor of Litrex printers for P-OLED
applications. : :
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In January 2002, we opened our Technology Development Center in Godmanchester, near Cambridge,
England to enable us to develop P-OLEI:) display manufacturing processes in a commercial scale facility and to
subsequently sell process and engmeenng packages to our licensees. In return for technology transfer and service
fees, we provide a range of customized servwe packages which assist companies in ach1evmg their plans to
commercialize products usmg our P-OLED technology.

Expand and Deepen Relatzonsths »ﬂvzth Leading Dzsplay Manufacturers. We have estabhshed
relauonshxps with many of the major dxsplay manufacturers in the industry, mcludmg formal relatxonshlps with
Samsung Electronics, Seiko Epson, Toppan and Toshiba Matsushita Displays and informal relationships with
others. Our formal relationships involve hcense agreements or technology development agreements. Our
informal relationships are based on mgned non-disclosure agreements and the regular exchange of technical
information between representatives. All \]of our informal partners have active internal P-OLED research and
development projects. \

|

Technology Licensing. Our business model includes licensing our P-OLED and related technologies to
FPD manufacturers on a non-exclusive bé‘sm but we do not, ourselves, intend to manufacture or sell display
products that incorporate our technologle% We believe this approach enables us to capitalize on our IP position,
generating license fees and royalty payments from sales by third parties of materials or displays using our IP. Our
business model allows us to concentrate on our core strengths of technology development and innovation, while
at the same time providing significant opé}atlng leverage. This approach also reduces the potential for

competitive conflicts between us and our hcensees

Enhance and Protect our IP Porz;folw We believe that a strong and comprehensive portfolio of P-OLED
patented technology is critical to our success in the display industry. Consequently, we are expanding this
portfolio through our internal development efforts, our collaborative relationships and other avenues, which may
include opportunities to acquire busmesses technologies or other assets. This will not only enhance the strength
of our IP position, but will enable us to contmue to extend our patent coverage into other forms of display and
other devices to provide us with an mcreasmgly strong position in our commercial dealings within the overall
patent landscape. We will continue to prot?ct our innovations in all major markets, including North America,
Europe and Asia, including China. Inventions that we consider to have the greatest potential are further protected
by the filing of patent applications in a greater number of countries. We will seek, and where necessary, take
appropriate action to enforce our patent protection for these innovations.

Increase the Value Proposztzon of our ;Technology Currently our primary. focus is to develop. addmonal
P-OLED materials and device structures which extend lifetimes, increase power efficiencies and enhance color
spectrums to allow P-OLED technology to Pe used in a broader array of FPD applications. We believe that
improving color lifetimes, efficiencies and spectrum, in addition to refining and simplifying the processes
utilized in manufactunng P-OLED dlsplays‘l such as ink jet printing, are the key challenges that we and our

partners must continue to address i in order to reach the full range-of display markets.

Expand Addressable Markets by Leveragzng Core Technologzes Whlle we focus our development efforts
on the FPD market, which we believe represents the largest near to mid-term market opportunity for our core
P-OLED and solution processing technologﬁas we also intend to explore the applicability of our core
technologles to additional applications such, 28 signage and poster-type displays that incorporate multimedia
capabilities, sensors, solid state lighting and| photovoltalc cells. For example, we have licensed our core P-OLED
technology to OSRAM Opto Semiconductors and Phxhps two of the 1argest hgh’ung companies in the world, for

lighting app11cat10ns ‘]

Our Intellectual Property ‘ 4
We have a comprehenswe IP policy Wthh has as its ObjeCthCS
» the development of new IP both to elnsure our continued control of P—OLED technology and to further
our IP position in relation to OLEDS in general; and
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» the maintenance of our valuable trade secrets and know-how. .

Since our founding, IP has been and continues to be our highest priority and the guality and range of our IP
portfolio reflects this..From the initial filings with respect to our fundamental patents, we have now amassed a
substantial base of IP assets including granted and pending patents, trade secrets and know-how. Currently we
have 198 published or unpublished patent families, including 13 joint filings with our development partners, with
83 patents issued in the United States, 30 patents issued in Europe (principally in the U.K., France, Germany and
the Netherlands), 18 patents issued in Japan and 16 patents issued in China. In addition, we have applied for 67,
73, 82 and 38 patents that are currently pendmg with the apphcable governmental authonty in, respechvely, the
United States, Europe Japan and Chma

Our patent portfolio now extends into the following areas:

* electroluminescent devices; ‘

. electroldrrlinescent and charge transpoi'_t'mateﬁals;

*  manufacturing processes; .

* electrodes/cathodes;

. device architecture;»

» electronics/drivers;

¢ optics;

. solution precessing,and’ink jet printing; | -

*  encapsulation; @ - : ‘ ' ‘ 4

.. flexible display devices‘;v and * -

* photovoltaics, such as solarrcells '

In addition to patents owned-directly by us, we have exclusive control of certain patents emanating from the
Universities of Cambridge, Oxford and St. Andrews. We have been granted sub-licensing rights with respect to
the extensive portfolio of patents belonging to Seiko Epson to the extent they relate to the manufacture of

P-OLED devices by ink jet printing. We also possess substantial know- how including the unplementauon
knowledge relating to the manufacture of OLED devices.

In 2002, as part of our IP expansion strategy, we acquired control of CDT Oxford Limited (formerly known
as Opsys UK Limited), which owns or controls a number of patents protecting the use of dendrimers to make
solution processable phosphorescent materials. This allows us to develop proprietary materials which we believe
have the potential to form the basis of a future generatlon of high efﬁmency green and red matenals for solutlon—
processed OLED dlsplays

Our fundamental patents explre in 2010 2011 and 2015. In addition to our fundamental patents we hold a
wide array of important patents whose expiration dates range from 2017 to 2024. Our comprehens1ve approach
has led to an existing patent portfolio covering a broad spectrum of OLED technology, and we believe that this -
extensive portfolio, together with our ability to continue to generate important patentable mventlons will extend
our ability to generate licensing revenues for the foreseeable future.

In early 2006, we acquired an important portfolio of patent rights from Maxdem Inc., including patent
- applications relating to new light emitting polymer compositions and applications, and a license to a large
number of other patents and patent applications. We intend to transfer these patents rights to our 50%-owned
joint venture, Sumation.
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Research and Development

We conduct research to further develop and enhance our proprietary core P-OLED and solution processable
phosphorescent technologies, Our research and development expenses wete $16.1 million in 2005, $14.2 million
in 2004 and $16.8 million in 2003. O“ur research and development team of 88 professionals has competencies in
materials science, device physics, » process development, and ink jet printing. Some of our scientists are dedicated
to providing contract research services as part of the Sumation joint venture with Sumitomo Chemical. In total,
as of December 31, 2005, we had 119 full-time employees and four part-time employees Our employees are not
umomzed and relations between mafiagement and employees are very good

|

As part of our development efforts, in January 2002, we opened our Technology Development Center in
Godmanchester, near Cambridge, Enéland constructed at a cost of approxunately $25 million, to enable us to
develop P-OLED display manufactunng processes in a commercial scale facility and to subsequently sell process
and engineering packages to our hcensees In return for technology transfer and service fees, we provide a range
of customized service packages Wthh assist companies in achieving their plans to adopt and commercialize
products using-our P-OLED technology At this facility we have the capability to fabricate fully functional
display modules on substrate sizes from 17x1” to 14”x14” for evaluation, testing and demonstration. This enables
us rapldly to support the roll out of advances made on a research scale’ mto a commercial scale facility.

Competition

The display industry in which weloperate is highly competitive. We compete against existing FPD
technologies, dominated by LCDs, as v}vell as emerging FPD technologies, including other OLED technologies.
Due to the complex and rapidly evolving nature of the display industry, many of our competitors are, at times,
working with us as licensees, development partners or services customers.

Numerous companies have developed or are developing LCD and other technologies such as plasma, rear-
projection microdisplay, inorganic electroluminescence and field emissive displays that compete or will compete
with our P-OLED display technologlesl We also compete with a number of companies developing alternative
OLED technologies. Given the level oflipatent protection we hold for P-OLED technology, our major OLED
licensing competitors are focused on commercmhzmg SMOLED technology. SMOLEDs have a longer history as
a patented technology than P-OLEDs and SMOLED materials and display devices have been in development for
longer. Companies in the SMOLED market include Eastman Kodak, which has licensed its fluorescent SMOLED
technology and other patents for passive matrix OLED display applications, and Universal Display Corporation,
whose phosphorescent SMOLED materlals technology is used for certain passive matrix OLED applications.

\
As with P-OLEDs, over 95% of sh%pmems of commercial products utilizing SMOLED materials or licenses
from these companies have been in passive matrix applications such as monochrome product displays, car audio
and industrial displays and, more recently, cellphone sub-displays and digital still camera displays.

We believe that the principal comp]yetitive factors in the FPD market, which encompasses the market for
OLED display technology potentially include: manufacturing cost and yield, image quality especially response
time, power efficiency, product lifetime,;weight and dimension. We believe that products incorporating our
P-OLED technology compare favorably on many of these factors, but there can be no assurance that our
technology will capture a substantial pomon of the OLED display market or that our licensees’ products using
our P-OLED technology will capture a substant1al portion of the FPD market.

w\

Environmental Matters \

|
Our business and our research and development activities involve the controlled use of small amounts of

hazardous substances as well as other pot‘entially harmful materials, waste and chemicals, which could cause
interruption of our research and developrnent efforts or injury to our employees, resulting in liabilities under
local or forelgn laws or regulations governing the use, storage and disposal of these materials. To date, we have

not had any issues relating to our use of ngzardous materials.
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We outsource the disposal of hazardous materials to professional contractors, who accept responsibility for
the safe disposal of such materials, and to whom we paid less than $60,000 per year in each of the last three
years. We do not foresee any future material capital expenditure requirements for the monitoring of hazardous
substances and pollution at our current facilities or any infrequent or non-recurring clean-up expenses.

Available Information

We are subject to the informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or the Exchange
Act. We therefore file periodic reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. Such reports may
be obtained by visiting the Public Reference Room of the SEC at 450 Fifth Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20549,
or by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. In addition, the SEC maintains an internet site (http://www.sec.gov) -
that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers that file
electronically.

Our internet address is www.cdtltd.co.uk. We make available, free of charge, through our internet website
links to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, our current reports on Form 8-K
and amendments to those re_pdrts, if any, filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13 (a) or 15 (d) of the Exchange
Act, as soon as reasonably practicable after filing such material electronically or otherwise furnishing it to the
SEC. Information contained on our website is not incorporated by reference unless specifically referenced herein.
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ITEM 1A.RISK FACTORS )\

An investment in our common stoclé involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the risks
described below together with all of the Jother information included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K before
making an investment decision. If any oﬂ the following risks actually occurs, our business, financial condition or
results of operations could suffer. In that case, the trading price of our common stock could decline, and you may
lose all or part of your investment. This Annual Report on Form 10-K also contains forward-looking statements
that involve risks and uncertainties. Our\actual results could differ materially from those expected in those
forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, mcludlng the risks faced by us described below and
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10- K

' 1

Risks Relating to Our Business and Ing\lustry

We have a history of losses, do not expec‘%‘t to be profitable in the foreseeable future and may never be

profitable. ‘U

Since inception, we have generated l‘umted revenues while i 1ncurrmg significant losses. We expect to incur
losses for the foreseeable future until such time, if ever, as we are able to achieve sufficient levels of revenue
from the commercial exploitation of our IT -OLED technology to support our operations. You should note that:

|
* P-OLED technologies may neve‘r’ be broadly commercially adopted,;
¢ markets for FPD using P-OLED \technologies may be limited; and -

* we may never generate sufficient revenues from the commercial exploitation of our P-OLED technology
to become profitable.

We license our P-OLED technology to P-OLED materials manufacturers and display manuofacturers, which
then incorporate our technology into the materials and products they sell. Even if we and our display
manufacturer licensees develop commercially viable applications for our P-OLED technologies, we may never
recover our research and development expenses We had net losses of $13.8 million, $22.6 million (exclusive of
the cumulative effect of an accounting chalnge) and $22.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004
and 2003, respectively, and as of December 31, 2005, we had an accumulated deficit of $167.7 million. We
expect to report net losses in future penod% We cannot predict what impact continued net losses might have on
our ability to finance our operatlons in the future or on the market value of our common stock

Because we are at an early stage of develo)pment and have a limited operating history, our future results are
unpredictable.

Our future success is uncertain becausve we have a limited operating history and face many risks and
uncertainties. If we are unsuccessful in add%essmg these risks and uncertainties, we may be unable to generate
sufficient revenue growth to support ongomg operations. We were formed in 1992 to research and develop
P-OLED technology. We began licensing P—OLED technology to original equipment manufacturers, or OEMs, in.
1996, and in 2002 this technology was uutlally commercialized. Accordingly, there is only a limited amount of
past experience upon which to evaluate our‘tbusmess and prospects, and a potential investor should consider the
challenges, expenses, delays and other dlfﬁcultles involved in the development of our business, including the
continued development of our P-OLED technology, refinement of processes and components for commercial
products using our P-OLED technology, formation of additional commercial relationships and achievement of
market acceptance for products using P- OLED technology

If our P-OLED technology is not feasible for broad-based product applications, we may never generate
revenues sufficient to support ongoing operatwns

Before display manufacturers will agree to use our P-OLED technology for wide-scale commercial
production, they will likely require us to demonstrate to their satisfaction that our P-OLED technology is feasible
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for their particular product applications. This, in turn, would require additional advances in our research and
development efforts, as well as those of others, for applications in a number of areas, including:

~* device reliability;

« the development of P-OLED materials with sufﬁc1ent hfetlmes brightness and color coordmates for
full-color P-OLED displays in more demanding applications, such as televisions; and

¢ issues related to scalability and cost-effective fabrication technologies for product applications

Currently, P-OLED displays are being or have been used or tested for small- to medium- 51zed product
applications such as mobile phones, PDAs, digital cameras and camcorders (including electronic viewfinders),
portable DVD players, electric shavers, MP3 players, in-car entertainment and navigation displays and other
applications. P-OLED displays have not yet been commercially introduced in larger applications such as laptop
computers, desktop computer monitors or televisions other than in prototypes. To date, we have not attained the
service lifetimes required by the manufacturers of these more demanding larger applications.

Our research and development efforts remain subject to all of the risks associated with the development of
new products based on emerging and innovative technologies, including, for example, unexpected technical
problems or the possible insufficiency of funds for completing development of these products. Technical
problems may result in delays in the implementation of our technologies in specific applications and cause us to
incur additional expenses that would increase our losses. If we cannot complete research and development of our
P-OLED technology successfully, or if we experience delays in completing research and development of our
P-OLED technology for use in potential commercial applications, particularly after incurring significant
expenditures, our business may fail.

Even if our P-OLED technology is technically feasible, it may not be adopted by display manufacturers.

The potential size, timing and viability of market opportunities targeted by us through our display
manufacturer licensees are uncertain at this time. Market acceptance of our P-OLED technology will depend, in
part, upon this technology providing benefits comparable to or greater than those provided by cathode ray tube
display and LCD technology (the current standard display technologies) at an advantageous cost to
manufacturers, and the adoption of products 1ncorp0rat1ng this technology by consumers.

Display manufacturers make the determination during their product development programs whether to
incorporate our P-OLED technology or pursue other alternatives, and they may be forced to make significant
investments of time and cost well before they introduce their products incorporating our technology to the
consumer market and before they can be sure that they will generate any significant sales to recover their
investment. Moreover, certain existing licensees and potential licensees of our P-OLED technology currently
manufacture FPDs using competing technologies, and they may, therefore, be reluctant to redesign their products
or manufacturing processes or invest in new or converted facilities to incorporate our P-OLED technology.

During a display manufacturer licensee’s entire product development process, we face the risk that our
technology will fail to meet our licensee’s technical, performance or.cost requirements or will be replaced by a
competing product or alternative technology. For example, we are aware that some of our licensees have entered
into arrangements with our competitors regarding the development of competing technologies, including the
potential production of OLED displays by ink jet printing using phosphorescent materials. Even if we offer
technology that is satisfactory to a display manufacturer licensee, they may choose to delay or terminate their
product development efforts for reasons unrelated to our technology. The occurrence of any of these events
would adversely affect our royalty revenues and may make it difficult to attract additional licensees.

There are alternatives to P-OLEDs for FPDs, which may hmzt our abtlzty to commerczallze our P-OLED
technology.

The FPD market is currently, and will likely continue to be for some time, dominated by displays based on
LCD technology. Numerous companies have made and are continuing to make substantial investments in, and
are-conducting research to improve the characteristics of, LCDs. Several other FPD technologies have been, or:
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are being, developed, including technologies for. the production of field emission, inorganic electroluminescence
and gas plasma. Advances in LCD technology or any of these other technologies may overcome their current
limitations.and permit them to remain ot become more attractive technologies for FPDs, either of which could
limit the potential market for FPDs usrng our P-OLED technology. This, in turn, would cause display
manufacturers to avoid entering into commercial relationships with us or to renegotiate, terminate or not renew
their existing relationships with us, which may cause our business‘sytrategy to fail, o

Other OLED technologles may be more‘ successful than ours, which may lmut the commercial adoption of our
P-OLED technology. o l{ L . .

Other companies have developed OLED technologies that differ from and compete with our P-OLED
technology. Certain of these competing PLED technologies entered the marketplace prior to ours and may
become entrenched in the flat panel mdustry before our P-OLED technologies have a chance to become widely
adopted. Moreover, competitors may succeed in developing new OLED technologies or new manufacturing
techniques that are more cost-effective or have fewer limitations than our P-OLED technology or other existing
OLED technologies. If our P-OLED technology is unable to capture a substantial portion of the OLED display

market, our business strategy may fail.

Because we do not manufacture or sell any products to end users, we depend on the manufacturing

capabilities of our display manufacture‘r licensees. Any difficulties or delays affecting their manufacturing
processes or any decision to terminate or reduce their display manufacturing businesses could harm our

business. |

We license our P-OLED technolog;ff to display. manufactuters, who then incorporate our technology into the
‘products that they sell. Because we do not manufacture any commercial products, our success depends on the
ability and willingnéss of our licensees t%’ develop, manufacture and séll commercial products integrating our
technology. Any significant disruption or increase in cost of the manufacturing processes of our display
manufacturer licensees or a decision by any of our display manufacturer licensees to terminate or reduce their

efforts to manufacture or sell displays w‘ould adverSely affect our royalty revenues and thus our business.

Philips, one of our display manufacture licensees, has dlscontmued manufacture of monochrome P-OLED
displays and has sold its P-OLED manufacturmg development facility to OTB of the Netherlands. We have
recognized an aggregate of $119,000 in r‘evenues from Philips in fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003. Although
Philips has retained its license from us to manufacture P-OLED d1sp1ay and hghtmg dev1ces we do not expect
that Phrhps w111 pay us significant royaltles in the near future .

u S

Mass productron of P-OLED dlsplays will require the avaﬂablhty of surtable manufactunng equipment,
components and materials. Equipment is!currently available for many of the required process steps, but the
processes and equipment that will be redhired to deposit P-OLED materials for large-sized, full-color displays
are still under development. High precision ink jet printing equipment that could be used to deposit P-OLED
materials is being developed by some co‘rfnpanies, but, to our knowledge, is only being made available for sale at
this time by Litrex, our former subsidiary. The availability of suitable. ink jet printing equipment will be
contingent on the continued technical suecess of and sufficient funding for Litrex’s or another manufacturer’s
development program. In addition, certam of the components, such as low temperature poly silicon backplanes,
used in the production of our licensees’ dlsplay products are avallable only from a hrmted number of suppliers.

|

It dlsplay manufacturers are unableto obtam mk jet prmtmg or other surtable P OLED deposition
equipment or are unable to source other key equipment for the manufacture of large panel sizes or, if they
experience unexpected difficulties,. expenses or delays with respect to additional required technologies,
components or other materials, they mayr’ experience increased costs or manufacturing delays and may not be able

" to manufacture larger-sized, full-color P- OLED displays or may exit the display manufacturing business entirely.
This would adversely. affect our license f ees or royalty payments from them, and we may not be able to increase
our revenues and achieve profitability. '
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We expect to derive an increasing portion of our revenues from royalties on sales of products commercialized .
by our licensees that incorporate our technology. Our display manufacturer licensees operate in a highly - -
competitive environment, and they may not be able to achieve and sustain market position. If they fail to
compete successfully, our royalties will decrease or be eliminated.

Because we do not sell any products directly to end-users, our success depends upon the ability and
continuing willingness of our display manufacturer licensees to market commercial products integrating our
technology and the widespread acceptance of those products. Any slowdown in the demand for our licensees’
products would adversely affect our royalty revenues and thus our business. The markets for our display-
manufacturer licensees’ products are highly competitive, with pressure on prices and profit margins due largely
to additional and growing capacity from FPD industry competitors. The principal elements affecting our
licensees’ competitive performance in the market for end-user products include their abilities to:

* access required cap1tal

«  conduct research and development; -

¢ reduce time-to-market;

» reduce production costs;

+ offer.a competitive price; -

«  offer attractive product features and quality;

«  offer customer service, including product‘design support; and

¢ provide sufficient quantity of products to fulfill end-user demand.

Success in the market for end-user products that may integrate our P-OLED technology also depends on
factors beyond the control of our licensees and us, including the cyclical and seasonal nature of the end-user
markets that our licensees serve, as well as industry and general economic conditions. If our licensees fail or
otherwise reduce their efforts to commercialize products that incorporate our technology or exit the display
manufacturing business entirely, our business stratégy may fail.

Many of our compeutors have greater resources, which may make it difficult for us to compete successfully
against them.
The FPD industry is characterized by intense competition. Many of our LCD and OLED competltors have

better name recognition and greater financial and personnel resources and technical, marketmg and research
capabilities than us, and because of these differences, we may never be able to compete successfully in the FPD

market

'LCDis currently the dommant technology in the FPD market. Many of the leading LCD pancl
manufacturers, such as AU Optronics, Chunghwa Picture Tubes, LG.Philips, Samsung Electronics and Sharp, are
large, established companies with global marketmg capabilities, widespread brand recognition and extensive-
financial resources.

Eastmani Kodak Company is our principal competitor in the OLED industry, with several licensees already -
in commercial production of displays mcorporatmg its passive matrix small molecule OLED, or SMOLED
technology. :

The leading LCD panel manufacturers, who use competing technologies but are also potential licensees of
our P~-OLED technology,-are considerably larger and more established companies, and they have global -.
marketing capabilities and substantially greater financial resources to devote to research and development than
we have. If our technology does not compete effectlvely with these and other dlsplay technologles our busmess

strategy may fail.
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If our materials supplier licensees fail to make advances in their research, or if they exit that business or
otherwise terminate or elect not to renew their relationships with us, we might not succeed in commercializing
our P-OLED technology. : C o

nercially viable applications for our P—OLED technology depends
ting to P-OLED materials, including resolution of issues relating to
materials lifetimes and efficiencies at th': brightness levels required for large panel applications. We cannot be
certain that we or our materials supplier Hhcensees will make sufficient additional advances in the research and °
development of P- OLED materials to satisfy these requirements. Moreover, if our materials supplier licensees are
unable to meet the requirements of our dlsplay manufacturer licensees, or if they exit the P-OLED materials
supply business or otherwise terminate er elect not to renew their relationships with us and.no viable successor
fail. '

can be found, our business strategy may

Research and development of comn
substantially on the success of work rela

If we cannot form and maintain lasting
business strategy will fail. !
|

Our business strategy depends uporn our development and maintenance of commercial licensing
relationships with high-volume manufacturers of P-OLED displays. As at December 31, 2005, we had entered
into nine licenses with dlsplay manufacturers and we have seven other relationships with manufacturers that are
limited to technology development and t”he evaluation of our P-OLED technology for possible use in commercial
production. Any of these relationships may fail to result in the display manufacturers entering into a licensing
arrangement or, subsequently, commerctal production, as applicable, of devices using our P-OLED technology
on a scale sufficient for our business strategy to succeed. Moreover, if a licensee is no longer using our

tcchnology, it can generally terminate the license agreement upon notice and without further payment to us.

business relationships with P-OLED display manufacturers, our

N \

Under our existing technology devcilopment and evaluation agreements, we are working with display
manufacturers to incorporate our technology into their products for the commercial production of P-OLED
displays. However, these technology development and evaluation agreements typically last for limited periods of
time, and these relationships may never lead to development of products and entry into license agreements.

Currently, and for the foreseeable future, a significant portion of our revenues are and will be derived from a
concentrated number of licensees. In 2003, 2004 and 2005, ten, five and four customers accounted for, -
respectively, 74%, 66% and 67% of our ]:revenues. Furthermore, in 2003, 2004 and 2005, two, four and four
customers accounted individually for moire than 10% of our revenues. Qur future success will depend upon our
ability to establish and maintain relationships with key licensees and to attract new licensees. If our royalty
revenues continue to be derived from a fHew licensee relationships, our operating results will be harmed if those
licensees experience operating difficulties or curtail or terminate their use of our licensed technology, and we are
not able to obtain replacement royalty sources. Replacement royalty sources may be difficult to obtain because of

the lengthy periods reqmred to attract and sign- up new hcensees and have them enter commermal production.

Our ability to enter into additional commermal 11censes or to maintain our existing technology development
and evaluation relationships, may requ1re us to make financial or other commitments. We might not be able, for
financial or other reasons, to enter into or continue these relationships on commercially acceptable terms or at all

Failure to do so would cause our busines

Confflicts may arise with our licensees 0

$ strategy to fail.

r joint development partners, resulting in renegotiation or termination

of, or litigation related to, our agreemeTts with them. This would adversely affect our revenues.

Conflicts could arise between us an

milestone payments or other commercial

. L j
the right to commercialize intellectual 2

d our licensees or joint development partners as to royalty rates,
terms. Similarly, the parties may disagree as to which party owns or has
operty that is developed during:the course of the relationship or as to

other non-commercial terms. If such a conflict were to arise, a licensee or joifit development partner might
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attempt to compel renegotiation of certain terms of their agreement or terminate their agreement entirely, and we
might lose the royalty revenues and other benefits of the agreement. Either we or the licensee or joint
development partner might initiate litigation to determine commercial obligations, establish intellectual property
rights or resolve other disputes under the related agreements. Such litigation could be costly to us and require
substantial attention of management. If we were unsuccessful in such litigation, we could lose the commercial
benefits of the agreement, be liable for other financial damages and suffer losses of intellectual property or other
rights that are the subject of dispute. Any of these adverse outcomes could cause our business strategy to fail.
Some of our licenses contain “most favored nation” provisions. These provisions give licensees the right to
reduced royalty rates or refunds of upfront fees in the event that we issue new licenses that have more favorable
upfront fee or ‘royalt’y rates than the existing licenses that contain these “most favored nation” provisions, but are
otherwise similar in their terms. ‘

If we do not receive additional financing in the future, we might not be able to continue the research,
development and commercialization of our P-OLED technology.

Our capital requirements have been, and will continue to be, significant. Substantial additional funds will be
required in the future to maintain current levels of expenditure for research, development and commercialization
of our P-OLED and related technologies, to obtain and maintain patents and other inteliectual property, or IP,
rights-in these technologies, as well as for working capital and other purposes, the timing and amount of which
are difficult to forecast. Qur total research and development expendituires were $16.1 million in 2005,
$14.2 million in 2004 and $16.8 million in 2003. If we do not achieve our revenue goals, our cash on hand may
not be sufficient to meet all of our future needs. When we need additional funds, such funds may not be available
on commercially reasonable terms or at all. If we cannot obtain more money when needed, we might be forced to
cut back our current activities and our business might fail. In July 2004, we secured a line of credit in a
maximum amount 6f $15.0 million, of which $0.5 million may not be borrowed, available for one year and
extendible for up to two additional years to meet our short term capital requirements. There are financial costs
associated with maintaining and accessing this facility. In addition, any borrowing under this facility is secured
by a letter of credit issued by Wells Fargo Bank, the reimbursement obligations of which are secured by our IP
portfolio and results in the imposition of certain financial and operating restrictions by the lender. We renewed
this line of credit for an additional one year in July 2005 and it is renewable for a further year. We are negotiating
more favorable terms for this facility and expect to.extend this facility, but, if these negotiations are not
concluded to our satisfaction, we may terminate this facility. In December 2005, we sold 2,187,500 shares of our
common stock in a private placement for which the gross proceeds were $17.5 million. At December 31, 2005, -
our cash balance was $31.3 million which will be sufficient to meet our needs for at least another twelve months:

We have sold Litrex Corporation, or Litrex, to Ulvac, Inc. of Japan, or Ulvac. Under the terms of this
agreement, Ulvac is obligated to continue to support Litrex’s development of ink jet printers for the display
manufacturer industry. If it does not fulfill this obligation, we may exercise our rights under a fallback license to
obtain the necessary IP to develop, manufacture and supply ink jet printing equipment for use by manufacturers
using our P-OLED technology independent of Litrex. In any such circumstance, we may incur substantial
additional costs in order to ensure that ink jet printing equipment is made available for P-OLED display
manufacturers. We have the right, but no obligation, to fund ink jet printing development programs at Litrex and
may incur costs in doing so if we believe this is necessary for the furtherance of our P-OLED technology.

If we are unable to meet our currently projected liquidity fequirements from out existing resources, we may
need to borrow money or issue additional equity or debt securities. We may not be able to borrow money on
commercially reasonable terms or at all. If we attempt to raise money in an offering of shares of our common
stock, preferred stock, warrants or debt securities, or if we engage in acquisitions involving the issuance of such
securities, our then-existing stockholders may be diluted. If we are unable to obtain requlred financing or -
reasonable terms, our business may fail.
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We or our licensees may incur substantml costs-or lose important rights as a result of litigation or other
proceedings relating to our patent and other intellectual property rights.

In recent years, there has been s1gmﬁcant litigation involving patents and other IP rights in many
technology-related industries, including jour own. Until recently, many patent applications were retained in
secrecy by the United States Patent Ofﬁce until and unless a patent issued. As a result, there may be United
States patent applications pending that may be infringed by the use of our technology or a part thereof, thus
substantially interfering with the future conduct of our or our licensees’ business. In addition, there may be
issued patents in the United States or other countries that are pertinent to our or our licensees’ business of which
we are not aware. Our licensees could be sued by other pames for patent infringement in the future. Such
lawsuits could subject them to lability for damages or require our licensees to obtain additional licenses that
could increase the cost of their products,l which might have an adverse affect on their sales and thus our royalties
or cause them to seek to renegotiate our royalty rates.

|
|

In addition, in the future we may assert our IP rights by instituting legal proceedings against others. We
cannot assure you that we will be successful in enforcing our patents in any lawsuits we may commence.
Defendants in any litigation we may commence to enforce our patents may attempt to establish that our patents
are invalid or are unenforceable. Thus, any patent litigation we commence could lead to a determination that one
or more of our patents are invalid or unenforceable If a third party succeeds in invalidating one or more of our
patents, that party and others could compt‘ete more effectively against us. Our ability to derive licensing revenues
from products or technologles covered by these patents could also be adversely affected.

! .

Whether our licensees are defending‘ the assertion of third-party IP rights against their businesses arising as
a result of the use of our technology, or we are asserting our own IP rights against others, such litigation can be
complex, costly, protracted and highly dfsrupﬂve to our or our licensees’ business operations by diverting the
attention and energies of management and key technical personnel. As a result, the pendency or adverse outcome
of any IP litigation to which we or our hcﬂensees are subject could disrupt business operations, require the
incurrence of substantial costs and subject us or our hcensees to significant liabilities, each of which could
severely harm our business. \

Plaintiffs in IP cases often seek 1njunct1ve relief. Any IP litigation commenced against our licensees could
force them to take actions that could be h armful to their business and thus to our royalties, including the

following: i

+ stop selling their products that mcorporate or otherwise use technology that contains our allegedly
infringing IP; 1

|

+ attempt to obtain a license to the;

or at all; or |

relevant third-party IP, which may not be available on reasonable terms

* attempt to redesign their product‘s to remove our allegedly infringing IP to avoid infringement of the
third-party IP.

1
|
\

If our licensees are forced to take any of the foregomg actions, they may be unable to manufacture and sell
their products that incorporate our technology at a profit or at all. Furthermore, the measure of damages in IP
litigation can be complex and is often subJectlve or uncertain. If our licensees were to be found liable for
infringement of proprietary rights of a thjfd party, the amount of damages they might have to pay could be
substantial and is difficult to predict. Decreased sales of our licensees’ products incorporating our technology
would adversely affect our royalty revenues under existing licenses. Any necessity to procure rights to the third-
party technology might cause our enstmg*lhcensees to renegotiate the royalty terms of their license with us to
compensate for this increase in their cost of production or, in certain cases, to terminate their license with us
entirely. Were this renegotiation to occur, “certam of our license agreements that contain “most favored nation”
provisions, requiring that we offer at least as favorable terms to the holder of such a license as we offer to any
other licensee, would be affected and we would also receive reduced royalties from those licenses. These
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developments would also harm our ability to compete for new licensees and would adversely affect the terms of
the royalty arrangements we couid enter into with any new licensees.

As is commonplace in technology companies, we employ individuals who were previously employed at
other technology companies. To the extent our employees are involved in research areas that are similar to those
areas in which they were involved at their former employers, we may be subject to claims that such employees or
we have, inadvertently or otherwise, used or disclosed the alleged trade secrets or other proprietary information
of the former employers. Litigation may be necessary to defend against such claims. The costs associated with
these actions or the loss of rights critical to our or our licensees’ business could negatively impact our revenues
or cause our business to fail. ‘

If we cannot obtain and maintain appropriate patent and other intellectual property rights protection for our
P-OLED technology, our business will suffer.

The value to us of our P-OLED and related technologies is dependent on our ability to secure and maintain
appropriate patent and other IP rights protection. Although we own or license many patents cavering our
technology that have already been issued, there can be no assurance that additional patents applied for will be
obtained or that any of these patents, once issued, will afford commercially significant protection for our
technology or will be found valid if challenged. Moreover, we have not obtained patent protection for some of
our technology in all foreign countries in which P-OLED displays or materials might be manufactured or sold. In
any event, the patent laws and enforcement regimes of other countries may differ from those of the United States
as to the patentability of our P~-OLED and related technologies and the degree of protection afforded.

The strength of our current IP position results primarily from the essential nature of our fundamental patents
covering the P-OLED device and its manufacturing process and electroluminescent devices containing
conjugated polymers. These patents expire in 2010, 2011 and 2015. While we hold a wide range of additional
patents and patent applications whose expiration dates extend (and in the case of patent applications, will extend)
well beyond 2015, many of which are also of key importance in the OLED industry, none is of an equally
essential nature as our fundamental patents, and therefore our competitive position after their expiration may be
less certain.

We may become engaged in litigation to protect or enforce our patent and other IP rights or in International
Trade Commission proceedings to abate the importation of goods that would compete unfairly with those of our
licensees. In addition, we may have to participate in interference or reexamination proceedings before the U.S.
Patent and Trademark office, or in opposition, nullity or other proceedings before foreign patent offices, with
respect to our patents or patent applications. All of these actions would place our patents and other IP rights at
risk and may result in substantial costs to us as well as a diversion of management attention. Moreover, if
successful, these actions could result in the loss of patent or other IP rights protection for the key P-OLED and
related technologies on which our business strategy depends.

In addition, we rely in part on unpatented proprietary technology, and others may independently develop the
same or similar technology or otherwise obtain access to our unpatented technology. To protect our trade secrets,
know-how and other proprietary information, we require employees, consultants, financial advisors and strategic
partners to enter into confidentiality agreements. These agreements may not ultimately provide meaningful
protection for our trade secrets, know-how or other proprietary information in the event of any unauthorized use,
misappropriation or disclosure of those trade secrets, know-how or other proprietary information. In particular, we
may not be able to fully or adequately protect our proprietary information as we conduct discussions with potential
strategic partners. If we are unable to protect the propietary nature of our technology, it will harm our business.

We are exposed to currency fluctuations, which rhay have an adverse effect on us.

A substantial majority of our licensing revenues are denominated in U.S. dollars. These licensing revenues
include royalties based on revenues or production costs of our licensees that may be denominated in U.S. doliars
or other currencies. Where such revenues or production costs of our licensees are denominated in other
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currencies, they are converted to U.S. d(l)llars for the purpose of calculating any licensing royalties due to us. Our
licensing royalty revenues may decrease as a result of any appreciation of the U.S. dollar against these other
currencies. The majority of our current gxpendltures are incurred in British pounds in orderto fund our
operations in the United Kingdom. If the U.S. dollar depreciates versus the British pound, additional U.S. dollars

will be required to fund our operations 1‘[n the United Kingdom..

We take out forward currency contrracts to cover future projected currency conversions. We engage in
hedging activities, but there is no guarar“xtee that they will be successful in reducing the risks to us of our
exposure to foreign currency fluctuations and these fluctuations may adversely affect our results of operations,

financial condition or cash flows.

. |
We are a holding company with nas;gr‘liﬁcant independent operations, and we therefore rely on our
subsidiaries to make funds available to|us.

We are a holding company with nolsignificant independent operations and no significant assets other than
the capital stock of our subsidiaries. We, therefore, will be dependent upon the receipt of dividends or other
distributions from our subsidiaries. The declaratxon of dividends by our subsidiaries will be subject to the
discretion of their boards of directors anh will depend on a number of factors, including their results of
operations, financial condition, hquldlty‘t requirements and indebtedness and restrictions imposed by apphcable
law. Our inability to receive funds from! jour operating subsidiaries would adversely affect our ability to meet our
obligations and to make dividend payments and other distributions, if any, to holders of our common stock.

l
Due to our significant level of international operations, we are subject to international operational, financial,
legal and political risks that may negatx"vely impact our operations.

A substantial part of our operaﬁons‘ are in the United Kingdom, and many of our licensees have a majority
of their operations in countries other than the United States. Risks associated with our doing business outside of
the United States include: ]

* compliance with a wide variety\‘ of foreign laws and regulations, particularly labor, environmental and
other laws and regulations that govern our operations in the United Kingdom;

* legal uncertainties regarding taxes, tariffs, quotas, export controls, export licenses and other trade
barriers;

*  economic instability in the coug}mes of our licensees, particularly in the As1a Pacific region, causing
delays or reductions in orders for their products and therefore our royalties;

L.

» political instability in the countries in which our licensees operate, particularly in South Korea relating
to its disputes with North Korea and in Taiwan relating to its disputes with China;

»  difficulties in collecting accounts receivable and longer accounts receivable payment cycles; and

_* .potentially adverse tax consequ‘ences

Any of these factors could harm ourl or our licensees’ ex1st1ng international operations and business and
impair our or our licensees’ ability to cor‘mnue expanding into international markets.

A significant portion of our assets, c‘ertam of our directors and most of our executive officers are located
outside of and are not residents of the Umfted States. As a result, it may be difficult or impossible for U.S. investors
to effect service of process upon such noﬂ-resident directors or officers within the United States or to realize against
them in the United States upon judgment of courts of the United States predicated upon civil liabilities under the
federal securities laws of the United States or the securities or blue sky laws of any state or other jurisdiction within
the United States. In addition, courts of anpther country may not enforce judgments of United States courts obtained
in actions against us, our directors or ofﬁc;‘ers predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the United States
federal securities laws or the securities or blue sky laws of any state or other jurisdiction within the United States or
enforce, in original actions, liabilities agaJ‘nst us, our directors or our officers predicated upon the United States

federal securities laws or any state securities or blue sky laws.
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Our agreements with our licensees and joint development partners are subject to regulation by the European
Commission, and particularly to antitrust provisions of such regulations, which could result in fines to us or
in those agreements being declared void in whole or in part, either of which would negatively impact our
revenues.

Our IP licensing agreements and joint development agreements fall under the antitrust provisions of the
Treaty of Rome and related regulations. While our display license agreements are generally non-exclusive and
without geographic restriction, and while our licensing and joint development relationships generally represent
lower market shares than would result in the application of the regulations’ remedies, any violation of the
regulations could result in the anti-competitive provisions or the entire relevant agreement being declared void
and unenforceable. In addition, we could be subject to a fine of up to 10% of the income of our worldwide group.

If we cannot keep our key employees or hire other talented persons as we grow, our business might not
succeed. '

Our performance is substantially dependent on the continued services of senior management, particularly
our Chief Executive Officer, who has been principaily responsible for establishing and maintaining many of our
most important commercial relationships, and our Chief Technology Officer, who was one of the inventors of our
fundamental P-OLED technology and helps direct our technology development program, and on our ability to
offer competitive salaries and benefits to our employees. We do not carry key person life insurance on any of our
senior management or other key personnel. If we lose the services of key senior management personnel, we may
not be able to find suitable replacements in a timely manner or at all, which would seriously harm our business.
Additionally, competition for highly skilled technical, managerial and other personnel is intense. We might not
be able to attract, hire, train, retain and motivate the highly skilled managers and employees that we might need
to be successful. If we fail to attract and retain the necessary technical and managerial personnel, our business
will suffer and might fail. ‘We currently have fewer than 130 employees, and we may encounter increasing
difficulty in attracting enough qualified personnel as our operations expand and the demand for their services
increases. This difficulty could impede the attainment of our research and development objectives and cause our
business strategy to fail.

Our Technology Development Center and our research and development laboratories are critical to our
success. .

Our Technology Development Center in Godmanchester, England and our research and development
laboratories are critical to our success. These facilities currently house our principal research, development,
engineering and design operations. Our research and development activities involve the controlled use of a small
amount of hazardous substances as well as other potentially harmful materials, waste and chemicals, which could
cause interruption of our research and development efforts or injury to our employees, resulting in liabilities
under federal, state, local or foreign laws or regulations governing the use, storage and disposal of these
materials. While to date we have not had any issues relating to the use of hazardons materials, any event that
causes a disruption of the operation of these facilities for even a relatively short period of time would adversely
affect our ability to conduct research and development operations and to provide technical support for our
licensees, which would negatively affect our revenues.

If we acquire or invest in any companies or technologies or enter into joint ventures in the future, they could
prove difficult to integrate, disrupt our business, dilute stockholder value or have an adverse effect on our
results of operations.

We intend to expand our business primarily through internal growth, but from time to time we may consider
strategic acquisitions or other investments, .as well as joint.ventures, to develop P-OLED materials and displays.
Any future acquisition, investment or joint venture would involve numerous risks, including:

 potential disruption of our ongoing business and distraction of managemént;
¢ difficulty integrating the operations and products of the acquired business;

¢ unexpected expenses related to technology integration;
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¢ exposure to unknown liabilities, including litigation against the companies we may acquire or in Wthh
we invest or the Jomt ventures|we form;

+ future losses or failure of the aleqmred business resulting in the impairment of the carrying value of any
investment; :

« additional costs due to differences in culture, geographic locations and duplication of key talent; and. .

» ' potential loss of key employees or customers of the acquired company-

In addition, the failure to completejany such acquisition, investment or joint venture after it has been
announced and negotiations commencec}i may have an adverse effect on our business, including the diversion of
our management’s time and attention, the negative impact on our business prospects or a decline in the market
price for shares of our common stock. l.

We have made investments in AddrVisio'n, which had a carrying-value at December 31 2005 of $1.1°
million, and MicroEmissive Displays, or MED, which is a publicly quoted company in the UK and which, at
December 31, 2005, had a fair market value of $0.6 million. We may not be successful in addressing these risks

|
or any other problems encountered in connection with any acquisitions or other investments. For example, in

June 2005, MED issued a trading statem;&ent to the London Stock Exchange in which it reported poor yield in its
manufacturing process and a delay in commerc1ahzat10n of its products. Although MED did commence shipment
of commercial products in December 2005 if MED is not successful in achieving its business objectives the

value of their stock may fall and we mlght have to write down the value of our investment.

In November 2005, we and Surmtomo Chernical entered into a joint venture agreement, which prov1des for
the organization and capitalization of Sumatlon Company Limited, or Sumnation, to develop and supply advanced
P-OLED materials and formulated inks fpr use in commercial P-OLED displays and lighting applications. Each
party to the joint venture agreement has contributed initial working capital to Sumation in exchange for a 50%
voting and ownership interest, with an 1r1{:1t1a1 two-year budget and any additional funds to be funded equally by.
each party. To the extent that Sumation ?oes not achieve its expected sales revenues or margins, we may need to
provide 50% of any additional working capital funding requirements, although we will be under no formal
obligation to do so. The joint venture aglﬂeement includes provisions for the sale of part or all of our equity stake
to Sumitomo at fair market value after a %mmmum of five years. After the initial two-year penod of the Jomt
venture, the parties have agreed to engage in good faith discussions regarding the third and subsequent years. The
joint venture agreement may be termmated by either party by mutual written agreement, or by one of the parties
in the case of a material breach of the oth\er party. It may also be terminated in the event of the bankruptcy or
insolvency of either party, or if a 40% interest is acquired in one party by a direct and substantial competitor of
the other joint venture party. The agreem”ent will also terminate if Sumitomo acquires 100% of the shares in
Sumation.

Althbugh we already had a strong relsearch relationship with Sumitomo, we believe that the strengthening of
our relationship through the formation of\\t}ns joint venture is the most effective way of accelerating P-OLED
material development in the future. There can be no assurance, however, that the joint venture will not be
terminated or our interest in Sumation w111 not be acquired or that we will be successful in addressing the risks
described above or any other problems éncountered in connection with our joint venture, whether as a result of
potential disruption of our ongoing businéss and distraction or duplication of management and other key talent or
additional and unexpected costs and expé“nses related to technology integration or that could result from cultural
differences or as a result of the geographic location of the joint venture in Japan.

Risks Relating to our Financial Resu]tsl

Our operating results may have szgmﬁcant perwd-to-penod ﬂuctuauons, which would make it dzfﬁcult to

predict our future performance. |
‘\

Due to the current stage of commercialization of our technology and the significant development and:
manufacturing objectives that we and our|licensees must achieve to be successful, our quarterly operatmg results
will be difficult to predict and may vary significantly from quarter to quarter.
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We believe that period-to-period comparisons of our operating results are not a reliable indicator of our
future performance at this time. Among other factors affecting our period-to-period results, our license fees often
consist of large one-time payments in the period during which we enter into a new license, followed by smaller
recurring payients in later periods, resulting in significant fluctuations in our revenues. If, in some future period,
our operating results or business outlook fall below the expectations of securities analysts or investors, our stock
price would be likely to decline and investors in our common stock may not be able to resell their shares at or
above the price at which they were purchased. Broad market, industry and global economic factors may also
materially reduce the market price of our common stock, regardiess of our operating performance.

The market price of our common stock' may be highly volatile.

The market price of our common stock has been highly volatile, as has been the case with the securities of
many other emerging growth companies. Factors such as the following may have a significant impact on the
market price of our common stock in the future:

s our operatmg results and capital resources;

* announcements by us or our competitors of technological developments, new product apphcatlons or
license arrangements; and

« other factors affecting the FPD and related industries in general.

In addition, the stock market in general has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have
often been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of companies like us.

A few stockholders own significant amounts of our common stock. If the ownership of our common stock
continues to be highly concentrated, it will prevent you and other stockholders ﬁom mﬂuencmg s;gmﬁcant
corporate decisions.

Affiliates of Kelso & Company, or Kelso, and affiliates of Hillman Capital Corporation, or Hillman Capital,
beneficially own, respectively, approximately 40% and 20%. of the outstanding shares of our common stock.
Kelso is also represented on our board. As a result, Kelso and Hillman Capital exercise significant control over
matters requiring stockholder approval. The concentrated holdings of Kelso and Hillman Capital may result in
the delay or deterrence of possiblé changes in control of our company, which may negatively impact the market
price of our common stock. The interests of these and other of our existing stockholders may conflict with the
interests of our other stockholders.

Because we do not intend to pay dmdends, stockholders wzll benefit from an investment in our common stock
only if it apprecmtes in value.

We have never declared.or pa.ld any cash d1v1dends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain our
future earnings, if any, to ﬁnance the operation and growth of our business and do not expect to pay any cash
dividends in the foreseeable future. As a result, the success of an investment in our common stock will depend
upon any future appreciation in its value. There is no guarantee that our common stock will appreciate in value or
even maintain the price at which stockholders have purchased their shares.

Our share price may decline due to the large number of shares eligible for future sale.

Sales of substantial amounts of our common stock, or the possibility of such sales, may adversely affect the
price of our commeon stock and impede our ability to raise capital through the issuance of equity securities. As of
December 31, 2005, there were 21,483,205 shares of our common stock outstanding. In addition, we may in the
future issue additional shares of our common stock that might be or.become freely transferable, including shares
that may be issued under additional registration statements.that we may file, such as our proposed shelf
registration statement described below, upon the exercise of warrants or options or pursuant to our special bonus
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or other plans. As of December 31, ZOOHS, there were 659,468 shares of our common stock issuable upon the
exercise of outstanding warrants. Of the shares outstanding, 2,553,929 shares, including 2,500,000 which were
sold in the initial public offering of our ‘stock in December 2004, are currently freely transferable without
restriction or further registration under he Securities Act of 1933, and 2,187,500 shares which were ‘sold in our
private placement in December 2005 are currently freely transferable under our effecuve shelf registration
statement, which also covers up to 656, 250 shares issuable upon the exercise of warrants that were also sold in
that placement. In addition, 2,327,260 sPares are currently freely tradeable pursuant to Rule 144(k) under the
Securities Act of 1933 and the remaining shares are currently eligible for resale under Rule 144, subject to the
volume, manner of sale holding period} ’and other limitations of Rule 144, ~

As c_lescribed under “Management’ws Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources” in Item 7 below, our board of directors recently authorized the
registration of approximately 6.5 million shares of our common stock under a “shelf” registration statement on
Form S-3, which we expect to file with ”the SEC by the end of April 2006 and to cover up to approximately 3.9
million shares that may be issued and sold by us and up to approximately 2.6 million outstanding shares that may
be sold by certain selling stockholders, mcludmg some of our affiliates. In addition, as of March 9, 2006, we
have 1,200,000 shares issuable pursuant to restricted stock units awarded under our special bonus plan, 936,690
shares issuable upon the exercise of outstandmg stock options and up to 650,827 shares reserved for future grant
under our stock incentive plan. i

Kelso and Hillman Capital, which together with thelr afﬁhates own an aggregate of approximately 60% of
the outstanding shares of our common stock each have rights, subject to some conditions, to require us to file
registration statements covering the unreglstered shares that they currently hold or may acquire or to include
these shares in registration statements th‘at we may file for ourselves or other stockholders, including in
connection with our proposed shelf registration statement described above. Sales by these stockholders ofa

. L . .
substantial number of shares could significantly reduce the market price of our common 'stock.

The price of our commoni stock can be expected to decrease if we issue additional shares of our common
stock that might be or become freely salable, including shares that may be issued under additional registration
statements that we may file, such as our‘proposed shelf registration described above, upon the exercise of

warrants or options or pursuant to our special bonus or other plans.
\

We can issue shares of preferred stock that may adversely affect your rights as a shareholder of our common
stock.

Our certificate of incorporation authorizes us to issue up to 46,667 shares of preferred stock with
designations, rights and preferences determined from time-to-time by our board of directors. Accordingly, our

board of directors is empowered, withou‘lt shareholder approval, to issue preferred stock with dividend,
liquidation, conversion, voting or other ﬁights superior 1o those of stockholders of our common stock. For
example, an issuance of shares of preferred stock could:

. adversely affect the voting power of the stockholders of our common stock

;-

+ make it more difficult for a thlr)d party to gain control of us
\

s discourage bids for our common stock at a premium;

+ limit or eliminate any payments that the stockholders of our common stock could expect to receive upon -
our liquidation; or ‘ :

+ otherwise adversely affect the market price of our common stock.
. ! |

We may issue additional shares of authorized preferred stock at any time in the future.
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We are incurring increased costs as a result of being a public company.

We are facing increased legal, accounting, administrative and other costs and expenses as a public company
that we did not incur as a private company. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as well as new rules subsequently
implemented by the SEC and the Nasdaq National Market, require changes in the corporate governance practices
of public companies. These new rules and regulations are resulting in both a significant initial cost, as we initiate
certain internal controls and other procedures designed to comply with the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act, and in an ongoing increase in our legal, audit and financial compliance costs, which is diverting
management attention from operations and strateglc opportunities and to making legal, accounting and
administrative activities more time-consuming and costly. We are incurring substantially higher costs to maintain
directors and officers insurance. We are currently experiencing increased annual costs following our initial public
offering in December 2004 and we expect to continue to incur additional costs in future years in implementing
and verifying internal control procedures as required by section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and the
rules and regulations thereunder, and in connection with preparing our financial statements on a tlmely basisto

meet the SEC’s requlrements

In addition, we are required under these new rules and regulations to retain independent directors to serve on
our board of directors. If vacancies on our board of directors occur that need to be filled by independent
directors, we may encounter dlfﬁculty in attracting qualified persons to serve on our board, and, in particular, our
audit committee. If we fail to attract and retain the required number of independent directors we may be subject
to SEC enforcement proceedings and delisting by the Nasdaq National Market.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and Delaware law may dlscourage takeovers and business
combmanons that our stockholders might consider in their best interests.

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation and by-laws may delay, defer, prevent or render more dlfﬁcult
a takeover attempt that our stockholders might consider in their best intérests. These provisions may prevent our
stockholders from receiving the benefit from any premium to the market price of our common stock offered by a
bidder in a takeover context. Even in the absence of a takeover attempt, the existence of these provisions may
adversely affect the prevailing market price of our common stock if they are viewed as dxscouragmg takeover

attempts in the future.

ITEM 1B. Staff Comments
Not applicable.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES A
We lease the following facilities:

Approximate

Lecation » Square Feet Use

Building 2020 Cambourne Business Park 7425 Offices for executive and support functions
Cambridge, England _ : _

Greenwich House Annex, Madingley Rise, - 9,056 Laboratones and office space for the chemistry
Madingley Road, Cambridge, England : : and material science teams: -

Units 8, 11 and 12, Cardinal Business Park, .- 35,302 - Technology Development Center (including
Godmanchester, England offices, cleanrooms, laboratories, manufacturing

. . facilities and other technical space)

No. 1, Industry East 2nd Road, SBIP Hsin-Chu, 300 Ofﬁce space

Talwan

We believe that our facilities are adequate for our current needs and that suitable additional or substitute
space will be available as needed to accommodate foreseeable expansion of our operations.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

When we acquired Opsys Limited in Decembér 2004, there was an arbitration action being conducted in
California to settle a claim by a former e:’smployee' in the amount of $0.3 million. We settled this matter in
December 2005 by issuing 1,720 sharesf\and making a payment of $0.1 million to the former employee.

1

In January 2005, Sunnyside Develd,pment Company, or Sunnyside, filed a complaint against Opsys Limited,
or Opsys, and a company named by Sunny31de as CDT Limited in California Supreme Court alleging breach of
contract and fraud arising out of an alleg“ed property lease agreement between Opsys Limited and Sunnyside. It is
assumed that the reference to CDT an‘lced (which does not exist) is intended to be a reference to our principal
operating subsidiary, Cambridge Display Technology Limited which was not party to the lease. Sunnyside seeks
compensatory damages that it claims exé\eed $10 million. In October 2002, Opsys and Sunnyside executed an
Assignment of Lease and Consent of Les‘»sor which included a release of Opsys by Sunnyside. In February 2005,
CDT Limited and Opsys successfully rex'noved the action to the United States District Court for the Northern
District of California. In April 2005, the Umted States District Court dismissed all the claims against CDT
Limited and the claim for fraud against Opsys Limited, but gave Sunnyside permission to amend its claim. On
May 11, 2005, Sunnyside filed an amended complaint reasserting a fraud claim against both Opsys Limited and
“CDT Ltd.” Following a further apphcatl“on to dismiss, on August 8, 2005, the Court dismissed finally and with
prejudice all the claims against CDT Limited and the claim for fraud agamst Opsys

On November 2, 2005, Sunnyside made a further attempt to bring Cambridge Display Technology Limited
into the action under “de facto merger’ p1ﬁmcxples of United States law which was again rejected by the Court on
January 4, 2006. However, Sunnyside is entltled to make a further submission on the de facto merger principle if
it succeeds against Opsys Limited at trial. \\The Court also pointed out that a certain document which had been
produced by Sunnyside in the discovery process had weakened its case. The claim against Opsys Limited for
breach of contract will proceed to trial. We continue to believe (and: have been so advised by external counsel)
that the claim will fail.

We review any outstanding claims ag\amst us with mtemal and, if deemed appropriate, external legal
counsel to assess the probabilility and estimates of loss. We reassess the risk of loss as new information becomes
available and we adjust liabilities, if any, as appropriate. The actual cost of resolving any claims may be
substantially different from the amounts of liability recorded. We have not recorded any liability with respect to

the clalm from Sunnysade descnbed above!

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE‘ OF SECURITY ﬁdLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote o‘?f security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered
by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.. : : . :
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock has been traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “OLED” since
December 15, 2004, The following table sets forth the high and low sales information for our common stock
since December 15, 2004, the date of our initial public offering, through March 9, 2006, as reported by the
Nasdaq National Market.

Low  High
Close Close
2004 |
Fourth Quarter ended December 31,2004 ..................0coveann.. $10.60 $11.65
2005 | ;
Quarter ended March 31,2005 ... ... ... it e $ 614 $11.20
Quarterended June 30,2005 . . .. ... e $634 §$ 880
Quarter ended September 30,2005 . ... $640 §$ 873
Quarter ended December 30,2005 .. ... ..ottt $ 5706 $11.70
2006 ; : '
First Quarter (through Marchr9,2006) ...................coovnn.. oo, $821 $11.66
Holders

Based on a review of our most recent proxy tabulation and security position listing reports, there were
approximately 3,000 holders of record of our common stock at February 27, 2006.

Dividend Policy

We have not paid, and do not expect for the foreseeable future to pay dividends on our common stock.
Instead, we expect that all of our earnings in the foreseeable future will be used for the operation and growth of
our business. Any future determination to pay dividends on our common stock is subject to the discretion of our
board of directors and will depend upon various factors, including our results of operations, financial condition,
liquidity requirements, restrictions imnposed by applicable law and our contracts, and other factors deemed
relevant by our board of directors.

Use of Proceeds from Registered Securities

Our Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824) related to our initial public offering was
declared effective by the SEC on December 15, 2004. A total of 2,500,000 shares of our common stock was
registered with the SEC with an aggregate offering price of $30 million. All of these shares were registered on
our behalf, The offering commenced on December 15, 2004 and all shares of common stock offered were sold
for the aggregate offering price through a syndicate of underwriters managed by SG Cowen & Co., LLC, CIBC
World Markets Corp. and Adams Harkness, Inc. ’

We paid to the underwriters underwriting discounts and commissions totaling $2.1 million in connection
with the offering, In addition, we incurred additional expenses of approximately $2.9 million in connection with
the offering, which when added to the underwriting discounts and commissions paid by us amounts to total
expenses of $5.0 million. Thus the net offering proceeds to us (after deducting underwriting discounts and
commissions and offering expenses) were approximately $25.0 million. No offering expenses were paid directly
or indirectly to any of our directors or officers (or their associates), persons owning 10% or more of any class of
our equity securities or to any other affiliates.
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From the time of receipt through December 31, 2004, none of the net proceeds was used. During the year
ended December 31, 2005, we used $3.1 million of the proceeds for the acquisition of fixed assets, $1.1 million
for the aéquisition of an equity stake in Add-Vision, $1.6 million equity investment in our 50% joint venture
partner, Sumation, $1.7 million of loans|to Litrex and $13.9 million for working capital requirements, of which
$1.1 million was used to settle the liabilities of Opsys. We expect to use the remaining $3.6 million for general
corporate purposes, including working c‘apital and capital expenditures. We may also use a further portion of the
net proceeds to acquire businesses, technologies or other assets.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Secufities. . o

None other than as previously rep011'ted.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

- We have not i)urc_:hasc;’d any of our equity securities. During 2005, we reacquired shares, representing less
than 1% of oir common stock, in settlement of liabilities due to us from certain stockholders, and have treated

these shares as cancelled. .
.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selec'ted, _ctholidéted financial data should be read together with “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our consolidated financial statements and
related notes included elsewhere in this form.

" The consolidated statements of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 and
the consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 are derived from audited financial ’
statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The consolidated statements of operations
data for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 and the consolidated balance sheet data as of
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 are derived from audited consolidated financial statements not included in
this form. '

Our selected consolidated financial and other data includes all of our operating subsidiaries for the entire
period shown with the exception of the following subsidiaries which have been acquired or disposed of during
the period. In November 2001, Litrex was acquired and its results are fully consolidated for the period from then
until August 2003 when 50% of the equity was sold. From August 2003 to November 2005, when the remaining
50% was sold, 50% of the losses in Litrex have been reported by us using the equity method. In October 2002,
control of CDT Oxford was acquired and its loss has been accounted for from October 2002 until December
2003 under a manner similar to the equity method. From January 2004, CDT Oxford has been fully consolidated
into our results. As a result of the consolidation of CDT Oxford in the first quarter of 2004, we wrote off $12.2
million of in-process R&D, relating to the valuation of CDT Oxford as of October 2002, which has been
accounted for as a cumulative effect of accounting change as further described in Note 3 of our financial
statements. In addition, as discussed in more detail under “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations—Overview”, our license fee revenues often consist of large one-time
payments. As a result, our revenues experience significant fluctuations.




C . N : o ~ Years Ended December, 31,
(In thousands, except per share data) 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Operating revenues - o ! Lo ' ' '
License fees and royalties ......!... e $20,869 $ 2474 $ 4314 $ 6,791 $ 3,285

Other license related ...:....c.0...0 oo, e — — — 900 —
Technology services and development . .......... 1,522 727 3,758 4982 7,478
Equipment and supplies .......L.............. h— — — 613 7.330
Litrex revenue ...............0... el — 3852 2,608 — —
Total operating revenues ... ........ ............ L. 22,391 7,053 10,680 13,286 18,093
Costofsales .................... I — 1,792 1,527 1,994 9,725
Grossprofit ............... e 22,391 5,261 9,153 11,292 8,368
Operating expenses . S A ' :
Research and development expenses . ‘5 .............. 8,405 19,676 16,841 = 14,181 16,129
Selling, genera_l and administrative expénses e I 11,893 16,903 12,769 18,751 17,426
Amortization Qf intangibles ......... ‘( ..... e...i.l 8,555 3,660 1,625 1,580 1,580
Tota.l’ opérating expenSes ........... {U .............. 28,853 40,239 31,235 34,512 35,135
Loss:.from operations ........ e d T (6,462)  (34,978) (22,082) (23,220) (26,767)
Other income (expense) ............ ‘\ .............. 1,262 (335) (1,627) (980) 11,119
Loss before (benefit) provision for incox‘lne taxes and - _
cumulative effect of accounting change e e (5,200) (35,313). (23,709) -(24,200) (15,648)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes .. 1. . ... ......... 50 (3,595) 932) » (1,615) - (1,833)
Cumulative effect of accounting change“ ........ e —_ — .—  (12,200) —
Netloss .............. e Lo (5,250) 0 (BL,718)  (22,777)  (34,785)  (13,815)
Accretion of preferred stock * ....... bveriiins A — (301)  (6,771) (38,766) —
Net loss attributable to common shareho'llders ......... $(5,250) $(32,019) $(29,548) $(73,551) $(13,815)
Net loss per share attributable to common shareholders
before cumulative effect of accounting change, basic . .
and diluted ... ....... e e ,; ............. $ (062) $ (335 % 304 $ (617 $ (07D
Net loss per share attributable to common shareholders, . : , §
basic and diluted ........... O | A ... $062) $ (335 % (304 $ (740) 3 (071
. : i :
Weighted average number of shares <5 .
Basicanddiluted .................. Lo, SN 8,469 9,565 9,705 9,944 ° 19,543

- !

* In 2002 and 2003 we sold: redeemablell convertible preferred stock to certain shareholders. We accreted the
value of the preferred stock to reﬂe_cts‘\‘the amounts and timing of the redemption provision of that preferred
stock. All of our preferred stock was converted to common stock immediately prior to our initial public
offering in December 2004 and a further one-time accretion charge was reported comprising the difference in
the value of the preferred stock on the Q\date of conversion and the value of the common stock into-which it
converted. Accretion charges on our preferred stock increased our loss per share by $0.03 in 2002, $0.70 in
2003 and $3.90 in 2004. - o s « .

(In thousands). ) % : 2001 - 2002 - 2003 ‘ 2004 2005

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data: | o ‘

Cash and cash equivalents and current marketable

SECUrIties ... .oovvnveiinnen e, | -$ 4,138 $ 11,972 $§ 10400 $ 28,043 $ 31,263

Working capital .......... e SRS ool o 971) ~12,9’Z7 14,132 24,846 28,821
Totalassets .............. SRS & P 111,684 129,122 113,870 129,153 122,713
Redeemable convertible preferred stock SEERE e — 25,301 38487 — —
Accumulated deficit ......... L - (64,612)  (96,330) (119,107) (153,892) (167,707)
Total common shareholders’ equity e 99,860 94,320 62,768 106,439 112,888
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of aperations should be read together with
the consolidated financial statements and related notes that are included elsewheré in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. This discussion may contain forward looking statements based upon current expectations that
involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results may differ materially from those expected in these forward-
looking statements as a result of various factors, including those set forth under “Factors That May affect Our
Operating Results” or elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. ‘ '

Ovemew

We are a pioneer in the development of P- OLEDs and their use in next-generation flat panel displays and
other applications. The fundamental discoveries relating to our P-OLED materials were made by a team of
researchers at the Cavendish laboratories at the University of Cambridge in 1989 that included Dr. Jeremy
Burroughes, our Chief Technical Officer. Since our inception in 1992, we have focused on continuing research
and development related to the production, manufacturing and commercialization of P-OLED technology in the
flat panel display and other industries. Our revenues are primarily generated from the licensing of rights to use
our IP portfolio, from ongoing product royalties and from fees generated from transfer of technology-and joint
technology development agreements. ' :

We sold-our first P-OLED license in 1996 to Philips and currently have nine device licensees, three
materials licensees and two component licensees and are working with a number of additional display
manufacturers thrugh joint technology development programs and informal relationships. We recognized our
first royalty. revenues in 2002 when commercial consumer electronics products began incorporating our P-OLED
technology. Currently, our P- OLED technology 1s belng used in mobile phones, MP3 players, medical equipment
and other applications.

While we have made significant progress over the past few years in advancing our P-OLED technology into’
a number of display licenses, we have incurred significant losses and will continue to do so unless our P-OLED
technology becomes more widely adopted and commercialized by flat panel display manufacturers. As of
December 31, 2005, we had an accumulated deficit of $168 million in large part due to the research and
development expenditures we have incurred. Our total research and development expenditures since 1999 exceed
$88 million. .

Our business objective is to license our technology to leading display manufacturers and to generate
royalties based on the sales of their products. As a pre-cursor to our licensing and royalty business we sell
technology services, development services and ink jet printing equipment and polymer inks to companies
working on P-OLED technology. We market our P~-OLED IP and technology by building relationships with
established and new entrant flat panel display manufacturers. This may irivolve developing relationships at'a
senior leével over a period of years. Some manufacturers purchase a license from us at an early stage in their
P-OLED development program. Other manufacturers begin their efforts to develop products using our P-OLED
technology by working with us through a series of informal meetings, then by entering, either publicly or '
confidentially, into a formal technology development or technology transfer program which  may culminate in the
purchase of a license from us.

_ In order to accommodate our many current and potential Asian licensees and partners, we maintain
representative offices in Japan and Taiwan. Two of our senior executives are based in Japan, one of whom is
seconded to Sumation, our 50%-owned joint venture with Sumitomo Chemical. Other senior executives travel
frequently from our corporate offices to Asia and. other destinations in order to develop our relatlonshlps with
both existing and potential-new licensees.
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We believe that the key factors tha% will contribute to the successful execution of our strategy are:

s the further development of P-OLED materials and device structures in order to increase the commercial
lifetimes of P-OLED products;

». the further development of ink | Jet printing equipment and process, and other deposmon processes, so
.. that mass productlon of full color P- OLED drsplays can be demonstrated

» the further development of othe}ir technologres requlred for P-OLED displays, in particular active matrix
thin film transistor dlsplay drivers; and

*  the adoption of P OLED technology by i 1ncreasmg numbers of existing and potent1al future display
manufacturers. . | L.

Management momtors perforrnancel in achrevmg these goals by reference to internal and external
technology developments. Progress on hfetrmes is described under “Service Lifetimes” under Ttem 1 above.
Progress in the other areas is demonstraﬁed by the increasing size of demonstration displays being exhibited by
ourselves and display manufacturers, the increasing number of companies which are working with us on
technology services and development pr’()]ects and our 1ncreas1ng revenues from these projects.

. l‘ .

Although we believe that P-OLED l‘dlsplay technology has the potentral to enable displays to be
manufactured at lower cost than cornpetmg LCD technology, this cost advantage will not be realized until -
P-OLED technology is proved in volume manufacturing. LCD manufacturing companies continue to strive to
reduce unit manufactunng costs and such cost reductions will make it more difficult for P-OLED technology to
penetrate the market, although we believe that the smpler structure of P-OLED display devices compared to
LCD will mean that, ultimately, P- OLEID displays will be cheaper to produce.

We believe that the FPD market will remain price sensitive. Limited penetration of P-OLED displays will be
possible if there is a price premium, but we believe that any such premium will have to erode and that production
costs at volume will have to be lower for P-OLED than for competlng technologies in order that P-OLED
products can take significant market sha”re o ,

In reading our financial statements, l , you should be aware of the following factors and trends that our
management believes are important in understandmg our financial performance:

|
* because our license fees often cons1st of large one-time payments and our royalties for the foreseeable
future are expected to be smaller, recurring payments we expect fluctuations in these revenues
dependmg on the penods in which we enter into new licenses;

I

«  we have and will continue to invest s1gn1ﬁcant resources in research and development in order to
develop and effectively demonstrate our technology so that it can be commercialized in a growing
number of applications, which i 1s indicated by our total research and development expenditures in 2005
of $16.1 million; I[

* we expect that our future royalties will be impacted by the extent to which we continue to enter into-new
- technology development-agreements and existing technology development paxtners enter into.
commercial licenses for use of our P-OLED technology; and

+ we expect that our future royaltres will be impacted by the extent to which our existing licensees expand
the use of our P-OLED technology in commercial applications in their consumer electronic products.
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Description of Our Revenues, Costs and Expenses and Our Results of Operations
Operating Revenues
License Fees and Royalties

Two of the most important sources of our revenues are licensing fees and subsequent royalties. Typical
license terms include the payment of an upfront fee, which is higher for licenses covering larger or more complex
displays. The sale of a license is often the culmination of a lengthy period of relationship building, technical
development and negotiation. Our results can show much higher revenues in those quarters during which licenses
were sold as the upfront fee is generally recognized in full in the quarter in which the license fee is due.

Licenses vary with regard to which sections of our patent portfolio are covered and for what purposes. They
include display device licenses (which may include restrictions with regard to the type of display and the
maximum number of pixels), lighting device licenses, material licenses (which may restrict the class of materials
which can be manufactured) and component hcenses which cover components required to manufacture P-OLED
and other OLED devices.

We receive non-refundable fees upon execution of most patent licenses followed, in some cases, by
additional fees payable either at a fixed future time or on achievement of defined milestones, such as
commencement of commercial productlon Additionally, after the delivery of a license we may receive license
royalties, which comprise defined percentages of the value of the products sold under the terms of the relevant
licenses. Depénding on the nature of the licenses, products which attract a royalty are P-OLED display or other
devices, P-OLED materials or OLED semiconductor driver circuits. Most of our royalties are payable quarterly
and some licenses include provision for a minimum royalty to be paid each year.

Other License Related

In the year ended Décember 31, 2004, we reported $0.9 million of Other license related i‘evenues, which
related to the re-sale by us to a third party of certain rights to intellectual property that we had previously
acquired from that third party. We may enter into similar arrangements in future periods. ’

Technology Services and Development

‘We receive fees under the terms of technology service agreements in exchange for us carrying out agreed
development programs with customers in order to meet defined technical objectives. In addition, we receive fees
from customers for the transfer of technology, which may include manufacturing know-how transfer, supply of
display prototype devices and other samples and provision of access to our personnel and technical facilities.

Litrex Revenue

Revenues recorded by Litrex for the sale of ink jet printing equipment and related services are consolidated
into our results through August 2003, but not thereafter as a result of our sale of 50% of our interest in Litrex to
Ulvac, a manufacturer and marketer of semiconductor capital equipment. We sold our remaining 50% equity
stake in Litrex to Ulvac in November 2005.

Equipment Safes and Supplies

We receive revenues for the sale of ink jet printing, polymer inks and display device test equipment and
related supplies.
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Comparison of Operating Revenues for Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

(in thou;sands, except percentages)

Operating Revenues
License fees and royalties ... ...
Other license related - ......... ]
Technology services and developm
Litrex revenues ............... ‘

X

2005 2004 % Change 2003 % Change

e $3285 $6791  (2%) $ 4314 57%
e - 900 . (100%) — = —

ent ........... . 7,478 4,982 50% 3,758 33%

e e — — — 2,608  (100%)
T .. 7330 613 1,096% — —

TR .. $18,093 $13286  36% $10,680  24%

License fees and royalties fell by $3 5 million, or 52%, between 2004 and 2005 because:

* . license fee revenues decreased

new licenses or license extensig

by $4.2 mﬂhon from $4.2 million in 2004 to zero in 2005 because no

ns were concluded in 2005; and

* royalty revenues increased by $0.7 million from $2.6 million in 2004 from seven licensees to $3.3
 million in 2005 from nine hcemsees Our fixed royalty payments increased but our running royalties
decreased due to the discontinuance of production by Philips, one of our licensees who has sold its

]

production line to another company that we believe will use the acquired business to promote the sales
of production equipment ratherl\than to manufacture displays for sale. Additionally, in 2005, one of our
licensees, Dow Chemical, sold its P-OLED business to Sumitomo Chemical and royalties on the sale of

P-OLED materials by Dow hav‘e ceased. The former Dow license and our license to Sumitomo

Chemical, both of which relate Mto the supply of polymer materials, have been assigned to Sumation, our
50%-owned joint venture with Sumltomo We have granted Sumation a “royalty holiday” for four years
as part of the agreement for theﬂestabhshment of Sumation which will cause a reduction in the royalties
we receive from P-OLED material sales. However, this “royalty holiday” will reduce the losses of

Sumation, of which we accountlb for 50%.

ll

License fees and royalties grew by ]$2.5 million, or 57%, from 2(]03 to 2004 because:

license fee revenues increased t%y $0.3 million from $3.9 million from four licensees in 2003 to $4.2
million from three licensees in 2004; and

royalty revenues increased by $h2 2 million from $0.4 million in 2003 from five licensees to $2.6 million
in 2004 from seven licensees due to an increase in fixed royalty payments, which are due whether or not
licensees are in production, andlﬁan increase in running royalties related to the revenues recelved by our
licensees for the sale of P-OLED devices. -

\

In 2004 we reported $0 9 million of
third party of certain rights to intellectual
Although we did not report revenues in tl
will continue to negotiate the sale of enh
source of further revenues.

)

[ other license related revenues, which related to the re-sale by us to a
property that we had previously acquired from that third party.

his category in either 2003 or 2005, we believe that is it likely that we
anced license rights to our licensees in the future and that this may be a

Technology services and development revenues grew by $2. 5 rmlhon or 50%, from $5.0 million in 2004 to
$7.5 million in 2005 and by $1.2 mllhonM or 33%, from $3.8 million in 2003 to $5.0 million in 2004. This growth
has been due to a significant increase in t“he number of technology transfer and development contracts throughout
this three year period. These contracts include standalone contracts with the supply of technical services or joint
development work and also combined conntracts where we supply packages which may include ink jet printing
equipment and polymer inks, as well as t=chnology services. We beligve that our ability. to offer such combined

Dpackages is attractive to customers wanting to develop their capabilities in P-OLED technology.
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Equipment and supplies revenues increased from $0.6 miliion in 2004 to-$7.3 million in 2005, having been
zero in 2003. Revenues in 2004 were from the sales of display test equipment and in 2005 were for nine ink jet
printers, supplied under a distribution arrangement with our former subsidiary Litrex, and sales of polymer inks.
The distribution arrangement with Litrex has been extended following the sale of Litrex to Ulvac Inc. of Japan.

Total operating revenues increased by $4.8 million, or 36%, from $13.3 mllhon in 2004 to $18 1 million in
2005.

Total operating revenues increased by $2.6 million from $10.7 million in 2003 to $13.3 million in 2004, an
increase of 24%. Revenues, other than from Litrex, increased by $5.2 million and revenues from Litrex fell by
$2.6 million because, subsequent to the sale of 50%' of our equity stake in Litrex in August 2003, we no longer
consolidate Litrex revenues.

Given the nature of our business and the current stage of our development, revenues fluctuate significantly
from quarter to quarter. For example, we expect low revenues in the first quarter of 2006 but we do not believe
that this will be indicative of the remainder of the year.

Sumitomo Chemical, Samsung, Delta Opto and OTB NV each accounted for in excess of 10% of our total
revenues for 2005 (2004: DuPont Displays, Seiko Epson, MED; 2003: DuPont Displays, Dai Nippon Printing).
Sumitomo Chemical and a company in the same group as DuPont Displays are both mmonty shareholders, each
owning less than 5% of our common stock.

Cost of Sales

The only cost of sales for our license fees and royalties that we report is for payments to third parties from
whom we have in-licensed IP rights. We expect this cost to be approximately 1% to 2% of revenue, but it may
increase in future years if the relative contribution of in-licensed IP rights to our overall IP portfolio changes or if
we decide to license certain IP to which we have sub-licensing rights. For technology services and development
and equipment and supplies, the incremental costs of providing goods and services under those agreements plus
the cost of any resold materials or equipment is charged to cost of sales.

Comparison of Cost of Sales and Gross Profit for Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

% of % of % of

(in thousands, e;cept percentages) 2005 Revenues * 2004 Revenues * 2003 Revenues *
Cost of sales : ‘ , S
License fees and royalties ............. $ 47 1% §$ 186 3% § 245 6%
Other licenserelated .. ................ — — 9 1% _ . -
Technology services and development ... 3,798 51% 1,481 30% 109 3%
Litrexrevenues . .........c.ovvunun.n. — 80%. - — .= 1,173 45%
Equipment and supplies ............... 5,880 — .. 318 52% — - .
Total cost of sales ... .. e S, - $9,725 54% $ 1,994 15% $1,527  14%
GrossProfit ............................ ' $8,368 ' 46% $11,292 . 85% $9,153 . 86%

* The percentages shown in these columns represent each cost of sales figure, or the gross profit ﬁgure divided
by the corresponding revenue figure, or total revenues, respectively.

Cost of sales related to license fees fell from 3% in 2004 to 1% in 2005, having been 6% in 2003 Cost of
sales in both 2003 and 2004 included paymients made as the result of a re-negotiation and extension of our
contract with the University of Cambridge under the terms of which we receive rights to certain intellectual
property development by the University in return for financial support for the University’s research work and a
percentage of revenues which are generated by this intellectual property. We expect cost of sales on future
license fees and royalties to be between 1% and 2%.
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Cost of sales related to technology‘ services and development increased from 30% in 2004 to 51% in 2005.
This increase was due to a contract for the supply of ink jet printing equipment and technical services to OTB
NV of the Netherlands for which a losswas recognized. The reason for this loss was that OTB has technical
problems with the integrated production line into which the ink jet printing equipment was being installed. We
made more extensive efforts to assist O\I‘B in resolving these problems than we were contractually obliged to do
and had to charge this effort against the|contract. This contract was our first sale of printers for a prototype
production line which we believed would be a precursor to future business. We have now concluded that further
efforts to assist OTB under the terms of) ithe contract would not be economically feasible, especially in light of
OTB’s acquisition of the Philips P-OLED business which has provided them with the expertise they require to
continue development of their integrated production line equipment. Therefore, in December 2005, we agreed
with OTB to terminate our contract whi‘ch resulted in our being relieved of any obligation to provide further
support to them in exchange for our glv‘mg up future revenue which would have been due to us. The net result is
that we have made a loss on this prOJectH

Cost of sales related to Technology services and development increased from 3% in 2003 to 30% in 2004.
The reason for this increase was becaus)e in 2004 we began offering a comprehensive technology transfer and
services arrangements which resulted in increased revenues but also increased associated costs commensurate
with increased internal effort on sewicelg delivery.

|
We believe that the cost of sales percentage for Technology services and development of 30% reported in
2004 will be more representative of future periods than the 51% reported in 2005, which was adversely affected

by the OTB contract. \\

Cost of sales related to equipment and supplies 1ncreased from 52% in 2004 to §0% in 2005 because we
started selling ink jet printing packages rand polymer inks in 2005 which we had not sold previously and which
have a lower margin than the test equipment previously sold. We also reported a low margin on the equipment
sold to OTB under the contract described above.

Gross profit decreased from $11.3 Won in 2004 to $8.4 million in 2005 because:
* revenues from License fees and royalties, which have a high margin, decreased; and

» revenues from Technology serw‘(ices and development and Equipment and supplies categories, both of

which have lower margins, inc reased.

The net effect of decreased revenues of high margin products and increased revenues of low margin

products, or adverse product mix, is to decrease aggregate gross margin even though total revenues have
increased.

Gross profit increased from $9.2 million in 2003 to $11.3 million in 2004 because of increased revenue with
a similar aggregate margin: there was a ‘lower margin achieved on Technology services and development but this
was compensated for by increased revenues in the high margin License fees and royalties category.

We only charge direct labor cost and the variable costs of materials associated with each revenue-generating
project to cost of sales and do not charge any allocation of fixed cost overheads. Therefore, relatively high
margins are required in order that our revenue generating contracts can make a contribution to our fixed costs.

Operating Expenses

Research and Development Expens\es

Research and development expenses consist primarily of salaries, bonuses and related benefits for personnel
engaged in research and development ac“tlvmes (including costs reimbursed to universities under sponsored
research agreements), together with the costs of purchasing and maintaining laboratory and clean room
equipment and facilities and the costs oﬁ materials used in the development and analysis of P-OLED materials
and in the fabrication of display and other devices.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Our selling, general and administrative expenses include salaries, boriuses and related benefits of sales and
marketing, human resources, facilities, finance, legal, IP protection and corporate management staff as well as
travel costs, consulting, mforma’uon systems expenses, external legal counsel costs and patent filing and
prosecutlon costs.

Amortlzanon of Intangzbles Acqulred

Our amortization of intangibles acquired includes the amortization of acquired patent rights from third
parties as well as the amortization of intangibles recorded as a result of our acquisition.of CDT Holdings plc in
1999. The amortization period for these assets is between five and ten years.

Comparison of Operating Expenses for Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

(in thousands, except percentages) : 2005 2004 % Change 2003 % Change
Operating Expenses - ‘ '
Research and development expenses ............. $16,129 $14,181 14%  $16,841 (16%)
Selling, general and administrative expenses . ...... 17,426 18,751 (7%) 12,769 47%
Amortization of intangibles acquired ............. 1,580 1,580 0% 1,625 (3%)
Total Operating Expenses ............. e $35,135 $34,512 2% $31,235 10%

Our research and development expenses increased by $1.9 million, or 14% from $14.2 mllhon in 2004 to
$16.1 million in 2005. The following factors caused this net increase:

_* anincrease in expense of $1.5 million due to a decrease in government grants from $1.6 million in 2004
to less than $0.1 million in 2005;

¢ anincrease of $1.0 million duetoa charge recorded in 2005 for the grant of restricted stock units under
our special bonus plan;

* an increase of $0.3 million due to increased long term research into possible new applications for our
P-OLED technology; and '

+ adecrease of $0.9 million due to the reimbursement of research expenses from our 50%-owned joint
venture, Sumation.

In addition to the $16.1 million expenditure on research and development in 2005, $2.9 million was incurred
on very similar activities but in support of revenue-generating projects and so was charged to cost of sales.

Our research and development expenses decreased by $2.6 million, or 16%, from $16.8 million in 2003 to
$14.2 million in 2004. The following factors caused this net decrease:

» adecrease in expense due to an increase of $0.5 million in govemment gra.nts from $1.1 million in 2003
to $1.6 million in 2004; :

* adecrease of $2.4 million due to the Litrex research and development expense which was included in
our consolidated results up to August 2003 but not in 2004; :

» anincrease of $1.0 million was due to research and development expenses of CDT Oxford which were
not included in our consolidated results in 2003 but are included in 2004; and

* adecrease of $0.7 million due to our July 2003 re-organization which resulted ina general reduction in
total research-and development expenditures due to the consolidation of our clean room activities to our
Technology Development Center. : v

In addition to the $14.2 million expenditure on research and development in 2004, $2.0 million was incurred.
on similar activities but in support of revenue-generating projects and so'was charged to cost of sales.
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Research and development expensus will continue to vary from quarter to quarter due to the specific
requirements of the pI‘O_]CCtS being camed out in any quarter. We anticipate that in excess of $8 million of our

research and development expenses in 2006 will be reimbursed by our 50%-owned joint venture Sumation.

Our selling, general and administrative expenses decreased by $1.4 million, or 6%, from $18.8 million in
2004 to $17.4 million in 2005. The following factors caused this decrease:

Our selling, general and administr;
2003 to $18.8 million in 2004. The foll

We expect our operating expenses

a decrease of $3.6 million due
under our special bonus plan,
plan;

to a charge of $2.2 million in 2005 for the grant of restricted stock units

as compared to the charge of $5.8 miltion in 2004 for grants under this

an increase of $1.6 million due to the impairment of promissory notes which were issued to us in 1999
by two parties that had acqulre’d shares of our common stock from us and the obligations under which

were secured by the stock; botl
in September 2005, and the pr

h parties defaulted on the promissory notes, which were due to be repaid
ymissory notes were effectively cancelled in December 2005, at which

time their aggregate face value exceeded the value of the stock by $1.6 million;

an increase of $0.6 million in our directors and officers insurance premiums as a result of our becoming

a public company;

a decrease of $1.0 nulhon inp
2005;

an increase of $1.2 million for‘
expenses for independent direc

a decrease of $0.2 million exp
maintenance costs in 2005 as c[

rofessional fees and consultancy costs in 2004 which were not repeated in

other costs assqéiated with being a pnblic company, including fees and
tors and the cost of additional professional advice; and

ense for the costs related to our line of credit, which reflects a full year of
ompared to the six months of such costs, plus initial start-up costs, in

2004 after the line of credit was established in July 2004.

ative expenses increased by $6. O rmlhon or 47%, from $12.8 m11110n in
owing factors caused this increase: ‘

an increase of $5.8 million dug to a charge in the fourth quarter of 2004 for the grant of restricted stock

units which included $5.0 milli

a decrease of $2.1 million due t

lion related to units granted to our CEO;

o the Litrex selling, general and administrative expense which was

included in our consolidated rﬁcsults in 2003 but is not included in 2004,

an increase of $0.2 million of :the increasé was due to the selling, general and administrative expenses of
CDT Oxford which were not ihcludcd in our consolidated results in 2003 but are included in 2004,

an increase of $0.7 million expense related to our line of credit; and

an increase of $1.4 million wa
professional fees.

s due primarily to increased patent filing costs, legal costs and other

to increase in 2006 due to our adoption of FAS 123R which will require

us to charge the fair value of stock opmons issued to employees to operating expenses as described in more detail

under “Critical Accounting Policies an

|

d Significant Developments and Estimates” below.

Our amortization of intangibles acquired remained constant at $1.6 million for 2005, 2004 and 2003. See
Note 2 of our financial statements for details of expected amortization of intangibles in future years.
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Other Income and Expense: Comparison for Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

(in thbusands, except percentages) ) 2005 2004 % Change 2003 % Change

Other Income / (Expense)
Equity in loss of affiliates ........................ $(3,802) $(2,546) 49% $(3,639) (30%)
Foreign currency transaction (loss) / gain .......... (790) 1,045 (176%) 1,603 (35%)
Gainon sale of Litrex .............. P 15,935 — — — —
Other (expense) /iNCOME .. .......vovvrneerenn.. (721) 210 (443%) — —
Interest income ....... S U ' 497 347 43% 415 (16%)
Interestexpense .............ciiiiiiiii.n, — 36) (100%) ©) 500%

Total Other Income / (Expense) ............. e $11,119 $ (980) $(1,627)

Equity in loss of affiliates: ~Equity in loss of CDT Oxford was recognized up until December 31, 2003. On
January 1, 2004, we adopted Financial Interpretation No. 46, revised December 2003, or FIN 46(R), and began
consolidating CDT Oxford and no further losses or profit from CDT Oxford were accounted for by the equity
method after this date. Equity in loss of Arborescent was recognized in 2004 and during this period the carrying
value of Arborscent fell to zero. We will only recognize further losses if we make additional investments in this
company. Equity in loss of Litrex was first recognized when Litrex ceased being a subsidiary in August 2003 due
to the sale of 50% of our equity stake and is no longer recognized after November 2005 when we sold our
remaining 50% equity stake. Equity in loss of Sumation began in November 2005 and losses corresponding to
approximately six weeks of operations are included in our results of operations for 2005. The most significant
component of equity in loss in 2006 is expected to be our 50% shares of the losses of Sumation. We expect this
loss to be significant in 2006, but the size of losses will reduce if sales of P-OLED materials increase during the
year. Sumation’s customers include not only our licensees that are in commercial production of P-OLED displays
but also other companies that are developing P-OLED technology. Therefore, Sumation has the opportunity to
generate significant revenues in advance of mass commercialization of P-OLED technology. Sumation funds a
significant portion of our research and development activities and we expect this reimbursement to exceed our
equity in loss of Sumation in future periods.

Foreign currency transaction (loss) / g_ain'result primarily from the remeasurement of assets and liabilities
in currencies other than the U. S. dollars. We expect to recognize gains on such remeasurements if the U. S.
dollar weakens versus the British pound and losses if it strengthens.

Gain on sale of Litrex includes a deferred gain when the first 50% of Litrex was sold in August 2003 and a
further gain when the second 50% was sold in November 2005. An additional gain of up to $1.0 million will be
recognized in 2006 to the extent to which the final portion of the purchase price is released from escrow which
we currently expect to be in November 2006.

Other (expense) / income is the unrealized >gain on the revaluation of forward currency contracts which we
have taken out in order to economically hedge future British pound expenses.

Interest income varies with our average cash balances and interest rates. We anticip‘ate that our average
cash balances in 2006 will be higher than in 2005 and, if interest rates do not fall, interest income will increase.

Interest expense in 2004 was in relation to borrowing under the terms of our credit facility. We do not
expect to make further loans under this facility in 2006.

Our benefit for income taxes increased by $0.2 million from $1.6 million in 2004 to $1.8 million in 2005,
having been $0.9 million in 2003. This benefit represents a payment made to us by the United Kingdom tax
authorities which permits expenses related to qualifying research and development expenditures to be
surrendered in return for a cash payment and an equivalent reduction in our tax losses carried forward. The
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amount reported in 2005 was higher than in 2004 due to higher expenditures on projects which were not funded
externally and, therefore, not eligible for|the tax benefit. The amount reclaimed in 2004 included $0.5 million
which related to 2003 and 2002 for Wthh the amounts reclaimed were recomputed and included in the 2004
figure. Adjusting for this amount, the re(f‘lmm for 2004 was lower than in 2003 due to ineligible expenditures
incurred in 2004 in support of revenue-generating or grant-aided projects being higher. We expect the amount
reclaimed with respect to 2006, to be lower than the claim which will be made with respect to 2005, because the
majority of our expenditures incurred on’P OLED materials development will be funded by our 50% joint

venture partner, Sumation, and will not, therefore be eligible for this tax benefit.

As a result of the variations descnbed above, our loss before cumulative effect of accounting change
decreased to $13.8 million in 2005 from $22 6 million in 2004, having been $22.8 million in 2003. Additionally,
in 2004 we booked a $12.2 million loss auxs a cumulative effect of accounting change due to the consolidation of
CDT Oxford as described below. In 200% and 2004 we recognized $6.8 million and $38.8 million of accretion of
preferred stock. The 2004 figure related primarily to the conversion of the preferred stock to common stock in
connection with our December 2004 initial public offering.

- The $12.2 million cumulative effec‘t? of accounting change related to a write-off of $14.2 million of
in-process research and development, le$s $2.0 million which had already been amortized in 2002. This charge is
described in more detail in Note 3 to ourﬁ audited financial statements. One significant research project into
dendrimer material development was acquired in this transaction. This project was at an early stage of
development and it was our intention that further developments would involve combining these materials with
other materials which we were developing. At the time of acquisition, these materials had lifetimes (measured at

1

100 candela per meter squared) of approgumately 1,000 hours and we estimated that lifetimes of approximately

100,000 hours would need to be achleveﬁl in order for these materials to be suitable for all commercial
applications, although some commercml‘apphcatrons would be possible with lower lifetimes. We expected that
materials incorporating the acquired techpology would require approximately five more years of development
work prior to commercialization. The deyelopment work requires-a team of chemists working on material
development, supported by engineers and physicists testing the performance of the developed materials in
display devices. As with any acquisition,of development stage technology, there is a risk that the acquired
technology will not, ultimately, lead to commercial revenues, or that development time will be longer than had
been previously estimated, but progress to date has been in line with our expectations. We believe that access to

this technology has increased the likelihood that we, in conjunction with our materials licensees, will develop a

new generation of high efficiency P-OL]%D materials. If this work does not lead to projected revenues, our
financial results may be adversely impacted. However, other P-OLED materials are being developed using other
technological approaches and, therefore,we do not believe that the failure of this work would, in itself, have a
material adverse effect on our financial Eerfonnance or liquidity. Since we acquired this technology, we believe
that longer service lifetimes at higher brightnesses will be required for large scale commercial products. Our rate
of technical progress has also been faster than expected. Therefore, we continue to believe that we can meet our
target of having commercial P-OLED me‘lterlals based on the acquired technology, available commerciaily
within the timeframe originally envrsaged Commercialisation of such materials will be through our 50%-owned
joint venture, Sumation. \ :

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since our inception, the primary source of our funding has been the sale of our equity securities. From 1999
until our initial public offering in December 2004, $216.4 million was raised through private placements of our
common and preferred equity securities.|[Approximately 50% of these proceeds were used to fund the acquisition
of CDT Holdings plc in 1999 and the remaining 50% was used to fund our operations. Through October 2002, all
equity raised was through sales of shares of our class A common stock and class B common stock. In December

2002, a preferred stock funding round ra%sed $15.0 million from the sale of shares of our series A convertible
preferred stock and series B convertible preferred stock. In connection with this $15.0 million investment, a

further $10.0 million which had been invested in common stock in July 2002 was exchanged for shares of our

43




series B convertible preferred stock in December 2002. In addition, $6.4 million, net of expenses, of which $4.2
million in consideration was in the form of cash and $2.2 million was in the form of shares of our common stock,
was invested in shares of our series B convertible preferred stock in the first quarter of 2003. We have three
strategic investors, DuPont, Sumitomo Chemical and Toppan, who, in the aggregate, have invested $20.0 million
of cash for shares of our common stock.

Approximately 74% of sales of our common and preferred stock described above have come from our
principal stockholders (affiliates of Kelso and Hillman Capital), 9% from sales to strategic investors (DuPont,
Sumitomo Chemical and Toppan), 16% from non-cash consideration (acquisition of shares in CDT Holding plc,
Opsys Limited and Litrex) and 1% from other stockholders.

In December 2004, we raised $30.0 million, or $25.0 million net of expenses, through an initial public
offering of our common stock on the Nasdaq National Market. Immediately prior to this offering all of our
redeemable preferred stock was converted to common stock on terms described in Note 9 of our financial
statements.

In December 2005 we raised $17.5 million, or $16.3 million net of expenses, through a private placement of
our stock, which was subsequently registered through a registration statement on Form S-3 which was declared
effective in February 2006. Although we have no current plans to raise further cash from equity offerings, on
March 9, 2006, our board of directors authorized us to file a registration statement on Form S-3 with the SEC to
cover the proposed “shelf” registration of an aggregate of approximately 6.5 million shares of our common stock.
The registration statement is expected to cover up to approximately 3.9 million shares that may be issued and
sold by us and up to approximately 2.6 million of outstanding shares that may be sold by certain selling
stackholders, including some of our affiliates, although the number of shares to be covered by the registration
statement, including the allocation of the shares to be sold by us and the selling stockholders, is preliminary and
may be changed.-We expect to file the registration statement with the SEC by the end of April 2006. Once the
registration statement becomes effective, we and the selling stockholders would be able to offer and sell these
shares from time to time in response to market conditions or other circumstances. This Annual Report on Form
10-K does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to purchase any securities.

(in thousands ) ' 2005 2004 2003
Summary Cash Flow
N o T O $(13,815) $(34,785) $(22,777)
NoOn-Cash IteImIS . .. .o i e e e 417 27,598 11,849
Changes in operating assets and liabilities .. ........................ (1,531) 1,055 (3,208)
Net cash used in operating activities . ..................... e $(15,763) $ (6,132) $(14,136)
Acquisition of fixed and intangible assets,net....................... $ (3,121) $ (2,397) $ (3,633)
Acquisition of equity ItErests ... .....voutit e 2,737) 16 (128)
Disposal of equity interests .. .........ccooiiiniiiiiiii . 9,740 — 12,091
Net cash generated by/(used in) investing activities .................... $ 3,882 $(2,381) $ 8,330
Cash generated by financing activities . .............................. $ 16,252 $25005 $ 4,234
Net increase / (decrease)incash ............... ... ... ccviiiirn.... $ 4371 $16492 $ (1,572)
Cash and equivalents at December 31 ............................... $ 31,263 $26,892 $ 10,400

Net cash used in operations increased by $9.6 million from $6.1 million in 2004 to $15.8 million in 2005
due to:

* an increase of $2.9 million due to a lower gross margin in 2005 compared with 2004; even though
revenues increased from 2004 to 2005, aggregate gross margins were lower due to the high proportion
of revenues in 2005 which related to lower margin products;

44




* anincrease of $1.8 million duefto higher operating expense; reported operating expenses were $0.6
million higher in 2005 than in 2004 but there was, in addition, a $1.2 million decrease in non-cash
operating expenses such as stock compensation expense, depreciation, liabilities settled for stock and
impairment charges;

» an increase of $1.8 million due|to recognized losses on foreign exchange of $0.8 million in 2005
" compared with a gain of $1.0 million in 2004;

1

« an increase of $0.9 million due“to revaluation of forward exchange contracts which resulted in a net loss

of $0.7 million in 2005 compar‘ed with a net gain of $0.2 million in 2004;

»  $0.2 million decrease due to higher interest income in 2005 compared with 2004;

|
+  $0.2 million decrease due to a lLigher benefit being accrued for income taxes in 2005 compared with
2004; and

»  $2.6 million increase due to changes in operating assets and liabilities, including a decrease in our
deferred revenues. |

Net cash used in operations in 2004 was less than used in 2003 because we were no longer required to fund

Litrex in 2004 and our payables and def“erred revenue balances were higher at the end of 2004 than they had been
at the end of 2003, Until August 2003, »‘nyfe provided 100% of the funding of Litrex, but after we sold a 50%
equity stake to Ulvac, a Japanese company, in August 2003, Ulvac took over primary responsibility for the

funding of Litrex.

Net capital expenditures increased ‘from $2.4 million in 2004 to $3.1 million in 2003, having been $3.6
million in 2003. In 2005 we purchased cathode deposition equipment for $1.1 million to develop our top
emission technology as well as purchasiung additional ink jet printing equipment and in 2003 we incurred
expenditures in relation to the relocation and consolidation of our clean room facilities. We believe that these
levels of capital expenditure will be repn“esentative of future years.

In 2005, we used $2.7 million for tpe acquisition of equity interests in Add-Vision ($1.1 million) and our
50%-owned joint venture, Suimation ($1.6 million). We received $12.1 million in relation to our disposal of 50%
of Litrex in 2003 and an additional $9.7Ji!million in 2005 when we disposed of the final 50%. We expect to
receive a further payment of $1.0 million in 2006 when funds currently held in escrow are released. We expect to
provide further funding for Sumation du{n’ng 2006 and 2007 and have committed to providing $8 million if
required. The amount of funding required by Sumation will be dependent on the extent to which Sumation is able
to fund its activities from sales of P-OLED materials. Sumation funds our research and development activities

and we expect to receive more in reimbl“flrsements from Sumation than we will pay to Summation to meet our
equity funding obligations. Further details of these investments are described in “Our Equity Investments” below.
We expect, based on our internal fc}érecast and assumptions relating to our operations (including, among
others, assumptions regarding our working capital requirements, the progress of our research and development
efforts and revenues) that we have sufﬁé:ient cash to meet our obligations for at least the next twelve months. We
have a line of credit from Lloyds TSB bank that we entered into in July 2004 providing for a maximum amount
of $15.0 million, which was not drawn 1111p0n at December 31, 2004 and of which $0.5 million may not be
borrowed. No drawings were made on this facility in 2005. This line of credit is available for a minimum of one
year, renewable for two further years, aI:ﬁd is secured by a letter of credit issued by Wells Fargo Bank, which is
secured by our patents, trademarks and copyrights and associated license revenues. In addition to certain fixed
fees payable regardless of whether or nc‘ t the facility is utilized and which amount to approximately 3% of the
total amount of the facility per year, we|will be liable to pay interest and charges of 3.75% above the U.S. dollar
London Inter-Bank Offer Rate on any drawing under this facility. Under the terms of this facility, any draw down
requires us to certify that we continue to satisfy certain financial covenants: specifically our Consolidated Total
Net Worth, as defined, must exceed $75.0 million, and our current assets less current liabilities, but excluding

deferred revenue, must not be less than ‘Fﬁnus $15.0 million. We are currently in compliance with these
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covenants and the facility is available for us to draw upon. In addition, we are required to report the filing of any
new patents, trademarks and copyrights and add those to the existing intellectual property portfolio which has
been assigned as security to IPI Financial Services which arranged the letter of credit. We are obligated to
maintain the validity of all of our patents and only to license such patents to third parties under terms which are
within the parameters of our customary licensing practices or to which IPI Financial Services has provided its
consent. We are currently renegotiating more favorable terms for this facility and expect to extend the facility,
but if we do not conclude these negotiations on terms acceptable to us we will terminate this facility.

We have no outstanding borrowings under our credit facility and are not currently planning to draw down
under this facility.

Comparison of Balance Sheet at December 31, 2005 with December 31, 2004
Major variances on balance sheet lines at December 31, 2005 compared to December 31, 2004 were:

+ an increase in Cash from $26.9 million to $31.3 million due to raising of funds from the sale of Litrex
and sale of our securities less cash required for operating activities and acquisition of fixed assets and
equity interests;

» an increase in Accounts receivable from $1.5 million to $2.3 million primarily because a $1 million
payment which had been due in December 2005 was not in fact received until January 2006;

¢ adecrease in Taxes receivable from $4.0 million to $2.0 million because the 2004 figure included
amounts due in relation to 2003 for which payment was delayed due to a review of our tax returns by the
United Kingdom tax authorities;

» adecrease in Prepaid expense and other current assets from $6:9 million to $2.5 million due to the
completion of major revenue-generating projects in 2005 for which associated costs had been accounted
for on this line at the end of 2004;

+ areduction in the net value of our Property and equipment from $16.0 million to $13.6 million due to
the continued depreciation of our Technology Development Center;

* areduction in the value of our Marketable securities from $1.2 million to $0.6 million due to a reduction
in the quoted price of the stock concerned. We also moved this line from current to non-current assets
during the year due to a change in our intentions with regard to this stock;

+ areduction in our Investment in affiliates from $2.6 million to $1.9 million because we disposed of our
equity stake in Litrex and acquired equity stakes in Add-Vision and Sumation;

+ areduction in Intangible assets from $4.5 million to $2.9 million due to the continued amortization of
those assets;

* adecrease in Accounts payable and accrued expenses from $8.6 million to $7.9 million as per the detail
"~ in Note 7 to our audited financial statements;

* adecrease in current deferred revenue from $6.9 million to $1.3 million due to the recognition of
revenue on a number of large projects in 2005;

* adecrease in non-current deferred revenue from $0.8 million to zero due to the reclassification of this
balance to current deferred revenue since we expect to recognize it in 2006; and

» adecrease in Deferred proceeds on sale of subsidiary stock from $5.8 million to zero due to the sale of
Litrex and recognition of these proceeds in 2005.

Our Equity Investments

In November 2004, we purchased $1.1 million of common stock of MED in conjunction with an initial
public offering of MED in the U.K. Following the consummation of MED’s initial public offering on
December 1, 2004, a license related payment of $0.9 million became due to us from MED and a further payment
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of $0.5 million which would have been due in 2003 also became due immediately. Both of these payments have
been made to us. As of the consummation of the initial public offering of MED, our equity interest in MED will
represent less than 5% of the overall eq uity capitalization of that company. We reported this asset as a
marketable security initially in our cur‘fent assets, but management has re-evaluated the designation of this
investment and determined that it is ngw a non-current asset because of our closer relationship with MED during
2005, including the provision of consultancy and other services. We have no current intention to sell our equity
stake in MED. The stock price is quotehd in British pounds and we revalue these securities at the end of each
quarter. Any gain or loss due to changes in the stock price and any gain or loss due to changes fluctuations in the
US dollar to British pound exchange rate are reported in other comprehensive income. The value of this asset at

December 31, 2005 was $0.6 million.

In March 20035, we invested $1.0 million in Add-Vision, a company located in California that researches
and develops flexible, low cost, low resolution displays. We also granted Add-Vision a fully paid-up license to
our intellectual property in return for additional equity. At December 31, we held a 42% ownership interest in
Add-Vision and a 31% voting interest.| Add-Vision may require additional funding in the future and we may
contribute to such funding. The carrying value of our investment in Add-Vision at December 31, 2005 was $1.1
million. Since we only own preferred stock in Add-Vision and do not own any common stock, we account for
this investment using the cost method é.nd evaluate each year whether or not the carrying value should be
impaired. On December 31, 2005, we fgerformed an impairment evaluation and determined that, since there had
not not been any events or changes in circumstances that might have a significant adverse effect on the fair value

of this investment, our carrying value v‘lvas not impaired.

\
| .
In November 2003, we invested $’1.6 million in our 50%-owned joint venture, Sumation. The other 50% of
Sumation is owned by our licensee, Sumitomo Chemical. Sumitomo Chemical had previously purchased the
Lumation® P-OLED material business“of Dow Chemical and rights to use the acquired intellectual property have

been licensed to Sumation, together wi”‘th intellectual property rights from Sumitomo Chemical and ourselves and
access to dedicated research teams at b”oth Sumitomo Chemical and our facilities. We expect to continue
providing funding to Sumation in future periods. The carrying value of our investment in Sumation at

December 31, 2005 was $0.8 million, xf;vhich constitutc;s the amount initially invested less our share of the losses.
o i}

|
Foreign Exchange and Cash Managen“z‘ent
During 2004 we entered into a nul‘t’nber of forward exchange contracts to sell U. S. dollars and buy British
pounds in order to fund our U. K. operating expenses during 2005. We entered into fixed rate contracts for each

of the months from January to April 2005 for an aggregate amount of $6.0 million at exchange rates ranging

from 1.83 to 1.85. We entered into furtluher contracts for each of the months from May to December with at an
exchange rate of no higher than 1.96 and for an aggregate amount of $14.0 million. Under the terms of the later

contracts, if the spot exchange rate as c?:ach contract matures is higher than 1.96, or the protection rate, we will

sell the U. S. dollars at a rate of 1.96. I“f the spot exchange rate as each contract matures is lower than 1.96 we
will sell the half of the contracted U.-S! dollars at a rate of 1.96 and half at the spot exchange rate. The purpose of
these transactions is to limit the risk of adverse exchange rate fluctuations while retaining some benefit in the

event of favorable fluctuations.

In 2005 we entered into further c?n&acts for.each of the months January to September 2006 with protection
rates of 1.79 and 1.91 and for an aggr_eégate amount of $15.8 million. The contracts outstanding at December 31,
2005, were valued as a liability of $0.5 million.

We may enter into similar Lransaqtions in the future. These contracts were not designated as hedging

instruments for accounting purposes and, therefore, gains and losses are recognized immediately in earnings
during the period.
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Our cash investments are held in bank deposits, certificates of deposits, fixed and floating rate notes,
investment grade commercial paper and government securities. In February 2006, we outsourced responsibility
for managing our cash investments and foreign exchange conversion requirements to Schroder Investment
Management Limited, a professional treasury management firm. -

Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Developments and Estimeites

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on our
consolidated financial statements. The preparation of these statements requires us to make certain estimates and
judgments that affect the statement of operations, balance sheet, cash flow or disclosures relating to contingent
assets or liabilities. Our actual results might, under different assumptions and conditions, differ from our
estimates. Significant estimates include the valuation of our IP, lives of our long-lived assets and estimates
related to the delivery of know-how and services under technology services contracts. The following is a
discussion of our most critical policies as well as the estimates and judgments involved.

Revenue Recognition

Our revenues derive from license fees and royalties due under license agreements, payments due under
various technology development agreements, sales of our own equipment and sales of equipment and services by
Litrex through August 2003. Non-refundable license fees are recognized when they fall due and when collection
can be reasonably assured, providing that the license has been delivered and where we have no ongoing
obligation under that license. Once a license has been delivered, royalties are recorded as revenue when they
become receivable and collection is reasonably assured. Where an extended obligation does exist, upfront license
fees are amortized, generally on a straight—line basis, over the pen'od of that obligation.

Revenue for the provmon of technology development services is recognized as those services are delivered
and revenue for transfers of know-how once the corresponding documentation or electronic records have been
delivered. We enter into a number of Technology Services and Development contracts which involve multiple
elements including (i) provision of services, (ii) the transfer of know-how or (iii) the supply of equipment or
polymer inks. We recognize revenue on a straight line basis over the duration of arrangements that involve the
delivery of multiple elements where no individual element qualifies as a separate unit of accounting. In the event
that delivery of all elements is not completed over the projected duration our revenues could be impacted. Under
equipment supply contracts, we seek written confirmation of acceptance by the customer and recognize revenue
after such acceptance has been received, any final payment has been invoiced and collectibility is reasonably
assured.

Contracts may include provision for us to provide a specified amount of support after the end of the term of
the project plan. The fair value of this post-contract consultancy can be objectively determined based on the rate
we charge third parties for similar services, since it can be quantified as a specific number of days of support
from us. In these cases, revenue for the post-contract consultancy is deferred until either the support is delivered
or the obligation to provide the support expires. When contracts involve us devoting technology development
effort to projects, revenue under these contracts is amortized over the life of the contract on a straight-line basis
as the associated costs are relatively consistent from period to period. ‘

We report revenues in the categories Licensing and Royalties, Technology Development and Services,
Equipment Sales and, up until August 2003, Litrex revenues. Where single contracts include revenues for more
than one of these categories such revenues are allocated to the respective lines based upon the relative fair value
of each element delivered.

Basis of Presentation

Until November 2005, we had a 50% equity interest in a related party, Litrex, a developer and supplier of
ink jet printing equipment which can be used in the manufacture of P-OLED displays. Litrex was a subsidiary of
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our company from November 2001 unti -August 2003, and was consolidated into our financial statements
between those dates. In August 2003, we sold 50% of our interest in Litrex to Ulvac. Since August 2003, 50% of
the net losses of Litrex have been report];ed by us using the equity method. We sold our remaining 50% equity
stake in Litrex to Ulvac in November 2005

We acquired a 16% equity interest “m CDT Oxford Limited in October 2002. CDT Oxford carries out

research in high efficiency P-OLED ma%erlals and was 84% owned by Opsys Limited. In December 2004 we
acquired the remaining 84% of CDT Oxford. We have had full management control over CDT Oxford since
October 2002 and have been responmblé for funding its operations since that time. Until December 2003, we
accounted for 100% of the results of thlé company in a manner similar to the equity method. Commencing
January 1, 2004, we consolidated CDT prord as a subsidiary pursuant to the terms of FIN No. 46(R),
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entmes Under the terms of the October 2002 transaction agreement, call
and put options were in place, which determined how we would acquire the remaining 84% of CDT Oxford, or,
alternatively, if certain conditions are m'et 100% of the stock of Opsys Limited, in either case for a consideration
of 678,595 shares of our class A common stock. In order to consolidate CDT Oxford effective January 1, 2004,
we included those shares on our balancé sheet as “Non-controlling interest—CDT Oxford,” valued at the October
2002 fair value of that stock. We have performed a valuation of CDT Oxford as of October 2002 in order to
fairly allocate the assets and liabilities as if CDT Oxford had been acquired in a business combination and the
fair value of CDT Oxford was the full prlce payable, including the actual price paid in October 2002 for 16% of
the equity and the value of the 678,595 shares which were to be issued when the put or call option was exercised.
Under the terms of the Transaction Angeement we would only acquire Opsys Limited, rather than the remaining
84% of CDT Oxford, in the event that Opsys Limited had no significant assets other than its shareholding in

CDT Oxford and its liabilities were less than $1.25 million.

h

Subsequent to our original agreement with Opsys in October 2002, certain dlsputes arose between Opsys
and ourselves which were settled by a Settlcment and Amendment Agreement, pursuant to which we acquired
100% of the shares of Opsys Limited 1n‘ December 2004 by the issuance of 797,695 shares of our common stock.
At the time of this acquisition, Opsys had liabilities of $1.6 million which we assumed. 19,736 shares of our
common stock were issued to two formgr directors of Opsys in settlement of $0.2 million of these liabilities.
Most of the remaining $1.4 million of these liabilities were paid by us in cash during 2005: The amended and
restated Settlement and Amendment Ag’reement provides for an escrow of approximately 53% of the shares
issuable to the Opsys shareholders against certain contingent liabilities and the possibility that other liabilities
will emerge. Pursuant to the escrow alréngements thls €sCrow was reduced to approximately 25% in December
2005. :

In the aggregate, 817,431 shares of our common stock were issued to the shareholders of Opsys and to the )
escrow agent in December 2004 in con]uncuon with the Opsys transaction described above. Based on the initial
public offering price of $12.00 per shar‘e the value of that stock was $9.8 million which was $7.2 million less
than the amount recorded upon the 1mt1al consolidation of CDT Oxford in January 2004 Accordingly, goodwxll
and equity were reduced by this amount. .

ﬂ

The functional currcncy of the CD‘T group is the U. S. dollar but a substant1al proportion of transactlons are
denominated in the British pound and other currencies, In particular more than three quarters of our operating
expenses are denommated in British polunds During each accounting period we recognize exchange gains and
losses due to non-U. S. dollar hablhtles‘ and receivables being settled at exchange rates which differ from those at
which the transactions were originally booked and due to the revaluatlon of non-US dollar denominated assets

and liabilities at the end of each accoun”tmg period.

We have glven retroactive effect to a 0.585 1807- for-one reverse stock split thch took place immediately
prior to our initial public offering in December 2004.

Valuation of Goodwill

Goodwill is included in the balance sheet as:a result of our acquisition of the UK. members of the CDT
group in 1999 and the consolidation of CDT Oxford in 2004. We perform an annual impairment test on the value
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of goodwill at December 31 and, to date, have concluded that no impairment is required. For the purposes of this
impairment test we have concluded that the CDT group is one reporting unit. This impairment test includes an
element of subjective judgment with regard to the future commercial prospects for P-OLED technology.

Valuation of Intangible Assets

We have not impaired the value of certain in-licensed IP, which is valued (net of accumulated amortization) at
$0.8 million as of December 31, 2005 and is being amortized at a rate of $0.25 million per quarter. The licensor has
advised us that the license of this IP has terminated, on grounds which we believe are not well founded. The licensor
has been in negotiation with us with a view to resolving this dispute in such a way that we would retain our rights to
the intellectual property. We believe that this dispute will be resolved satisfactorily without recourse to legal action.
In the event that these discussions are not successful, we could incur material legal costs in protecting this license.
In the event that the license is not reinstated we will write-off this asset. We have licensed this technology to one’
licensee and may be liable for damages in the event that this license is not reinstated.

However, although we believe that there is some potential to license this intellectual property, we do not
believe that it is a critical component of our portfolio and the loss of this license will not have a material impact
on our future financial performance.

Stock-Based Compensation

As explained in Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements, we have elected to follow Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 257) and related
interpretations in accounting for stock options through December 31, 2005. Accordingly, other than certain
grants at less than fair value, we have recognized no compensation expense with respect to options granted to
employees. We account for options and warrants issued to non-employees based on the fair value of the options
and warrants granted, as is required under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123”) and EITF 96-18.

Effective January 1, 2006, we will adopt the SFAS 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS
123R”), which replaces SFAS123 and supercedes APB 25, and will record compensation expense with respect to
unvested stock options using the modified prospective method. We intend to continue using the Black-Scholes
model to calculate the fair value of stock option awards. Prior to December.2004, we issued some options which
could only vest if a specified rate of return was made by our largest shareholders but, since December 2004, no
such conditions have applied to any of our stock option awards. We will use similar assumptions to those we
have used previously when applying this model with the exception that, instead of basing our volatility
assumption solely on the historic volatility of stocks comparable to ours, we will use historic volatility of
comparable stocks and, in due course, our own stock as a guide and will additionally consult with a professional
advisor to assist us in making a reasonable determination of expected future volatility.

‘We have made no modifications to the terms of any stock option awards prior to the adoption of SFAS
123R. We will continue to calculate vesting using the straight line method over the requisite service period.
Compensation expense related to stock options, based on amounts in our pro forma disclosures in Note 2 of our
financial statements, was approximately $0.5 million in 2005 and $0.6 million in 2004. We expect compensation
expense in related to stock options to be higher in 2006 future years unless the volatility of our stock falls
significantly.

In adopting SFAS 123R we will take account of projected future stock option and restricted stock unit
forfeitures when calculating stock option compensation expense which was not included in determining the pro
forma expense discussed above.

SFAS 123R will also apply to restricted stock units issued pursuant to our special bonus plan which is
described below. We have charged the fair value of these units to compensation expense over their vesting period
and do not expect the application of SFAS 123R to have a material impact on the expense recorded in relation to
these restricted stock units in future periods but there may be a cumulative effect due to estimated forfeitures.
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We do not expect the cumulative effect of accounting change with respect to the adoption of SFAS 123R to

be significant.

\
In 2004, we allocated awards under our special bonus plan to certain officers and employees. These awards
were made from a bonus pool with a value of $14.4 million, based on the initial public offering price for our

common stock of $12.00 per share. All

Vawards under this plan made with respect to our initial public offering

were made in restricted stock units representmg a right to receive, in the aggregate, 1,200,000 shares of our
common stock. Such awards will vest in three equal installments on each of the first three anniversaries of the

public offering. However, if Kelso sells,
awards will vest in full upon such sale. W

! in the aggregate, more than 25% of its shares of our common stock, such

We are expensing the value of these awards over a three-year period

commencing December 2004, subject to acceleration in the event of a Kelso sale.

Approximately 85% of the awards
insurance tax, which is currently 12.8%)

‘ymade under this plan will be subject to U.K. employer’s national

of the value of the awards and which would be payable by us based on

the market value of the stock on the date it becomes available for sale. The award to our chief executive officer,

representing 35% of the bonus pool, or

fr20 000 restricted stock units with a vatue of $5.0 million at the initial

public offering price of $12.00 per share, will vest whether or not he remains employed by us unless he is
terminated for cause (as defined in his employment agreement), his employment agreement is not extended for

cause or if he terminates his employment in circumstances that justify termination for cause. The value of this
award, plus the U.K. employer’s national insurance tax of 12.8% payable by us, was expensed upon the
consummation of our initial public offerrng The remaining 65% of the bonus pool is being expensed over the
three-year vesting period. The accrued charge for the U.K. employer’s national insurance tax will depend on the

market price of our common stock when it is delivered and will be subject to variability upon fluctuations in our

stock price until such time as all shares
this plan. The U. K. National Insurance

of our common stock have been delivered to recipients of awards under
will have to be paid at the time the stock is issued to the award holders.

The table below shows the actual and expected expense amounts in relation to these restricted stock units,

assuming that the accelerated vesting co

Period

Q4 2007

ndmon described above does not apply:

U.K. National
Expense Charge Insurance Accrual
based on $12 per based on 12.8% of
share IPO price (1) 85% of the RSUs (2)
(in thousands) (in thousands)
............................ $ 5,134 $ 623
............................ 768 107)
............................ 770 29
............................ 765 (30)
............................ 784 165
............................ 5,397 (3) 378 (4)
............................ 686 48
............................ $14,304 $1,106

(1) Fixed accounting treatment applie<

vary with share price movements. l
The accrual for U. K. National Insurance will be recalculated at the end of each quarter based on the closing

@

for the charge related to the restricted stock units—this charge will not

price of our stock on the last day o‘f each quarter. Figures for future periods in this column are based on the

closing price on December 31, 200

5 of $ 8.50. If the price appreciates, future charges will be

commensurately higher and vice versa.

3)
“

$771 per quarter.
$54 per quarter.

‘We may issue additional stock opti

ons or restricted stock units in future periods.
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Equity Investments

In November 2005 we acquired a 50% equity interest in Sumation, a developer and supplier of P-OLED
materials in solid and ink form. We account for this investment using the equity method.

We have an equity investments in our related party, Arborescent 2 Limited, of 40% of the outstanding
equity. It is accounted for by the equity method and is loss making. We report a percentage of the losses using
the equity method. Since our share of the losses now exceeds the carrying value of this investment, we no longer
report further losses. ‘

We held a 50% equity investment in Litrex Corporation until November 4, 2005, and accounted for this
investment by the equity method until that date.

We hold a 42% ownership interest and have 31% voting rights in Add-Vision due to our ownership of its
preferred stock. We do not own any common stock of Add Vision and, therefore, account for this investment by
the cost method and annually review the value of the investment for possible impairment.

We have investments of less than 5% of the issued share capital of Plastic Logic Limited and MED. Plastic
Logic is an early stage private company and we do not attribute any value to this investment, which was acquired
pursuant to a cross license agreement between Plastic Logic and ourselves. MED is a publicly listed company
and we value our investment at market value as a non-current marketable security.

Research and Development Re-imbursement

Since November 20035, a significant proportion of our research and development effort is being funded by
our 50%-owned joint venture, Sumation, pursuant to a contract research agreement. We do not record income
from this agreement as revenue because (i) Sumation is a related party and (ii) this funding is provided as a
re-imbursement of actual costs incurred rather than as a fixed fee for meeting contractual commitments. We net
the value of of this re-imbursement off our operating expenses, except for the 5% mark-up on actual expenditures
which is netted off in the statement of operations line “Equity in loss of affiliates”.

Income Taxes

We are hable for francmsc taxes to Delaware, our state of incorporation. Such taxes have been included in the
provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003. For the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, we recorded a tax benefit primarily due to a research and development tax
credit. Our U.K. subsidiaries are eligible to participate in the U.K.’s research and development tax credit program.
Under this program, small and medium sized enterprises, such as us, are permitted a deduction in taxable profits of
150% of the amount of certain research and development expenditures (primarily salaries, salary related costs and
consumables used in research and development activities). This deduction may be surrendered for a cash payment
of 16% of the total deduction for those years during which we sustain a loss. Cambridge Display Technology
Limited, our principal operating subsidiary, and CDT Oxford have both claimed such cash payments for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 and accrued for the claim to be made with respect to the year ended
December 31, 2005 which will be made in 2006. If our revenues increase such that we no longer satisfy the criteria
to be considered a small to medium sized enterprise (including, for example, annual revenues not exceeding
40.0 million Euro), we will no longer be eligible to claim any cash payments for future periods and our permitted
deduction will be reduced to 125% of quahfymg research and development expendltures

The tax benefit we show for 2005 is based on our estimate of what our tax return will show—it is possible
that the actual figures will differ once the final calculations have been made.

Our deferred tax assets are comprised primarily of net operating loss carryforwards. At December 31, 2005,
we had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $82 million. These loss carryforwards may be used to
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offset taxable income in future penods‘ reducing the amount of taxes we might otherwise be required to pay. We
have calculated the value of our defen?d tax asset as $27.6 million at December 31, 2005 but, due to a lack of a
history of generating taxable income, we recorded a valuation allowance equal to 100% of this amount.

Off-Balance_: Sheet Arrangements

We have no material off-balance gheet arrangements other than those that are discussed under “Contractual
Obligations”.

: . ‘ |
Contractual Obligations |

As of December 31, 2005, we hadjthe following contractual commitments, some of which are not recorded
as liabilities on our financial statements:

| Payments Due by Perio;i

\ Less than >5
(in thousands) Total 1 year 1-3years 3-5 years years
Operatingleases . ................. \ ................... $4936 $ 617 $1,234 $1,234 $1,851
Contracted capital expenditures .. ... “ ................... 69 69 — — —
Sponsored research ............... b 2,148 662 1,062 424  —
Pension liability .................. ‘ ................... 500 — — 500 —

TOtl . .o b $7,653 $1,348 $2,296 $2,158 $1,851

We have a number of contractual comrmtments to provide services, perform research or transfer know-how.
In'most cases, we receive revenue wh1ch at least, covers our costs of fulfilling our obligations under those
contracts and, except as detailed below, ‘as of December 31, 2005, none had a term which extended beyond the
end of 2006. ]’\

Under the terms of a contract betwéen Sumitomo Chemical and us, we are obligated to fund our 50%-owned
joint venture, Sumation. Our funding obhgat1on for 2006 and 2007 is up to $8 million. Under the terms of a
contract research arrangement with Sumation we are required to provide the equivalent of approximately 35 full
service scientists and engineers to work ona development project, plus device fabrication and testing services at
our technology development centre, for ﬁn initial two-year period which will end in March 2007. Costs related to
this contract have not been included in th‘e table above.

|
Under the terms of a contract betwe'en Merck OLED and us, we are obligated to provide the equivalent of

10 full service scientists and engineers to work on research and development projects related to P-OLED

materials until December 2006. We rece1‘ve royalties from Merck OLED based on revenues from all of Merck
OLED’s sales of P-OLED materials, whether or not those materials were developed by our project team.
Through the end of 2005, the royalties received from Merck OLED were less than our costs of funding the
project team. Since royalties will contmde to be payable after the obligation to provide research services has
concluded, we expect that the contract w%ll be profitable. Accordingly, we have not provided for a loss on this
contract and have not included the costs in the above table. We are currently renegotiating the terms of this

contract.

Litrex led a consortium which is dex”eloping ink jet printing technology under a project which is funded by
the U.S. government. Up until August 2003, when we sold 50% of our equity interest in Litrex, $1.5 million had
been received by Litrex in grant funding for that project, of which $1.0 million was passed on to other
consortium members. Under the terms of|this arrangement, should Litrex be sold to a non-U.S. company,
previously received grant income may have to be reimbursed. We sold our remaining 50% equity interest in
Litrex in November 2005 to a non-U.S. company. In the event that Litrex had been obligated to repay any or all
|
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of the $1.5 million, we had agreed that we would reimburse the amount which had to be repaid. We have accrued
$0.1 million with respect to this liability and, in February 2006, Litrex came to an agreement whereby no
reimbursement will be required. We have paid Litrex $0.1 million as a contribution to their costs associated with
this agreement.

We believe that we will have sufficient resources to meet these commitments from our existing capital
resources and future revenues.

In December 2005, we entered into stock purchase agreements with a number of investors. Pursuant to these
agreements, we were obligated to file a registration statement with the SEC and use our best efforts to have that
registration statement declared effective within prescribed deadlines. Failure to meet these obligations would
have made us liable for penalty payments of up to 1% of the value of the stock purchased each month, We filed
the required registration statement in January 2006 and it was declared effective in February 2006. We did not
accrue any liability with respect to this arrangement in our balance sheet at December 31, 2005.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE 'AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

A substantial majority of our licensing revenues are denominated in U.S. dollars. These licensing revenues
include royalties based on revenues or production costs of our licensees that may be denominated in U.S. dollars
or other currencies. Where such revenues or productions costs of our licensees are denominated in other
currencies, they are converted to U.S. dollars for the purpose of calculating any licensing royalties due to us. Our
licensing royalty revenues may decrease as a result of any appreciation of the U.S. dollar against these other
currencies.

The majority of our current expenditures are incurred in British pounds in order to fund our operations in the
United Kingdom. If the U. S. dollar depreciates versus the British pound, additional U.S. dollars will be required
to fund our operations in the United Kingdom. For example, a change in the U.S. dollar to British pound .
exchange rate from 1.8 to 1.9 would, at the current rate of expenditure, cost us approximately an additional $1
million per year.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Our consolidated financial statements and the rélevant notes to’ those statements are included in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K beginning on page F-1.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

On November 28, 2005, we requested Emst & Young LLP, or E&Y, to consider a proposal that E&Y
change the office from which it issues its annual audit opinion with respect to our audited financial statements
from its New York, United States office to its Cambridge, United Kingdom office. We made this proposal based
on our belief that it would be more efficient and cost-effective to have our auditors in the United Kingdom, rather
than in the United States, because our operations are principally conducted in the United Kingdom. On
November 28, 2005, the audit committee of our board of directors accepted and approved the change of office,
commencing immediately and on November 29, 2005 this decision was ratified by our full board of directors.

E&Y’s United Kindgom office is operated under the name Emst & Young, LLP and it has issued an audit
opinion with respect to our audited financial statements for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2005 and will
continue to do so for as long as it remains our auditor. Prior to this change in the audit opinion issuing office,
E&Y UK performed a substantial portion of the auditing procedures on our operations, but the audit oplmon had
been issued out of E&Y’s New York office.
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCIFIJDURES

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures. 'We maintain “disclosure controls and procedures,’

as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e {under the Exchange Act that are designed to ensure that information

required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms, and that such information is
accumulated and communicated to our Ir‘fanagement including our chief executlve officer and chief financial
officer, as appropriate, to allow timely d [01s10ns Jregarding required dlsclosure In designing and evaluating our

disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that disclosure controls and procedures; no matter
how well conceived and operated, can pr‘u[owde only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the
disclosure controls and procedures are met. Our disclosure controls and procedures have been designed to meet,
and management believes that they meet“ reasonable assurance standards. Additionally, in designing disclosure
controls and procedures, our management necessarily was required to apply its judgment in-evaluating the cost-
benefit relationship of possible dlsclosur“e controls and procedures. The design of any disclosure controls and
procedures also is based in part upon certam assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be
no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions.

Based on their evaluation as of the e}nd of the period covered by this"’Annual Report on Form 10-K, our chief
executive officer and chief financial officer have concluded that, subject to the limitations noted above, our
disclosure controls and procedures were "effectwe to ensure that material information relating to us, including our
consolidated subsidiaries, is made knowr}l to them by others within those entities.

(b) Changes in internal control ove‘r financial reporting. There was no change in our internal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that occurred during our last
fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over

financial reporting. [

3

|

1

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATIONi
Not applicable.
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PART 11

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT'
Directors and Executive Officers

The information required by this Item regarding our directors and executive officers is incorporated by
reference to the information under the captions “Election of Directors” and “Information About Directors and
Executive Officers” in our definitive proxy statement that we will file pursuant to Regulation 14A under the
Exchange Act in connection with the 2006 annual meeting of our stockholders (the “Proxy Statement”).

Audit Committee
. Theinformation required by this Item regarding our audit committee and the audit committee financial
expert is incorporated by reference to the information contained in the Proxy Statement.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

The information required by this Item regarding compliance with beneficial ownership reporting under
Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act is incorporated by reference to the information under the captions “Section
16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Proxy Statement.

Code of Ethics

We have é_dopted a Code of Ethics that applies to our chief executive officer and senior financial officers, as
required by the SEC, and is publicly available on our website at www.cdtltd.co.uk. If we make any amendments
to the Code of Ethics or grant any waiver, including any implicit waiver, from a provision of our Code of Ethics
to our chief executive officer and senior financial officers that requires disclosure under applicable SEC rules, we
intend to disclose the nature of such amendment or waiver on our website.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the information under the captions
“Election of Directors—Compensation of Directors” and “Executive Compensation” and “Election of
Directors—Compensation of Directors” contained in the Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the information under the caption
“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” contained in the Proxy Statement.

Information about securities authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans appears under the
caption “Equity Compensation Plan Information” in the Proxy Statement. That portion of the Proxy Statement is
incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this Item 13 is incorporated by reference from the information under the
caption “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” contained in the Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item 14 is incorporated by reference from the information under the
caption “Principal Accounting Fees and Services” contained in the Proxy Statement.
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PARTIV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCL\&L STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) (1) Financial Statements. The Fmanc1a1 Statements filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K
are identified in the Index to Consohdated Fmanc1a1 Statements on page F-1.

|

(2) Financial Statements Scht’adules Schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or
required, or the information to be: set forth therein is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements or
Notes thereto. |

(3) Exhibits. See Item 15(b) bélow,

(b) Exhibits. The following exhibits are filed herewith or are incorporated by reference to exhibits
previously filed with the SEC. The Regisutrant shall furnish copies of exhibits for a reasonable fee (covering the
expense of furnishing copires) upon request. S

Exhibit o
Number Description of Document

3.1 Second Amended and Restasd Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Amendment No. 2 to the Registrant’s Reglstrauon Statement on Form S-1
(File No. 333-117824)) \}

33 Amended and Restated By.-%aws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to Amendment No. 2 to
the Registrant’s Registratiox;‘i Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

10.1 Letter Agreement, dated Juﬂy 27, 1999, between Cambridge Display Technology Limited and Kelso
& Company, L.P. (incorpor?ted by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (Filt‘a No. 333-117824)) .

10.2 Letter Agreement, dated July 27, 1999, between Cambridge Display Technology Limited and
Hillman Capital Corporanon (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Reglstrant ]
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824)). -

10.3 Transaction Agreement, dated October 23, 2002, among CDT Acquisition Corp., Cambridge
Display Technology anted Opsys Limited, Opsys UK Limited, the Warrantors, Opsys US
Corporation and Opsys 2 Corporatlon (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s

Registration Statement on F‘orm S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

10.4 Agreement for the Sale and \Purchase of Part of the Business of Opsys Limited, dated October 24,
2002, between Opsys UK L”mnted and Opsys Limited (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to
Amendment No. 5 to the Reg1strant s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

10.5 Add-Vision Inc. Series B and Series C Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement, dated March 3, 2005,
among Add-Vision, Inc. anc% Cambridge Display Technology Limited (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.48 to the Reglstr‘ant s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,
2005)

10.6 Share Purchase Ag’reement,} dated August 15, 2003, among CDT Acquisition Corp., Ulvac, Inc.,
Litrex Corporation and Cambridge Display Technology Limited (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 to the RegisUaﬁt’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

10.6.1 Second Sale and Purchase Agreement, dated November 4,2005, among the Registrant, Ulvac, Inc.,
Litrex Corporation and Cambridge Display Technology Limited (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.49 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2005) ‘ ‘ .

10.7 Joint Venture Agreement, dated August 15, 2003, among CDT Acquisition Corp., Ulvac, Inc.,
Litrex Corporation and Cambridge Display Technology Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.7 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))
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Exhibit
Number

Description of Document

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.14.1

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.17.1%

10.18

Loan Facility Letter, dated July 1, 2004, between Cambridge Display Technology Limited and
Lloyds Bank PLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

Reimbursement Agreement, dated July 1, 2004, between Cambridge Display Technology Limited
and IPIFS Guarantee Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

Security Agreement, dated July 1, 2004, among Cambridge Display Technology Limited, CDT
Oxford Limited and IPIFS Guarantee Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to
Amendment No. 5 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement, dated December 22, 2004, among the
Registrant, Kelso Investment Associates VI, L.P., KEP VI, LLC, Hillman Capital Corporation,
Hillman CDT LLC, Hillman CDT 2000 LLC and certain employees minority stockholders of the
Registrant and its subsidiaries (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Amendment No. 2 to
the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

License Agreement, dated August 1, 1996, between Cambridge Display Technology, Ltd. and
Philips Electronics N.V. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Amendment No. 5 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

Cross License Agreement, dated November 25, 1999, between Cambridge Display Technology
Limited and Seiko Epson Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Amendment
No. 5 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

Side Letter, dated January 24, 2000, between Cambridge Display Technology Ltd. and Seiko
Epson Corporation regarding the Cross License Agreement dated November 25, 1999
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Amendment No. 5 to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

Addendum Agreement, dated November 16, 2004, between Cambridge Display Technology
Limited and Seiko Epson Corporation regarding the Cross License Agreement, dated November
25, 1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14.1 to Amendment No. 5 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

The New LEP Technology Agreement, dated January 1, 2001, between Cambridge Display
Technology Limited and the University of Cambridge (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15
to Amendment No. 5 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 {File No. 333-
117824)) :

Patent License, dated April 27, 2001, between Cambridge Display Technology Limited and
OSRAM Opto Semiconductors GmbH & Co. OHG (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to
Amendment No. 5 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

License Agreement, dated August 13, 2001, between Cambridge Display Technology Limited and
Sumitomo Chemical Co., Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to Amendment No. 5 to
the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

Side Letter, dated November 14, 2005, to License Agreement, dated August 13, 2001, between
Cambridge Display Technology Limited and Sumitomo Chemical Co., Ltd.

Patent License of Displays and Display Illumination, dated October 16, 2001, between Cambridge
Display Technology Limited, E.I. DuPont de Nemours and Company and Uniax Corporation
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to Amendment No. 5 to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))
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Exhibit

Materials Intellectual Eroperty Agreement, dated November 13, 2001, between Cambridge-
Display Technology Lumted and The Dow Chemical Company (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.18.1 to Amendment No. 6 to the Regxstrant s Registration Statement on Form S-1

Side Letter, dated November 14, 2005, to Materials Intellectual Property Agreement, dated
November 13, 2001 between Cambridge Display Technology Limited and The Dow Chemical

Patent and Know-How‘chense, dated’ December 14, 20[)1, between Cambndge Display
Technology Limited ar‘ld Covion Organic Semiconductors GmbH (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.19 to Amendment No. 5 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File

* Contract Research Agreement dated December 14, 2001, between CDT International Limited

and Covion Organic Sermconductors GmbH (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to

- Amendment No. 5 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-

License of Technology’ dated January 21 2002 between Opsys Limited (novated to CDT
Oxford Limited by a Novatlon and Variation Agreement, dated October 22, 2002), University of
Oxford, Isis Innovauon”' Limited and University of St. Andrews (1ncorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.21 to Amendment N o. 5 to the Reglstrant s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File

Patent and-Co- Ownershrp Agreement, dated July 5, 2004, between CDT Oxford Limited and Isis
Innovation Limited, The Chancellor, Masters and Scholars of the University of Oxford and the
University Court of St. ]}Andrews (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to Amendment No.
5 to the Registrant’s Regrstratlon Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

. Lease, dated March 29, | 2001, between Scottish Widows PLC and Cambridge Display

Technology Limited, of commercral premises at Unit 8 Cardinal Distribution Park,
Godmanchester, Cambndge England (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to the
Reglstrant s Regrstratron Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

Lease, dated March 29 \2001 between Scottish Widows PLC and Cambridge Display
Technology Limited, of commercial premises at Unit 11 Cardinal Distribution Park,

" ‘Godmanchester, Cambndge England (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the

Reglstrant s Regrstrau&n Statement on Form S-1 (Frle No. 333- 117824))

_ Technology Limited, of commercral premises at Unit 12 Cardinal Distribution Park,

Godmanchester, Cambndge England (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the
Registrant’s Regxstratlon Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

Lease, dated June 11 2004 between CGNU Life Assurance Limited and Cambridge Display
Technology Limited, of commercial premises at 2020 Cambourne Business Park, Cambridge,
England (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to the Reglstrant s Registration Statement

.on Form S-1 (File No. 333 117824))

Lease, dated June 27, 2000 between the Umvers1ty of Cambridge and Cambridge Display
Technology Limited, of commercial premises at Greenwich House, Madingley Rise, Madingley
Road, Cambridge, England (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to the Reglstrant s

”on Form S-1'(File No. 333-117824))

Employment agreement t with Dr. Fyfe, dated as of August 12, 2002 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.29 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

Number Description of Document
10.18.1
(File No. 333- 117824))
10.18.2¢
Company |
-10:19
No. 333-117824))
10.20
117824))
10.21
No. 333-117824))
10.23
10.24
10.25
10.26 Lease, dated March 29‘
1027
10.28'
Registration Statement
10.29(1)
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Exhibit
Number

10.29.1(1)

10.30(1)

10.31(1)

10.32(1) -~

10.33(1)

10.33.1(1)
10.34(1)>
10.35(1)
10.36(1)
10.36.1(1)
10.37(1)

10.38(1)
10.39(1)
10.40(1)
10.40.1(1)

10.40.2Q1)

10.40.3(1)

Description of Document

- Amendment to employment agreement with Dr. Fyfe, dated -as of August 31, 2004 (incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.29.1 to Amendment No. 3 to the Reglstrant s Reglstratmn Statement
on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

Overseas benefit agreement with Dr. Fyfe, dated as of August 12, 2002 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.30 to the Reglstrant s Reglstratlon Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-
117824)) -

Employment agreement with Mr. Chandler, dated February 18, 2003 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.31 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))
Employment agreement with Dr. Brown, dated March 28, 2002 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.33 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

Amendment to employment agreement with Dr. Brown, dated October 20, 2003 (incorporated
by refefence to Exhibit 10.34 to Amiendrment No. 2 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (Flle No. 333-117824))

Assignment Letter to Dr. Brown, dated August 23, 2005 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 1, 2005)

' Employment agreement with Mr. Abrams, dated September 14, 2005 (incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 28, 2005)

Employment agreement with Dr. Burroughes, dated July 1,-2004 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.35 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

Employment agreement with Dr. Cha, dated June 18,-2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.36 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

Assignment Letter to SB Cha, dated January 20, 2006 (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.52 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-X filed February 7, 2006)

CDT Acquisition Corp. Amended and Restated Stock Incetitive Plan (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.37 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

Amendment to the CDT Acquisition Corp. Stock Incentive Plan, dated as of March 15, 2002
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to the Reglstrant s Registration Statement on Form

' S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

Amendment to the CDT Acqmsmon Corp. Stock Incentlve Plan, dated as of October 17, 2002
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit. 10. 39to ‘the Registrant’s Reg1strat10n Statement on Form
S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

Cambndge Display Technology, Inc. 2004 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.40 to Amendment No. 5 to the Reglstrant s Reg1strat10n Statement on Form S-1 (File
No. 333-117824))

Cambridge Display Technology, Inc. 2004 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Optlon Agreement
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.40.1 to Amendment No. 5 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

Cambridge Display Technology, Inc. 2004 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement for the
Grant of Inland Revenue Approved Options in the UK (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.40.2 to Amendment No 5 to the Registrant’s Reglstratlon Statement on Form S-1 (File No.
333- 117824))

Cambridge Display Technology, Inc. 2004 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement for the
Grant of Unapproved Options in the UK (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.40.3 to.
Amendment No. 5 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))
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Exhibit
Number

Description of Document

10.41(1)

10.42(1)

10.42.1(1)

10.43(1)

10.44

1045

10.46

10.47

10.48%
10.49
211
231
232

233
24.1
311
31.2
32.1(2)

3222)

|
Cambridge Display Technology, Inc. -Annual Incentlve Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.41 to Amendment No. 2 to the Regrstrant s Regrstratlon Statement on Form S-1 (File
No. 333-117824)) -

Cambridge Display Tec nnology, Inc. Spec1al Bonus Plan (1ncorporated by reference to Exhibit

1042110 Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for quarter ended March 31, 2005)

Specral Bonus Plan Award Agreement with Dr Fyfe dated December 10, 2004 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.42.1 to Amendment No..5 to the Reglstrant s Reg15trat10n Statement on
Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

CDT Acquisition Corp. Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement between CDT Acquisition Corp.
and the Employee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.42 to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

Agreement among the szegistrant, Kelso Investment Associates VI, L.P., KEP VI, LLC, Hillman
Capital Corporation, Hilnlman CDT LLC and Hillman CDT 2000 LLC relating to certain
distributions (1ncorporat$d by reference to Exhibit 10.44 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

Amended and Restated Settlement and Amendment Agreement, dated as of December 14, 2004,
among the Registrant, Cambndge Display Technology Limited, Opsys Limited, CDT Oxford
Limited, Alexis Zervoglos Michael Holmes, Opsys US Corporation, Opsys 2 Corporation and
Opsys Management Limited (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to Amendment No. 5 to

the Registrant’s Regrstraﬂtron Statement on Form S-1 (Fllc No. 333-117824))

Form of Indemnification ” Agreement for directors and officers of the Registrant (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10. 4’7 to Amendment No. 3 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on

Form S-1 (File No. 333-117824))

Agreement, dated November 3, 2005, among the Registrant and Koninklijke Philips Electronics

N.V. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.50 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the quartell,r ended September 30, 2005)

Joint Venture Agreement dated November 9, 2005, between Cambridge Display Technology
Limited and Sumitomo Chelmcal Company, Limited

Securities Purchase Agreement dated December 20, 2005, between the Registrant and each of
the Investors listed on Exhrbrt A thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 27, 2005)

List of Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Consent of Emst & Young LLP, Independent Reglstered Public Accounting Firm, Cambridge,
United Kingdom

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, New York,
United States.
Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Powers of Attorney (see page 63 of this Form 10-K)

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Principal Executive Officer

Rule 13a-14(a) Certlﬁcat(xon of Principal Financial Officer

Certification of Pnncrpal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350)

Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350)

61




(1) Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

(2) In accordance with Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Regulation S-K and SEC Release Nos, 33-8238 and 34-47986,
Final Rule: Management’s Reports on Internal Control Over F1nanc1al Reporting and Certification of
Disclosure in Exchange Act Periodic Reports, the material contained in Exhibit 32.1 and Exhibit 32.2 is
“furnished” and not deemed “filed” with the SEC and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing
of the Registrant under the Securities. Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, whether made
before or after the date hereof and irrespective of any general mcorporatlon language contained in such
filing, except to the extent that the Reglstrant specifically incorporates it by reference: :

¥  Confidential treatment has been'requested with respect to certain portions of these agreements.

(c) Financial Statements Schedules. Schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or

required, or the information to be set forth therein is 1ncluded in the Consohdated Financial Statements or Notes
thcreto | e : ,
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, we have duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 13, 2006

o

CAIV[BRIDGE DISPLAY TECHNOLOGY, INC.

By: /s/ DAVID FYFE
DAVID FYFE
Chief Executive Officer
|
' POWER OF ATTORNEY

|

J .
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below

J.

constitutes and appoints David Fyfe, Daniel Abrams and Stephen Chandler and each of them, his true and lawful
attorneys-in-fact, each with full power oﬂ substitution, for him or her in any and all capacities, to sign any
amendments to this repbrt on Form IO-K" and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other documents in
connection therewith, with the Securities;and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that
each of said aftorneys-in-fact or their subﬁtitute or substitutes may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

I
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by

the following persons on behalf of the re

Signature

/s/ DaviD FYre ‘

Eistrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

David Fyfe

/s/ DANIEL ABRAMS

Daniel Abrams

/s/ MavLcoLM THOMPSON

Malcolm Thompson

/s/ FRANK BYynum

Frank Bynum -

/s/ JAMES SANDRY

James Sandry

/s/ . JOSEPH CARR

Chief Executive Ofﬁcer (Prihcipal March 13, 2006
Executiye Officer) and Director
Chief Financial Officer (Principal March 13, 2006
Financial Officer and Principal
* Accounting Officer)
Director March 13, 2006
Director March 13, 2006
Director March 13, 2006
Director March 13, 2006

Joseph Carr
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Cambridge Display Technology, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Cambridge Display Technology, Inc. as
of December 31, 2005 and the related consolidated statement of operations, changes in common shareholders’
equity and cash flows for the year then ended: These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an
audit of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Cambridge Display Technology, Inc. at December 31, 2005 and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with U. S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Cambridge, England
March 13, 2006
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Cambridge Display Technology, Inc.

‘We have audited the accompanying
of December 31, 2004 and the related co

equity and cash flows for each of the two

|
1

consolidated balance sheet of Cambridge Display Technology, Inc. as
nsolidated statements of operations, changes in common shareholders’
years in the period ended December 31, 2004. These financial

|

statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on

[

these financial statemeénts based on our audit. We did not audit the 2003 financial statements of Litrex

Corporation, a 50% joint venture, which

‘statements reflected total assets constituting 4.4% as of December 31,

2003, and total revenues constituted 24% for the year then ended, of the related consolidated totals. Those

statements were audited by other auditors
relates to the amounts included for Litrex

| .
s whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, in so far as it

Corporation is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards requue that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

|

about whether the financial statements ate free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an

audit of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal

control over financial reporting as a basi

}:s for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal

control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on

|
unts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
made by management and evaluating the overall financial statement

provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

a test basis, evidence supporting the amo
principles used and significant estimates
presentation. We believe that our audits

In our opinion, based on our audits
above present fairly, in all material respe
Technology, Inc. at December 31, 2004

and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
cts, the consolidated financial position of Cambridge Display
and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for

each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2004 in conformity with U. S. generally accepted

accounting pnnc1p1es

As further discussed in footnote 3, the Company adopted, effective January 1, 2004, FASB Interpretation

46(R) “Consohdatlon of Variable Interes

New York, NY
March 7, 2005

t Entities, an interpretation of ARB No. 51”.

/s/  ERNST & YOUNG LLP
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Cambridge Display Technology, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,
2005 2004
(in thousands, except for
share information)
ASSETS
Current assets: o .
Cash and cash equlvalents ............... S e $ 31,263 $ 26,892
INVENIOTY « .« eveeeeveen e aeenns e . 32 —
Marketable securities .. .. ... T e 1,151
Accounts receivable, et . . ... .t e e e 2,266 1,458
Due from affiliates .......... e e e 107
Taxes TECEIVADIE . . .o v oottt e e e e e 2,045 3,984
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .............cooiiiiiiinan.. 2,473 6,903
Total currentassets .............. A 38,079 40,495
Property, equipment and leasehold 1mpr0vements et ... e 13,593 15,995
Investments in affiliates ..... e O A " 1,899 2,574
Marketable securities ............ P 633 —
Goodwill ............... P e U S e 65,612 65,612
Other 1nta.ng1ble BTyl S 3 11 A 2,897 4,477
Total GSSELS . oo oo e $122,713 $ 129,153
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities: '
Accounts payable and accrued expenses e $ 7910 $§ 8,604
Deferred revenue ... ... I R 1,290 6,936
Due to affiliate ................ P 52 109
‘Taxespayable ..................... e FU -6 —
Total current liabilities . ...... ...t i i e e 9,258 15,649
Deferred revenue ...... e e e e e e e e — 800
Deferred proceeds on sale of subsidiary stock ................... PP e — 5,785
Other liabilities . ...........vvvireeiivnnnens e P 567 480
Commitments and contingencies (Note 13) ......... ... ... . ot — —
Common shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, voting $0.01 par value, 46,667 authorized, none issued or
OULSTANAING . .\ vttt ettt et ir e ettt ee e e e —_— —
Common stock, $0 01 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 21,674,703
issued, 21,483,205 outstanding . .. .. ..o 215 195
Additional paid-incapital ........... .. .. 287,514 273,079
Deferred compensation . . . ... ..ottt i e (6,082) (9,266)
Common stock subscribed . ...t e — (3,163)
Accumulated other comprehensiveloss ........... ... ... ... i o (1,052) (514)
Accumulated deficit ........ ... .. . e (167,707) (153,892)
Total common shareholders’ equity ........ ... .. .. .. ... 112,888 106,439
Total liabilities and shareholders” equity ..........c.ovrririiiinnnenernunennnnss $122,713 $ 129,153

See accompanying notes.
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| ,
Cahmbridge Display Technology, Inc.

. Con“solidated Statements of Operétions

1

Operating revenues:
License fees and royalties
Other license related

Technology services and developm ent

Litrex revenue
Equipment and supplies

Total operating revenues

Costof sales:
License fees and royalties
Other license related

Technology services and development

Litrex révenue ................
Equipment and supplies

Total cost of sales

Gross proﬁt

Operatmg expenses:

Research and development expense 3

Selling, general and administrative

Amortization of intangibles acqmre?

Total operating expenses

Loss from operations

Other income/(expense)
Equity in loss of affiliates
Foreign currency transaction (loss)
Gain on sale of Litrex
Other (expense)/income
Interest income
Interest expense

Total other income / (expense)

Loss before benefit for income taxes .
Benefit for income taxes

Loss before cumulative effect of accounti‘ng change

Cumulative effect of accounting change

Net loss
Accretion of preferred stock

Net loss attributable to common shareholders

..........................

expenses

............................

|

Net loss per common share attributable to common shareholders béfore
cumulative effect of accounting change basicand diluted . ............
Net loss per common share due to cumulatwe effect of accounting change,

basic and diluted

Net loss per common share attributable to common shareholders, basic and

diluted

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding, basic and

diluted

See accompanying notes.
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Year ended .December 31

2008

2004

2003

(in thousands, except per share amount)

$ 3285 $.6791 $ 4314
— 900 —
7,478 4,982 3,758
- — 2,608
7,330 613 —
18,093 13,286 10,680
47 186 245
3,798 1481 109
— 1,173
5,880 318 . —
9,725 1,994 1,527
8,368 11,292 9,153
16,129 14,181 16,841
17,426 18,751 12,769
1,580 1,580 1,625
35,135 34512 31,235
(26,767)  (23,220) (22,082)
(3,802)  (2,546)  (3,639)
(790) 1,045 1,603
15,935 — —
(721) 210 -
497 347 415
— (36) (6)
11,119 980y  (1,627)
(15,648)  (24,200)  (23,709)
(1,833)  (1,615) (932)
(13,815)  (22,585) (22,777)
— (12,2000 = —
(13,815)  (34,785)  (22,777)
— (38,766)  (6,771)
T $(13,815) $(73,551) $(29,548)
$ 071) $ 6.17) $ (3.09)
— $ (1.23) —
$ (071) $ (740) $ (3.04)
19,543 9,944 9,705
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mbridge Display Technology, Inc.

.. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Operating act1v1t1es

Netloss ......... ...« ....... LL:..J-“

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operatmg activities: .
Depreciation and amortization of - proper[t , equ1pment -and leasehold

improvements
(Gain) / loss on sale of property, equipm
Gain on sale of Litrex
Amortization of intangible assets
Impairment of promissory notes
Non-cash income and expense
Acquired in process R& D~
Amortization of deferred compensatlon !
Equity in loss of afﬁhates e ‘

...................................
PRSI

Stock options granted -... ... Ll : ..‘ ol N R SR

Changes in operating assets and labilities:

Accounts and tax receivable
Due from affiliates
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other current

assets

Accounts and tax payable and accrl?ed expenses .

Deferred revenue
Other current and non-current liabili

Net cash used in operating activities - .|
Investing activities “
Acquisition of property, equ1pment and |
Disposal of property, equipment and led
Acquisition of other intangible assets .
Costs related to acquisition of CDT Oxfi
Disposal of business
Investment in affiliates
Investment in marketable securities .
Cash of consolidated entity—CDT Oxfc

" Net cash generated by/(used 1n) 1nvest1n
Financing activities

leasehold irripfovements
sehold improvements ..............

.......................

Year ended December 31
2005 2004 2003
(in thousands)

$(13,815) $(34,785) $(22,777)

Change in restricted cash .
Repayment of loan payable
Issuance of common stock

Issuance of redeemable convertible prefened stock
Net cash generated by financing act1v1t1es

\
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ’

Cash and cash equivalents—beginning of period
Cash and cash equ1valents——end of penod

I

Supplemental disclosures of cash ﬂow[ mformatlon : “ h

Interest (paid)/refunded -
Taxes (paid)/refunded

See accompanying notes. .. -

} E-7

5544 6007 6334
@ 132 74
(15,935) —
1580 1,580 1,625
1,635 — —
(108) (30) —
12,200 —
3,086 5135 19
3802 2,546 - 3,639
_ 28 158
L131 (1L651)  (2.229)
50 21 (2,302)
(32) — (511)
4430 (3.979) 110
(688) 2,399 (1,238)
(6,446) 4014 2,579
24 251 383
(15763)  (6,132) = (14,136)
C(153) . (24100 (3.601)
32 13 68
— — (100)
— 334 —
9,740 12,091
(2,737) (85) . (128)
=0 (1129) ¢ —
— - 1.564 -
3,882 (2381) 8330
_ — 127
— — (127
16,252 25,005 6
— 4228
16252 25,005 4234
4371 16492 (1,572)
26892 10400 11,972
$31,263 $26,892 $ 10,400
— 3 G6S$ 6
$ (176) 18 _



Cambridge Display Technology, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization and Description of Business

Cambridge Display Technology, Inc. (the “Company”), a U.S. based corporation, incorporated in the state
of Delaware, was formed in 1999 under the name CDT Acquisition Corp. by investment funds managed by
Kelso & Company (“Kelso”) and Hillman Capital Corporation (“Hillman™), to acquire all of the common stock
of CDT Holdings Plc (“Holdings”, a company organized under the laws of the United Kingdom) (the
“acquisition”). Holdings, in turn, is the parent of Cambridge Display Technology Limited (“Limited”) and CDT
Licensing Limited (“Licensing”), both United Kingdom companies. This acquisition was accounted for as'a
purchase. Holdings, Limited and Licensing are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “U.K. Subsidiaries”.

" In 2001, the Company acquired a controlling (86%) interest in Litrex Corporation (“Litrex”, a California
based company). In 2002, the Company acquired the remaining 14% ownership in Litrex. In August 2003, a 50%
interest in Litrex was sold, as described in Note 3. In November 2005, the Company sold the remaining 50%
interest, as also described in Note 3. In October 2002, the Company acquired a 16% equity interest and full
management control of Opsys (UK) Limited (“Opsys UK), which was, subsequently, renamed CDT Oxford
Limited (“CDT Oxford”). The Company acquired 100% of the parent company of CDT Oxford, Opsys Limited -
(“Opsys”), in December 2004.

In July 2004, the Company formally changed its name to Cambridge Display Technology, Inc. from CDT
Acquisition Corp.

In December 2004 the Company concluded an initial public offenng for its common stock on the Nasdaq
National Market.

In November 2005 the Company formed a joint venture with Sumitomo Chemical Company Limited -
(“Sumitomo Chemical”) of Japan to develop and sell P-OLED materials. The Compa.ny owns a 50% share i in the
formed company, Sumation Company Limited (“Sumatlon”)

In December 2005 the Company concluded a private placement of 2,187, 500 shares of common stock and
656,250 warrants.

The Company is principally involved in the development and commercialization of Polymer Organic Light
Emitting Diode (“P-OLED”) intellectual property and technology, an advanced display technology for which it
holds worldwide fundamental patents. CDT Oxford is principally involved in research and development of light
emitting dendrimer materials and hybrid P-OLED materials. Litrex is a designer and mtegrator of ink jet printing
solutions for P-OLED printing.

The Company accounts for its 50% equity voting stake in Sumation, a deve]oper of P- OLED matenals
using the equity method

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries after elimination of all significant intercompany balances and transactions. The Company’s
interests in the results and assets and liabilities of affiliates and joint ventures are included in the accounts using
the equity method of accounting. The results of Litrex are fully consolidated into the Company’s financial
statements through August 14, 2003. Subsequent to that date, the Company’s 50% share of the net earnings of
Litrex has been accounted for using the equity method until its sale in November 2005. The Company also held a
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16% interest in CDT Oxford until Decerjnber 2004, but, because it was responsible for funding 100% of the
losses of CDT Oxford and had an entltle%ment to 98% of any profits as a management fee, the Company

accounted for 100% of that company’s n
2003. On January 1, 2004, the Company

et losses in a manner similar to the equity method up until December
adopted FIN 46(R) and determined that CDT Oxford was a variable

interest entity and therefore consohdated it from that date. The Company acquired the remaining 84% equity
interest in CDT Oxford in December 2004 as described in Note 3 below.

\

The Company’s operations are subj
limited to, the Company’s ability to mee
expansion of the Company’s operations

Reverse Stock Split
On December 15, 2004, the Compa

|

ect to certain risks and uncertainties. These risks include, but are not
t obligations, continuing losses and negative cash flows and funding

iy executed a 0. 5851807—for—0ne reverse stock split in connection with

its initial public offering. All share and per-share information included in the accompanying consolidated

financial statements and related disclosu
the stock split.

Foreign Currencies

The functional and reporting curren
transactions denominated in currencies ¢

in currency exchange rates between the |
is denominated are included in the Comyj
which the currency exchange rates chan

Bad and Doubtful Debts

As at December 31, 2005, the Com
receivables and its history of successful

y

res for all periods presented have been retroactively adjusted to reflect

icy of the Company is the U.S. dollar. The Company routinely enters into
ther than its functional currency, primarily the British Pound. Changes
Company’s functional currency and the currency in which a transaction
pany’s resulfs' of operations as other income (expense) in the period in
ge.

|

pany had not incurred any bad debts. Due to the nature of current trade
‘collectlon no prov181on for doubtful debts has been made.

|

Marketable Securities and Other Inve[[stments

The Company records its investme
“Accounting for Certain Investments in

classification of its securities at the time!

nt in marketable equity securities in accordance with SFAS No. 115,
Debt and Equity Securities”, and determines the appropriate
of purchase and reevaluates the classification at each subsequent period

end. Realized gains and losses are reflected in investment income. The cost of securities sold is based on the

I

specific identification method. At December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, all marketable equity securities

are classified as available-for-sale and a.J
component of shareholders’ equity. At [
the Alternative Investment Market of th
date. '

The Company accounts for investr

operating and financial policies, but has{
ownership of common stock. Where the

re carried at fair value, with the unrealized gains reported as a separate
December 31, 2005, marketable securities held were listed securities on
e London Stock Exchange and were valued at their closing price on this

rents in affiliates over which it exercises significant influence on
less than 50% voting rights, using ‘the equity method based on its
Company does not own any common stock or in-substance equivalents

and there is no readily determinable mar

ket value, it accounts for such investments using the cost method and

evaluates whether impairment indicators exist each reporting period in accordance with EITF 03-01 “The
Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments”. The Company

evaluates whether or not any such inves|
whether consolidation is required. The €
consolidation under FIN 46(R). |

tments are variable interest entities pursuant to FIN 46(R) and if so,
"ompany has determined that none of its investments require
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity at acquisition of
three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents primarily consist of investment grade commercial
paper, which are short term in nature and therefore bear minimal risk. Cash is held in both US and UK deposit
accounts. )

Property, Equipment and Leasehold Improvements

Property, equipment and leasehold improvements which are held for use are stated at cost. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method, based on the shorter of the estimated useful lives, generally ranging
from three to five years, or the lease term of the respective assets. The Company, fully depreciates any remaining
net asset balance at the point it determines that such assets will be of no further use. If the Company determines
that the useful life of any asset is less than the remaining depreciable life, it reduces the remaining depreciable
life accordingly and accelerates the depreciation of the remalmng net asset balance. To date, the Company has
not accelerated the depreciation of any asset.

Goodwill

The Company accounts for goodwill in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill acquired in a
business combination be capitalized at acquisition cost and requires that goodwill not be amortized into earnings.
On an annua! basis, the Company is required to evaluate the carrying value of goodwill at the reporting unit level
for impairment using a two step impairment test. The Company currently has one reporting unit. Prior to August
2003, the Company had two operating units: CDT, which developed, licensed and commercialized P-OLED
technology, and Litrex, which developed ink jet printing. After the sale of 50% of Litrex in August 2003 and the
remaining 50% in November 2005 (see Note 3) the Company believes that it has one reporting unit, CDT.

During the fourth quarters of 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company completed its annual impairment tests of
goodwill as at December 31, and determined that its reported goodwill was not impaired. Such impairment tests
are based upon projections of future royalty and license revenue at levels significantly greater than historically
achieved. As adoption of the Company’s technology is just now begmmng to occur in commermal amounts, such
projections have a high degree of uncertainty. :

Movement in Goodwill o CDT Litrex CDT Oxford Total

(in thousands)
Balance at January 1,2003 ...... P $58,735 $ 10,851 $ 69,586
Litrex 50% sale ................. e _ ' (10,851) ' “ (10,851)
Balance at December 31,2003 .................... U 58,735 ' 58,735
Consolidation of CDT Oxford (seeNote 3) . .. ................ $6,877 6,877
Balance at December 31,2004 and 2005 ........ e $58,735 $§ — $6,877 $ 65,612

The Company sold 50% of its equity in Litrex in August 2003. As a result, Litrex ceased to be a
consolidated subsidiary and, therefore, goodwill related to Litrex was eliminated from the Company’s
consolidated goodwill. The goodwill was included in the total net book value of Litrex which was removed as a
result of the sale and was considered in determining the Company’s deferred gain whlch was recognized in 2005
(see Note 3).
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Other Intangible Assets

Other intangible assets, which pnmﬁrﬂy relate to intellectual property rights and know-how, are amortized
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life of five to ten years. The Company has no indefinite lived
intangible assets other than goodwill. The Company s management believes the net intangible asset balance is
recoverable for all periods presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Amortization
expense for the next five years is expecte”d to be as follows:

Year ending December 31 (in thousa“nds)

2006 ..\t | S $1,413

2007 v 580

D008 o\t 577

2009 - v 327

2010 ot —
Long Lived Assets

Long lived assets, including other intangible assets and property, equipment and leasehold improvements,
are subject to review for impairment in the event that circumstances indicate recorded amounts may not be

recoverable. While the Company has rep ?ned losses, it expects that its future licensing and royalties will enable
recovery of such asset values. - .

Revenue Recognition and Deferred Revenue

The Company’s revenues are derived from license fees and royalties due under license agreements,
payments due under various technology d evelopment agreements, sales of our own equipment and sales of
equipment and services by Litrex through August 2003. Non-refundable license fees are recognized when they
fall due and when collection can be reasopably assured, providing that the license has been delivered and where
we have no ongoing obligations under that license. Once a license has been delivered, royalties are recorded as
revenue when they become receivable and collection is reasonably assured. Where an extended obligation does

exist, upfront license fees are amortized, “gcnerally on a straight-line basis, over the period of that obligation.

l

Revenues for arrangements that provide for the provision of technology. development services are
recognized as those services are delivereq and revenue for transfers of know-how once the corresponding
documentation or electronic records have}@een delivered. The Company routinely enters into technology services
and development contracts which involve multiple elements including (i) the provision of services, (ii) the
transfer of know-how or (iii) the supply o[f equipment. The Company recognizes revenue on a straight line basis
over the duration of arrangements that 1nvolve the dehvery of multiple elements where no individual element
qualifies as a separate unit of accounting,junless the arrangement involves the supply of capital equipment in
which case recognition of revenue is deferred until the equipment is accepted. The Company supplies P-OLED
inks to customers and recognizes revenue once the materials have been received at the customers premises.

In 2004, the Company reported other{license related revenues, which related to the re-sale by the Company to a
third party of certain rights to intellectual property that the Company had previously acquired from that third party.

|

Where revenue arrangements requlre the Company to provide a specified amount of support after the end of
the term of the contract, the fair value of this post-contract support is deferred until either the support is delivered
or the obligation to provide the support e)’(pues The Company determines the fair value of such post-contract
support based on the rate the Company cl‘l‘arges third parties for snmlar services sold on a stand alone basis.

Under equipment supply contracts,. qg:venue is recognized after customer acceptance has been received, any
final payment has been invoiced and colchtibility is reasonably assured.

When contracts involve the Compa.n‘.y devoting research effort to projects, revenue under these contracts is
recognized over the life of the contract on a straight-line basis as the associated costs are relatively consistent

from period to period. }
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Where payments under either licenses or technology services and development contracts fall due prior to
revenue being recognized, the Company reports the balance of amounts which have been invoiced but are not
recognizable as deferred revenue in the liabilities section of consolidated balance sheet. Deferred revenue is
classified as current if it is expected to be recognized within one year and non-current if it is expected to be

‘recognized after more than one year, or if the timing of recognition is not known.

Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. Research and development costs that are
reimbursed by Sumation are netted off against related expenses within the statement of operations.

Income Taxes

Taxes are provided using the liability method on all differences between book and tax bases of assets and
liabilities calculated at the rate at which it is anticipated that timing differences will reverse. Given the history of
losses of the Company, a 100% valuation allowance is provided with respect to loss and other carry forwards and
no net deferred tax assets have been recognized in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

A tax benefit is recognized in relation to the surrender of tax losses related to research and development
expenses incurred by United Kingdom subsidiaries under the United Kingdom government’s research and
development tax credit program which is described in Note 11 below.

Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive loss encompasses all changes in shareholders’ equity (except those arising from transactions
with owners) and includes the Company’s net loss, net unrealized gains or losses on available for sale securities
and currency translation reserves on revaluation of securities held in currencies other than US dollars.

Net Loss Per Common Share

'The Company reports both basic net loss per common share, which i§ based on the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding, excluding contingently issuable shares, and diluted net loss per share,
which is based on the weighted average niumber of common shares outstanding and dilutive potential common
shares outstanding. However, since the Company reported losses in each year presented, the effect of including
options and other contingently issuable shares would be anti-dilutive. Accordingly, basic and diluted loss per
share are the same. C : C '

Business Concentrations

The Company’s customers are located principally in Europe, the United States and Asia. A breakdown of
the Company’s revenues on a geographic basis is as follows: ‘

Revenues by Geographic Region and Seéﬁwnt ' . . ‘ 2005 2004 2003
. . (in thousands)
United Kingdom . .. .. AP e et $ 548 $2143 § 527
Other European . ........ e 4,044 2,065 650
United States. .......... A PO A 1,586 1,626 4,042
Other North American ................ e e e S — 500 —
Japan . . e e e e 5,487 5,196 4,314
Other AsiaPacific ......................... e PO PIPR 6,428 1,756 1,147
TOLal FEVETIUES v .o v v v estee e e e e et e e e iaees .. $18,093  $13,286  $10,680
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The basis for attributing revenues. fron
with whom the Company contracts. All lon

For the years ended December 31, 20¢

54% and 58% of the Company’s revenues,

n external customers.to individual countries is the address of the party
g-lived tangible assets of the Company are located in the U.K.

5 and 2004, there were'thrgg: and four customers that accounted fdr
respectively.

At December 31, 2005, there were three customers that accounted for 92% of the Company’s accounts

receivable balance. These customers owed[

$1.0 million, $0.7 million and $0.4 million respectively. At

December 31, 2004, there were two customers that accounted for 84% of the Company § accounts receivable

l

balance. These customers owed $0.7 million and $0.5 million respecuvely

Stock-Based Compensation
Through December 31, 2005, the Con

“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employeé“

options awarded to employees. According
value of the Company’s common stock, thi
options granted to employees. Had compe
awards consistent with the methodology p

npany followed Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,

s” (“APB 25”), and related interpretations in accounting for stock

y, other than certain grants with an exercise price at less than fair

e Company has recognized no compensation expense with respect to
nsation cost been determined based upon-the fair value at grant date for
rescribed by SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based

Compensation” (“SFAS 123”), as amended, the Company’s net loss for years ended December 31, 2005 2004

|

and 2003 would have been the pro forma amounts indicated below:

Net loss—as reported
Less: accretion of preferred stock

Net loss attributable to common sharehold
Add back: APB 25 cost
Less: total stock-based employee compen

method l

Net loss attributable to common shareholc

Net loss per share:
Basic and diluted—as reported

Basic and diluted—pro forma

2005 | 2004 2003
(in thousands) )

.............................. $(13,815) $(34,785) $(22,777)
.............................. — (38,766)  (6,771)
T ¢ S PPN (13,815) (73,551) (29,548)
.............................. 3,086 5,135 19
Sation expense under the fair valie '
.............................. (3,611)  (5,730) (823)

ers—pro forma

$(14,340) $(74,146) $(30,352)

$ (071) § (740) $ (3.04)
$ (0.73) $ (746) $ (3.13)

" The fair value of these options was estimated at thé date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model using assumptions for the risk-free|interest rate, volatility factor and expected life as detailed in the table

below. The velatility factor for options issued prior to the Company’s initial public offering was based on the

volatility of the Company’s stock price as
Company remained private. The volatilit3‘7‘l
offering was based on fluctuations in the

Options Issued in:

Black-Scholes Assumptions:
Risk Free Interest Rate
Volatility Factor
Expected Life
Dividend Yield ................ |

The weighted average fair value of ¢
granted during 2005 with the market pnce
The weighted-average remaining contrac
7.3 years in 2003).

]

measured using the prices at which stock was bought while the
factor used for options issued on or after the Company’s initial public

stock price of comparable public companies.

2004 2004

2005 (post-IPO) (pre-IPO) 2003
................... 3.31% 3.31% 4.25% 4.25%
................... 74.8% 74.8% 15.3% 15.7%
................... 4 Years 4 Years 4 Years 4 Years
................... Zero Zero Zero , Zero

ptlons, calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model,

equal to the exercise price, is $4.48 ($6.19 in 2004, $5.76 in 2003).

(tual life of all outstanding options is 7.4 years (6.7 years in 2004,
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In December 2004, the Company issued restricted stock units-under the terms of its special bonus plan. The
Company accounts for these issued units under APB 25 whereby the fair value of these units at the issuance date
is expensed over the vesting period. The Company accrues for the UK national insurance tax liability associated
with those restricted stock units over the same vesting period, but adjusts the accrual each quarter to take account
of fluctuations in the Company’s stock price, any changes in the UK national insurance percentage rate and
changes with regard to which bonus holders under the plan are subject to UK national insurance.

Commencmg J anuary 1, 2006 the Company w1ll be accountmg for stock based compensation expense under
SFAS No. 123(R) (see Recent Accounting Pronouncements below). As any options granted in the future will also
be expensed based on the fair value calculations, the pro forma results for fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003 may
not be indicative of the charges which will be made in future years.

Forward Contracts ‘ » )

We enter into forward foreign currency contracts to purchase and sell U.S., European and Asian currencies
to reduce exposures to foreign currency risks. The forward exchange contracts generally have maturities that do
not exceed 12 months and require us to exchange, at maturity, European or Asian currencies for U.S. dollars and
pound sterling, or vice versa, , at rates agreed to at the 1ncept10n of the contracts. -

At December 31, 2005 and 2004 we had approxmlately $16 million and $2O million, respectlvely, of forward
exchange contracts outstanding. These foreign exchange contracts outstanding at December 31, 2005 and 2004 were
not designated as hedging instruments. For these derivatives, gains and losses were recognized immediately in
earnings during the period of change and a loss of $0.7 million is included i in other income / (expense) in our
consohdated staterent of operations for the year ended December 31, 2005.

At December 31, 2003, the fair value of these contracts was a loss (i.e. liability) of $0.5 million and at
Deécember 31, 2004, the value was a gain (i.e. asset) of $O 2 million. These fair values were determined based
upon current forward rates applicable to the remaining terms of the forward-contracts as of December 31, 200s.
The fair value of contracts in liability positions is included as a component of “Accounts payable and accrued
expenses” on our Consolidated Balance Sheet and the fair value of any contracts in an asset position would be
included as a component of “Prepaid expenses and other current assets”.

Fair Values of Finaricial Instruments other than Derivatives .

The Company’s financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities,
accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities. Marketable securities are accounted for at fair
value using quoted market prices for those secrities. All other financial instruments are accounted for on a
historical cost basis, which due to the nature of these mstruments approx1mates fair value at the balance sheet
dates. : :

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the 'con'solidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported
in the consolidated ﬁnanc1a1 statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. : : . ,

'Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share:Based Payment” (“SFAS
No. 123(R)”), which replaces SFAS 123, and supercedes APB 25. SFAS No, 123(R) requires all share-based
payments'to employees, including’ grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the financial statements
based on their fair values, beginning with the first interim or annual period beginning on or after January 1, 2006,
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with early adoption encouraged. In addition, SFAS No. 123(R) will cause unrecognized expense (based on the
amounts in-our pro forma footnote disclosute) related to options vesting after the date of initial adoption to be
recognized as a charge to results of operatzc ns over the remaining vesting period.. The Company has evaluated
the requirements of SFAS No. 123(R) and deterrmned to adopt the modified prospective method utilizing the
Black-Scholes option pricing method, usmg appropriate assumptions for the risk-free interest rate, volatility
factor, staff turnover rate and expected life. 1’ ‘The effect of adoptmg SFAS 123(R) will be to increase the
Company’s recorded stock compensation expense S : :

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS 153, “Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets an amendment of
APB Opinion No. 29, Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions” (“SFAS 153”). The amendments made by
SFAS 153 are based on the principle that e)w(changes of nonmonetary assets should be based on the fair value of
the assets exchanged. Further, the amendments eliminate the narrow exception for nonmonetary exchanges of

similar productive assets and replace it w1th a general exception for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not

have commercial substance. The statement;
periods beginning after June 15, 2005 with
applied prospectively. The Company’s ado

is effective for nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal
earlier adoption permitted. The provisions of this statement shall be
ption of SFAS 153 is not expected to have a material impact on the

Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial position.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS J1 54, “Accounting Changes .and Error ‘Cor'rections”, a replacement of
APB Opinion No. 20 and SFAS 3. Under. the terms of this statement,. voluntary changes in accounting principles
or other changes where the enacting . hteratl.‘ re does not include transitional provisions will result in retro-active
restatements of prior periods where such re‘statement is practicable. This statement is effective for changes which
will be made in fiscal years commencing after December 15, 2005 with early adoption permitted. The Company
does not currently anticipate that it will make any changes in accounting prmc1p1es which will be subject to the

provisions of this statement.

In November 2005, the FASB issued FASB Staff Posmon 115-1/SFAS 124- 1, “The Meanmg of Other-
Than-Temporary Impairment and it’s Apphcatlon to Certain Investments” (“FSP 115-1/124-1"), an interpretation
and amendment of positions of SFAS 115 and 124 and APB Opinion No. 18. This covers the value of equity
investments other than those accounted for}}by the equity method. The Company has only. one such investment
and will adopt this statement in relation to that investment. The Company is required to adopt FSP 115-1/124-1
on January 1, 2006, but does not believe thj[at their adoption will have an impact on the Company’s consolidated
results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Acquisitions and Disposals
CDT Oxford

The Company owns 100% of CDT Oxford, formerly Opsys UK, and 100% of Opsys Limited and
consolidates both of these into its consolidated results of operations, financial position and cash flows.

3.

On October 23, 2002, the Company purchased a 16% interest in Opsys UK Limited (“Opsys UK”) for $2.5.
million. At the same time, pursuant to a Tr[ansactlon agreement, Limited purchased a $2 million license from
Opsys Limited (“Opsys”), the then parent ¢ of Opsys UK. As part of the Transaction Agreement, effective from the
date of the Agreement, the Company, on an exclusive and irrevocable basis, managed the assets and business of
Opsys UK. Due to this, all of the books and records of Opsys UK were maintained by the Company: The
Company became entitled to an annual management fee equal to 98% of a pre-tax profits earned, if any, by
Opsys UK. The Company and Limited wer“e responsible for all liabilities arising from the management of Opsys
UK, including funding of any losses 1ncurred Later in 2002, Opsys UK-was renamed CDT Oxford.. Through the
end of 2003 the Company accounted for (ﬁDT Oxford in a manner similar to the equ1ty method :

In December 2003 the FASB 1ssued FIN No. 46(R) “Consolldanon of Vanable Interest Entmes which
superseded FIN No. 46 issued in January 2003. FIN No. 46(R) clarified certain aspects of consohdauon :
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accounting, This Interpretation require variable interest entities to be consolidated if the equity investment at risk
is not sufficient to permit an entity to finance its activities without support from other parties or the equity
investors lack specified characteristics. The Company has adopted this interpretation effective January 1, 2004,
and, since the equity in CDT Oxford is not sufficient to permit it to finance its activities without outside support,
this has resulted in the Company consolidating CDT Oxford. This has had no impact on the net loss within the
consolidated statement of operations, since the Company has previously included 100% of the operating loss in
its results of operations, but has resulted in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet including the assets and
liabilities of CDT Oxford. The following represents the amounts consolidated as of January 1, 2004:

) . ) (in thousands)
" Cash and cash equlvalents ............. [P e . $ 1,564
Accounts receivable .................. e e 485
'Equipment and leasehold improvements, net ............ .. ..., 69
Goodwill .. ... 14,092
Accounts payable and accrued €XPENses .. ............ e (4,522)

Net ASSELS ... e e R $11,688

In-process research and development has been accounted for as the cumulative effect of an accounting
change upon adoption of FIN 46 (R). In valuing the in-process research and development, an income approach
was adopted. The Company measured the present value of future economic benefits over the remaining economic
life of the acquired assets and discounted using a risk-adjusted discount rate of 25%. This rate was selected by -
taking into account time-value of money, inflation, forecast risk and the risk inherent in ownership of the subject
assets. The Company considered the acquired assets to constitute a single research program into dendrimer
technology. Since the Company believed that the benefit of acquiring this technology would come from
combining it with its existing technology, the Company projected future cash flows for its entire business and
made a judgment as to the proportion of such revenues which would be attributable to the acquired technology.
The Cofnpany projected that materials containing this technology would be initially commercialized in 2007.

For the purpose. of consolidation, the original acquisition of CDT Oxford has been accounted for as a
purchase, and the purchase price (including the value of the shares to be issued to the former owners) has been
allocated to the acquu'ed assets and habxhnes as follows

_ ) (in thousands)
Net assets at date of acquisition (October 22,2002) ..................... $ 602
In-process research and development ................. ... .. ... ....... 12,200
GoodwWill . .. e e e e ‘ 14,092
Purchase price . .........oiiiiriii i e e e $26,894

As part of the Transaction Agreement, Opsys granted a call option to the Company and the Company
granted a put option to Opsys, upon the exercise of which, the Company would purchase and Opsys would sell
all of the remaining shares of CDT Oxford outstanding not already owned by the Company. In further
consideration for the grant of the call option, the Company paid an option price of $0.5 million in cash to Opsys.
The put option was exercisable by Opsys by 60 days prior written notice to the Company at any time following
the completion of the Transaction Agreement. The call option was automatically exercisable by the Company
immediately prior to an Insolvency Event, as defined, of Opsys, or by giving 90 days written notice to Opsys for
any of the following circumstances: (a) an initial public offering of the Company, (b) at any time on or after the
sixth anniversary of the Transaction Agreemerit, (c) if there was a Sale, as defined, of the Company, where the -
consideration on sale payable to Opsys thereunder would have been liquid or a sufficient proportion liquid to
allow Opsys to pay the Section 179 Charge payable, or (d) if the Section 179 Charge became payable by CDT .
Oxford, where the Section 179 Charge is defined as a tax liability arising under Section 179 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act of 1992, a tax provision in the United Kingdom. The put and call were to have been settled
with a maximum of 678,607 shares of Class A Common Stock at a deemed value of $27.60 per share.
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Opsys could exercise the put option if it could establish that its aggregate liabilities did not exceed $1.25

million and the shares of Opsys UK comp‘ rised the only material assets of Opsys. The shares to be issued in
consideration were to be reduced on a prq rata basis to the extent that Opsys had liabilities up to $1.25 million, at

a deemed price for the purpose of calculating such reductron of $27 60 per share..

The terms of the Transaction Agreen‘lent were entered into by the Company so that it could gain control of
and economic interest in the UK assets an”d operations of Opsys (which had been transferred to Opsys UK
immediately prior to the transaction) in such a manner to avoid acquiring any interest in any other assets or

liabilities of Opsys. - . ll

Subsequent to the Company’s original agreement with Opsys in October 2002, certain disputes arose with.
Opsys which were settled by a Settlementlland Amendment Agreement pursuant to which the Company acquired
100% of the shares of Opsys Limited in Dwecember 2004 for the issue of 797,695 shares of its common stock. At
the time of this acquisition. Opsys had liabilities of $1.6 million which the Company agreed to discharge. Also,
19,736 shares of common stock were 1ssued to two former directors of Opsys in'settlement of $0.2 million of
these liabilities. The remaining $1.4 million of these liabilities has been discharged by the Company in cash
during 2005. The amended and restated Settlement and Amendment Agreement provides for an escrow of
approximately 53% of the 797, 695 shares 1ssuable to the Opsys shareholders against certain contingent liabilities
and the possibility that other liabilities wxll emerge. The number of shares’ held in escrow was initially 422,610
and subsequent changes are described in the table below:

Initial escrow shares at Decembcl,r 31,2004 . .o L. 422,610

- Shares transferred to Company 1% December 2005 due to Opsys liabilities :

exceeding contractual limit . .‘l ....................................... - (14,056)
Shares released from escrow to the former shareholders of Opsys, pursuant to

Transactlon Agreement, in De‘Icember 2005 . . (201,124)

Shares held in escrow at December 31,2005 ......... ...t 207,430

|
l

When the Company issued, in the aggregate 817,431 shares of common stock in conjunction with the
Opsys transaction described above to.the shareholders of Opsys and to the escrow agent, based on the initial
public offering price of $12.00 per share, the value of that stock was $9.8 million. The actual total purchase
consideration was lower than that amount Which had been estimated on January 1, 2004, pursuant to the adoption
of FIN 46(R), as described above. This am‘ount is, therefore, recorded as a reduction in goodwrll related to the
Opsys acquisition, from $14.1 million to $6 9 million, in December 2004. ‘

Litrex

In August 2003, the Company sold 50% of the equity in its subsidiary, Litrex to Ulvac Inc, a Japanese
company, for $15.1 million, of which $1.4 “mrlhon was held in'an escrow account. Under the terms of the Sale
and Purchase Agreement, the Company made a number of warranties (which are secured by the amount held in
escrow) and had other ongoing commitments, notably a Joint Venture Agreement with Ulvac under which the
Company appoints three of the six Board rnembers of Litrex. The Joint Venture Agreement contained provisions
that the Company and Ulvac would have to ‘ work together to restructure Litrex if the level of funding that Ulvac
has committed to under the Joint Venture /}greement were to be exceeded—in this context, the Company was
committed to working with Ulvac to ensurf% that Litrex was funded for as long as the Company retained an equity
stake in Litrex. In addition, the Company and Ulvac each signed a commitment letter to Litrex under the terms of
which, if Litrex requested additional fundug in order to maintain its operations, both the Company and Ulvac
would provide such funding up to a maxrmr’lm of $1.25 million from each party. In light of the continuing
commitments described above, the excess of the cash proceeds over the carrying value of the shares sold,
amounting, to $5.8 million, was deferred anll shown as “Deferred proceeds on sale of subsidiary stock™ on the
consolidated balance sheet for 2004. The $1 4 million beld in escrow was not included in this “Deferred
proceeds” amount and was not otherwise u‘lcluded in the Company’s financial statements. The Company realized

this gain as other income when the sale of the remaining 50% of Litrex was concluded in November 2005.

l‘g F-17




On November 4, 2005 the Company entered into a Second Sale and Purchase Agreement with Ulvac and
Litrex under the terms of which the Company sold to Ulvac its remaining 50% interest in Litrex. Under the terms of
this agreement, Ulvac paid the Company a cash consideration of $9.7 million comprising the previously agreed
purchase price of $10.0 million less $0.3 million comprising the Company’s agreed contribution to Litrex’s
Retention Bonus Plan. Of the proceeds, $1.0 million, or 10% of this consideration, has been put into escrow for a
period of one year. This escrow amount is held as security in the event that Ulvac makes a claim against the
Company for breach of warranty or breach of covenant including Litrex becoming liable to repay any of the grants
which it received from the U. S. Government pursuant to the arrangements described in Note 13 below. The escrow
period may be extended for a further year if the status of the potential liability in relation to the U. S. Government
grant has not been settled by November 2006. Pursuant to the 2003 Sale and Purchase Agreement, the $1.4 million
which had been held in escrow since the sale of the first 50% of Litrex in 2003 was released to the Company in
November 2005. Litrex also repaid its loan from the Company of $1.7 million in November 2005, plus $0.1 million
of interest. On November 3, 2005, the Company entered into an agreement with Philips Electronics N. V. of the
Netherlands under the terms of which it paid $1.0 million to Philips, of which $0.6 million had originally been paid
in 2004 and was being held in escrow and $0.4 million was paid in cash in November 2005, in consideration for
Philips entering into a license agreement with Litrex in settlement of a claim made against Litrex by Philips
Electronics N. V. for certain intellectual property rights. Sale proceeds in 2005, net of the $0.4 million Philips
payment, and excluding the $1.7 million loan repayment amounted to $9.7 million.

The total net gain recognized in the fourth quarter of 2005 is $15.9 million. The gain is higher than the
proceeds received during the November 2005 transaction due to the 2003 deferral of the gain on the sale of the
initial 50% interest in Litrex. The Company has not recognized any gain with respect to the $1.0 million which
remains in escrow and will not do so unless and until this amount is released.

Details of the gain on sale of Litrex and the cash receipts are summarized in the table below:

‘ ) (in 'thousandé)

Sale Proceeds 2003, net of expenses ..........c.oviiiiieniniineiennn... $12,104
"Costof 50% Of INVESIIMENT . . .0 oot et v e et et e $(11,140)

Less S0% of Losses to August 14,2003 . ... .. ... ... i i © 4,821

o ) , L - (6319)

Deferred Gain on 2003 Sale . .. ...... [T RO 5,785

Sales Proceeds 2005 (including escrow release from 2003), net of expenses . . .. 9,740

Cost of remaining 50% investment ............. ... ... iiiiiiiiiiian.. (11,140)

Less all remaining losses to November 4,2005 ......................... 11,550

, 410
Total gain recognized .. ...... e e e e e $15,935

4. Propérty, Equipment and Leasehold Improvements
Property, equipment and leasehold improvements include the following at December 31:

2005 2004

' o . (in thousands)
Machinery and equipment ............ 0.0 . .. $24678 $22,120
Leasehold improvements ................... e e e » 9,111 9,066 .
Furniture and office equipment .............. ... ... ... i i ... 3,286 3,076.

‘ : ' ‘ 37,075 34,262
Less:"accumulated depreciation .................... e e e (23,482) (18,267)

$13,593  § 15,995




Deprecation expense for the years eqded December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 were $5.5 million, $6.0 million
and $6.3 million, respectively. e , . .
’ ]

5. - Investments
Investments in Affiliates

Summary financial information for significant affiliated companies accounted for by the equity method is as
follows:

Litfex (for the CDT Oxford (for

Litrex year ended) Litrex post the year ended)
to Nov 4, 2005 - 2004 Aug. 14, 2003 2003
: : . . (in thousands)

Current assets .. .ovvvve e e $ 5722 $ 7,008 $ 4,656 $ 2,049
Non-current assets ..........covvvviihvienn.. 11,735 12,231 12,555 1,968
Current liabilities .................. . ...c..... (10,539) (9,069) (5,377) 4,523)
Non-current liabilities ............. R A 63) N ) (83) J—
Netsales ... ... P F R 7,931 8260 2,151 353
Gross profit .'............oveeiriiiiliiiain.. 2,738 13,197 33 25
Netloss ......... ..o, R (5,689) (4,922) (2,569) (2,355)

Until November 2005, the Company; owned 50% of Litrex and accounted for it as an affiliate under the -
equity method. The equity in the underlymg net assets of Litrex was approximately $2.5 million and $5 million
in 2004 and 2003, respectively. On November 4, 2005 the Company entered into a Second Sale and Purchase
Agreement with Ulvac and Litrex under ttlle terms of which Ulvac completed its purchase of 50% of the equity of
Litrex from the Company. See also Note 1\3

\ .

The Company owns 40% of Arborescent 2 Limited (“Arborescent”) and accounts for it as an affiliate under
the equity method. As at December 31, 20 05 the carrying value of this investment was zero, since the
Company’s share of losses exceeded its cash investient. The equity in the underlying net assets'of Arborescent
was approximately one thousand in 2005. The equity in the underlying net liabilities of Arborescent was
approximately thirteen thousand dollars in 2004. The difference in the investment in Arborescent and the
Company’s interest in the equity in the un“derlymg net liabilities is as a result of Arborescent havmg net liabilities
in 2004. The difference affecting the determmatlon of the Company s share of earnings or losses of Arborscent
will be recognized when Arborscent gener .rates sufficient net income to offset the Company s share of any
historical losses or deficits not previously recogmzed

In November 2005, the Company in\lested 170 million Yen ($1.5 million) in Sumation, to acquire a 50%
share of a joint venture company formed with Sumitomo Chemical, to develop, manufacture, market and sell
P-OLED materials. Sumitomo Chemical had purchased the Lumation® P-OLED material business of Dow
Chemical and rights to use the acquired iﬂte]lectual property have been licensed to Sumation, together with
intellectual property rights from Sumitomo and the Company and access to dedicated research teams at both
Sumitomo’s and the Company’s facilities! The Company owns 50% of Sumation and has valued this investment
at $1.7 million being the amount invested E’plus associated expenses. The investment is held in Yen and is
revalued at the end of every quarter, any forelgn curreéncy gain or loss being taken to Other Comprehensive Loss.
The carrying value of investment in Sumatlon at December 31, 2005 was $0.8 million being the amount initially

invested less the Company’s share of its 1osses

The Company and Sumitomo have efﬂ!ltered into a Joint Venture Agreement (the “JVA”) to govern Sumation.
This JVA is of indefinite term, but does 1nclude provisions for the sale of part or all of the Company’s equity

stake to Sumitomo at fair market value after a minimum of five years. The Company and Sumitomo are
comxmtted under the JVA to an initial two -year budget for Sumation and additional funds will be requested on an
as-needed” basis, with equal funding coming from each party. After the initial two-year period of providing

such services, good faith discussions will take place regarding the third and subsequent years. The Company and
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Sumitomo have equal representation on the board of Sumation. In conjunction with the execution of the JVA,
and the licensing of the CDT Oxford licensed materials intellectual property to Sumation, the Company has’
executed executing amendments to existing licenses to Dow Chemical (now assigned to Sumitomo Chemical)
and to Sumitomo Chemical to enable Sumitomo Chemical (on behalf of itself and as successor to the license to
Dow Chemical) to sub-license this intellectual property to Sumation. For an initial period of three years,
Sumation has sub-contracted its manufacturing requirements to Sumitomo Chemical with Sumltomo Chemical
having the right to sub-contract this manufacturing to its affiliates.

The JVA may be terminated by either party by mutual written agreement, or by one of the parties in the case
of a material breach of the other party. In addition, the JVA may be terminated in the event of the bankruptcy or
insolvency of either party, or if a 40% interest.is acquired in one party by a direct and substantial competitor of
the other joint venture party. The JVA will also terminate if Sumitomo acquires 100% of the shares in Sumation.

Marketable Securmes

The Company owns less than 5% of Plastic Log1c Limited and less than 5% of MicroEmissive Displays plc.
Plastic Logic is an early stage private company and the Company values this investment at zero. M1croEmlss1ve
Displays plc is listed on the Alternative Investment Market of the London Stock Exchange and is held as an
available for sale marketable security which is revalued based on the market price of the securities at the end of
each period. Marketable equity securities consist of investment in common stock with a market value of $0.6
million and.a cost of $1.1 million. At December.31, 2005, management re-evaluated the designation of this
investment and determined it to be a non-current asset based on its developing a closer relationship with MED
during 2005, including the provision of consultancy and other services. The-Company has no current intention to
sell its equity stake in MED.

Other Investments

In March 2005, the Company 1nvested $1.0 Imlhon in Add- V151on, Inc. (“Add-Vision”), a company located
in Cahforma that researches and develops flexible, low cost, low resolution displays, in return for preferred stock
with a 17% voting interest. It also granted Add-Vision a license to its intellectual property in return for preferred
stock with a 22% voting interest. As a result of these transactlons the Company acquired, in the aggregate, a
39% voting interest in Add-Vision and has appomted two directors to its board. The Company’s carrying value
of this investment is $1.1 million, comprising the amount invested in cash plus associated costs. The equity in the
underlymg net assets of Add-Vision was apprommately $0.3 million at December 31, 2005. It has not ass1gned
any additional value to the preferred stock issued in return for the license. Further investments were made in
Add-Vision by third parties unrelated to the Company during 2005 and, at December 31, 2005, the Company’s
voting interest was 31% and its ownership interest was approximately 42%. The Company does not control
Add-Vision and, since it does not own any of its common stock or in-substance equivalents, it is accounting for
its investment using the cost method.

The investment is the only investment held by the Company which is being accoun'ted‘for using the cost
method. Pyrsuant to EITF 03-01, the Company has not estimated the fair Valué of this investment, but has
investigated whether or not there have been any events or changes in circumstance that may have a significant
adverse effect on the fair value and has determined that there have been no such events or changes and that
therefore, the carrying value of this mvestment is not ‘impaired.

6. Other Intangible Assets

2005 2004
) . o . . . N - a (in thousands)
Gross other intangible assets ............ Seernenens e © $10,700  $12,700
Accumulated amortization .\.. ... i FPRT S ce (7.803)  (8,223)
Other intangible assets . .............................. LT 82,897 84477




amortization was, therefore, written off.| -

7.

(a)
()

In October 2001, the Company, for payment of $5 million, entered into a nonexclusive license agreement
with another third party to enable the Company to use certain technology, intellectual property rights and know-
how. The license term continues until the last of the patents ceases to be in force, unless it is terminated early
under certain circumstances, as-defined 1’n the agreement. The agreement allows for sublicenses to be granted by
the Company. The license is being amortized over five years. The fair value of license and patent rights acquired
upon the acquisition of Limited by the dompany in 1999 amounted to $5.6 million and.-is being.amortized over
ten years. The remaining $0.1 million relates to intellectual property rights which were acquired from a third
party in February 2004 and are being amortized over five years. In 2005, the Company determined that a license
for intellectual property which had been {purchased for $2.0 million in 2002 and had been fully amortized, was no
longer in use, since, without this license,i{ the Company still had rights to the intellectual property covered by the
license from other contractual anangements; The value of the license, and the corresponding accumulated

I
»

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expe[nses consist of the following: ‘

Accounts Payable
Accruals
Payroll related

UK National Insurance payable on stock compensation

Liabilities assumed on acquisition of Opsys Limited

i

Costs related to sales of Company Stock

Other professional fees .. ... |

Payable to universities for research services

I
Facilities related costs

Total Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Common Stock

Unrealised loss on forward currency contracts
Other accruals related to 0perat10ns

.Common Stock outstanding at January 1, 2003

Converted to preferred stock, March 2003 (a)

l

Common Stock outstanding at December 31, 2003

. {
Issued on conversion of preferred s

Issued on IPO, December 2004 (c)

Issued to parties related to Opsys Limited, December 2004 (d)

Common Stock outstanding at Dec’ember 31, 2004
Issued in private offering, December 2005 (e)

Issued in settlement of liability, December 2005 (f)
Cancelled due to non-payment of secured promissory notes, December 2005 (g ..
Cancelled pursuant to Opsys escrow, December 2005 (d)

Common stock outstanding at December 31, 2005

ock, December 2004 (b)

- 2004

2005

(in thousands)
$1285  $1,113
1943 1,997
679 623
100 . 1,370
1,248 394
103 672
162 648
233 705
511 —
1,046 1,082
$7.910  $8,604
9,771,561
_(79,245)
9.692,316
6,475.736
2,500,000
_ 817,431
19,485,483
2,187,500
1,720
(177,442)
(14,056)
..... 21,483,205

As described in Note 9 below, 79,245 shares of Class A common stock were converted to redeemable
convertible preferred stock in March 2003.
On August 10, 2004, the Company ! vﬁled an amendment to the Certificate of Designations defining the terms
es B redeemable convertible preferred stock to amend the provisions

of the Company’s Series A and Sen
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- governing the mandatory conversion of such shares of preferred stock upon consummation of an ‘
underwritten initial public offering of the'Company’s common stock. This redeemable convertible preferred
stock is described in more detail in note' 9 below. Under the terms of the amendment, in the event of an
initial public offering prior to December 31, 2004 which did not fall within the previous definition of a
“Qualifying IPO” but under which the pre-money market capitalization of the Company exceeded $200
million, then-all of the series A and series B redeemable convertible preferred stock would mandatorily
convert to common stock. The number of shares of common stock to be issued would be such number of

. shares which, at the IPO price, equalled 2.25 times the amount originally paid for that stock plus, in the case
of the Series A an additional $6 million of stock in relation to the Initial Investor Preference. Pursuant to this
arrangement, immediately prior to the Company’s IPO in December 2004, all of the Company’s Series A
and Series B preferred stock was converted into 6,475,736 shares of common stock, with an aggregate value
of $77.7 million, or $77.3 million net of expenses, at the TPO price of $12.00 per shares.

(c) 2,500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock were issued to investors in our initial public offenng on
the Nasdaq National Market in December 2004. ‘

(d) 817,431 shares of common stock were issued to parties related to Opsys L1mlted in December 2004
including 422,610 shares initially held in escrow. Of the shares held in escrow, 14,056 were cancelled in

: December 2005 as part of the Settlement and Amendment Agreement. See Note 3 above.

(e) 2,187,500 shares of the Company’s common stock were issued to investors in its private placement in
December 2005.

(f) 1,720 shares of the Company’s common stock were issued as pan of the settlement by the Company of an
arbitration action in December 2005.

(g) In consideration for 177,442 shares of the Company’s common stock issued to two shareholders in July
1999, the shareholders issued secured, full recourse promissory notes, in the aggregate, of $3:1 million to
the Company. The promissory notes were due in September 2005. The obligation of the shareholders under
the promissory notes were secured by the 177,442 shares issued to the two shareholders. In September 2005,
both shareholders defaulted on the promissory notes. Due to the irrecoverability of the promissory notes, the
177,442 shares on which the notes were secured were cancelled.

9, Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock

During 2002, the Company authorized issuance of up to 44,667 shares of $0. 01 par, redeemable convertible
preferred stock in two series. Series A Preferred Stock consists of 6,000 shares and Series B Preferred Stock
consists of 38,667 shares (collectively “Preferred Stock™). In December 2002, 6,000 shares of Series A preferred
stock and 9,000 shares of Series B preferred stock were issued for cash consideration of $6 million and $9
million, respectively. At the same time, 10,000 shares of Series B preferred stock were issued in exchange for
362,341 shares of Class A common stock. In March 2003, a further 4,683.6 shares of Series B preferred stock
were issued for cash consideration of $4.7 million, and 2,187 shares of Series B preferred stock were issued in
exchange for 79,245 shares of Class A common stock: - : -

Each share of Preferred Stock was convertible into 36.23 shares of Class A Common Stock at a price equal
to $27.60 per common share (the “Conversion Price”). The Conversion Price was subject to change in certain
circumstances, including stock splits and dividends. There were no separate dividends on the preferred ‘shares,
other than sharing in any dividends declared and paid on the Common Stock (including both Class A voting and
Class B nonvoting) on an as-converted basis. The Preferred Stock was redeemable by the holders 10 years after
issuance. On December 31, 2003, there were 6,000 shares of Series A convertible preferred stock issued and
outstanding, which could convert into 217,406 shares of common stock, and 25,870.6 shares of Series B
convertible preferred stock issued and outstanding, which could convert to 937,405 shares of common stock plus
217,406 shares of common stock that would be issuable under the Initial Investor Preference prov1510ns
described below. :

As described in Note 8 above, all of the Company’s Series A and Series B preferred stock was converted to
the Company’s common stock in December 2004, immediately prior to the Company’s initial public offering.
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Pursuant to the Securities and Exche%nge Commission Accounting Series Release No. 268, the difference
between the issue price of the Preferred Stc)ck and the redemption value has been accreted to the carrying value
of the Preferred Stock from the subscnptlon date until the Company’s IPO in December 2004. Preferred stock
accretion amounts have been charged to. ]ﬂ’ald in-Capital and credited to Preferred Stock. The Company accreted
$11.6 million for the Series A preferred s;cock and $27.2 million for the Series B preferred stock in 2004, $1.8
million for the Series A preferred stock and $5 million for the Series B preferred stock in 2003, and $0.1 million
for the Series A preferred stock and $0.2 “rmlhon for the Series B preferred stock in 2002. The amounts accreted
in 2002 and 2003 and from January 1, 2094 until the Company’s initial public offering were based.on a ten-year
accretion schedule. The amount accreted in December 2004 was, pursuant to SFAS 84 “Induced conversions of
Convertible Debt” (“SFAS84”) and EITFq issue D-42 which applies SFAS 84 to induced conversions of preferred
stock. The accretion immediately prior to) this beneficial conversion was the difference between the amount paid
initially for the Preferred Stock, plus the accretion to date based on a redemption at ten years and the value of the
common stock into which the Preferred Stock would convert, at the initial-public offering price.

‘ -

The following table summarizes infg miatioﬁ c;‘o_ncem‘_ing chéngeé in fhe Conipany’s_preferred stock:
' ‘  SeriesA . SeriesB |

Balance at January 1,2003 .. .... oo ee e R $ 6,097 $19204
Issued in Exchange for Shares of Class A Common Stock ......... PR — 2,187
Issued in Exchangefor Cash .....0 ... ... ... o i it — 4,684
Accretion of Liquidation Preferenceh .................................. 1,800 4,971
Expenses of Issue of Preferred.Stock[ ................................. — (456)
Balance at December 31,2003 . . ... $ 7,897 $ 30,590
Accretion of Liquidation Preferénce| ........................c... A 11,603 27,163
Conversion of Preferred Stock to Common Stock . ...................... (19,500)  (57,753)
Balance at December 31,2004 ... .. ... e $ - 8 —

; N B

|

10. Stock-Based Compensatlon and W’arrants

In April 2000, the Company adopted the “CDT Acquisition Corp. Stock Incentive Plan” (the “Plan”). Under
the Plan, options may be granted to emplél)yees consultants and directors. Options available for grant under the
Plan total 1,170,361. Under the Plan, eml%loyees generally are granted two types of options in one grant: Service
Options (one-third of total grant) and Exit Options (two-thirds of total grant). Certain employees of Litrex were
only granted Service Options. Service Opuons granted in 2002 and later were granted at fair market value at date
of grant, and generally vest 25% on the six-month anniversary of grant, and 25% on the anniversary date of each
grant for each of the next three years. Falxl value was determined by reference to equity sold during the relevant
period. Service options to Litrex employe"es were granted at fair market value at date of grant, vest 20% on the .
six-month anniversary of grant, and 20% on the anniversary date of each grant for each of the next four years.
Prior Service Options were generally granted at fair market value at date of grant, vest 25% on the date of grant
and 25% per annum thereafter and have lives of no more than 10 3 years. Exit Opt1ons become exercisable, if at,
all, on the date of the first occurrence of aH change in control (a “Vesting Event”, as define in the Plan), in which
the majority shareholders receive an internal rate of return of at least 30%. If upon the first Vesting Event, the
required internal rate of return is not achieved, they shall not become exercisable as a result of a Subsequent
Vesting Event, as defined by the Plan. Upon the sale of the 50% interest, all Litrex options were cancelled in

August 2003.

In August 2004, the Company adopted a new Stock Incentive Plan. The plan provides for the award of
(i) stock options (including incentive stock options), (ii) restricted stock and restricted units, (iii) stock
appreciation rights, (iv) incentive stock and incentive units and (v) deferred shares and supplemental units.
Awards may be made to directors, ofﬁcerls, employees and consultants. Any options issued will be priced at fair
market value and the number of shares subject to such options and awards will be a maximum of 725,000 of
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shares of the Company’s common stock plus such number of options granted under the existing stock incentive
plan as are forfeited under such plan or which otherwise lapse after December 2004. The Company issued 92,000
stock options under the terms of this plan in December 2004 and 270,500 stock options during 2005, such
options to vest in three equal annual installments from the date of grant and with an exercise price of fair market

value. :

- - Through December 31, 2005, the Company applied Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”), and related interpretations in accounting for its
employee stock options. Under APB 25, because the exercise price of most of the Company’s Service Options
equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant, no compensation expense is recognized. For
Exit Options, if an appropriate Vesting Event becomes probable, compensation expense will have to be recorded
for the intrinsic value, which would be the difference between the market value on the date of the Vesting Event
and the exercise price. No compensation expense will be recorded prior to the Vesting Event. In the event that the
exercise price is below the market price of the Service Options, compensation expense will be recorded on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company
expensed zero, one thousand and nineteen thousand dollars respectively, related to Service Options granted with

an exercise price below the market price.

The following table summarizes information concerning the outstanding and exercisable options:

Weighted
) Average
Number of Exercise Price Exercise
‘ Shares Range Price
Outstanding, January 1,2003 .......... . ... ittt 925,703 $17.82 -%$27.60 $21.17
Granted .. ... e e s 134,006 $27.60 $27.60
Cancelled .. ..ottt e e (183,747) $17.82-$27.60 $25.09
Outstanding, December 31,2003 ..................ccviiirnnnn.. 875962 $17.82-$27.60 $21.67
Granted ... ..t e e e s 161,051 $11.18 - $27.60 $18.36
Cancelled .......... e (83,096) $17.82-%$27.60 $25.47
Outstanding, December 31,2004 ........ ... ..., 953,917 $11.18-%$27.60 $20.50
Granted . ... .. e e i 270,500 $ 5.70-%11.63 $ 7.80
Cancelled ............... e e e e - (437,727) $11.18-%27.60 $21.31
Outstanding December 31,2005 . ......... ..t 786,690 $ 5.70-$27.60 $15.75
Exercisable December 31,2005 ................... ...l 261.989 $11.18-$27.60 $20.49
Exercisable, December 31,2004 . .......... E 314,905 $17.82-$27.60 $20.73
................................ 216,517 $17.82-%$27.60 $19.79

Exercisable, December 31, 2003

At December 31, 2005, there remain 800,227 options available for future grants, including options wlﬁch

have been cancelled and, therefore, are available for future grants.




Options and warrants outstanding: .
Weighted Average
: Remaining Contractual - :
m - R : * . Life (years) Number Outstanding Number Exercisable
Options o ‘ : _ ST
$570 ... e [ - 9.84 - 3,000 —
$7.40 ....... s PO ST L 9.74 ' 180,000 —_
$8.00 ... A : 9.58 : 40,000 —
$8.04 ... 9.17 25,000 —
$8.55 . R . 9.42 ' 7,500 e
$11.18 ... v 9.93 56,504 18,835
$11.63 .. o 9.91 15,000 —
$12.00 ... o 8.96 27,496 9,165
$17.82 . 4.48 ‘ 244,898 , 143,077
$24.18 ... L 5.53 . 61,444 36,086
$2760 ... ol P ' w 125,848 54,826
Total Options . ..........oouvineih s, 7_37 786,690 261,989
Warrants .
$12.00 ... . 5.0 656,250 —
$17.82 .. L 1_7 3,218 3,218
Total Warrants . . .......oooevvnnn ... 50 659,468 3,218

A warrant exercisable for 3 218 shares of the Company § common stock at an exercise price of $17.82 per
share was issued in August 2000 and w111 expire in August 2007.

Warrants exercisable for 656,250 shares, in the aggregate were issued in December 2005 in conjunction
with a private placement of the Companﬂlz s common stock. These warrants are exercisable from between 180
days and five years from the date of issuance. These warrants may be exercised on a cashless basis pursuant to
which the selling shareholders would be }‘wsued a quantity of shares based on the intrinsic value of the warrants at
the date of exercise. The Company will ﬁot receive any cash payment from the selling shareholders upon any
exercise of the warrants on a cashless baﬂsrs

Prior to the Company’s initial publi‘rc: offering, the fair value of common stock options was established
contemporaneously with their issuance based upon reference to various common and preference stock rounds
concluded by the Company. Such value w was $17.82 per share through November 2000, $24.18 per share from
December 2000 to September 2001 and ?27 .60 per share thereafter until the Company’s initial public offering in
December 2004. The fair value of comrnon stock issued on the date of the Company’s initial public offering was
set at the offering price of $12.00 and after the Company’s common stock became publicly quoted is set at the
closing price of the stock on the Nasdag! National Market on the day the options are issued — options have been
issued at prices between $5.70 and $11 .63 under this method. In September 2005, six officers of the company
voluntarily surrendered, in the aggregatel 365,447 options with exercise prices of between $17.82 and $27.60.
These officers were all recipients of s1gmﬁcant awards of restricted stock units under the terms of the special
bonus plan described below and believed that it would be beneficial to the Company for the potentially dilutive
effect of these stock options to be ehmm{ated

I f

In August 2004, the Company adopted a specral bonus plan. Under the plan, the Company awarded special
bonuses to its employees out of a bonus pool equal to a percentage of the “notional purchase price” (as defined in
the plan) paid upon a liquidity event. A liquidity event was defined as any transaction or series of transactions
involving the disposal of the Company o its assets by Kelso and Hillman Capital or a public offering of the

Company’s stock. The notional purchasé price calculation was based on the market capitalization of the

1
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Company’s shares outstanding immediately prior to the company’s initial public offering, which was in turn is
based on the initial public offering price of the Company’s common stock. The bonus pool was equal to 6% of
the notional purchase price up to and including $100 million, plus 8% of the notional purchase price for amounts
from $100 million up to and including $200 million, plus 10% of the notional purchase price for amounts from
$200 million up to and including $300 million, plus 15% of the notional purchase price for amounts above $300
million. Since the liquidity event was a public offering, awards under the plan were paid in restricted stock units
based on shares of the Company’s stock which will vest on each of the first three anniversaries of the liquidity
event, or earlier in the event that Kelso sells all or a portion of its shares in the Company. '

In 2004, the Company allocated awards under its special bonus plan to officers and employees. These
awards were made from a bonus pool with a value of $14.4 million, based on the initial public offering price for
its common stock of $12.00 per share. All awards under this plan made with respect to this offering were made in
restricted stock units representing a right to receive, in the aggregate, 1,200,000 shares of our common stock.
Except as discussed below, such awards will vest in three equal installments on each of the first three
anniversaries of the public offering. However, if Kelso sells, in the aggregate, more than 25% of its shares of our
common stock, such awards will vest in full upon such sale. The Company is generally expensing the value of
these awards principally over a three-year period commencing December 2004, subject to acceleration in the
event of a Kelso sale.

Approximately 85% of the awards made under this plan will be subject to U.K. employer’s national
insurance tax, which is currently 12.8% of the value of the awards and which would be payable by the Company
based on the market value of the stock on the date it becomes available for sale. The award to our chief executive
officer, representing 35% of the bonus pool, or restricted stock units with an intrinsic value under APB 25 of $5.0
million at $12 per share, will vest whether or not he remains employed by us unless he is terminated for cause (as
defined in his employment agreement), if his employment agreement is not extended for cause or if he terminates
his employment in circumstances that justify termination for cause. The value of this award, plus the U.K.
employer’s national insurance tax of 12.8% payable by us, was expensed upon the consummation of our initial
public offering. The remaining 65% of the bonus pool is being expensed over the three year vesting period. The
accrued charge for the U.K. employer’s national insurance tax will depend on the market price of our common -
stock when it is delivered and will be subject to variability upon fluctuations in our stock price until such time as
all shares of our common stock have been delivered to recipients of awards under this plan. The U. K. National
Insurance will have to be paid at the time the stock is issued to the award holders.

In 2004, the Company charged $5.1 million to operating expenses $5.0 million of which comprised the
value of the award made to the Company’s chief executive officer which vested upon issuance and $0.1- million
related to two weeks vesting in 2004 of the awards to other bonus holders. These awards are being charged to
expense on a fixed accounting basis over their three-year vesting period. $0.6 million was accrued in relation to
the potential UK national insurance liability—this accrual will vary depending on the share pnce at the end of
each quarter, the vesting schedule and the current UK national insurance rate -

In 2003, the Company charged $3.1 million to operating expenses in relation to awards to bonus holders
other than the Company’s chief executive officer. A net charge of $0.1 million was recognized in relation to the
potential U. K. employer’s national insurance tax liability. This charge consisted of a revaluation of the liability
which had-been accrued at December 31,2004 due to a decline in the Company’s share price offset by a charge
related to expensing of awards'in the twelve months ended December 31, 2005.

The U.K. national insurance tax accrual on special bonus plan awards will continue to vary depending on
the share price at the end of each quarter, the vesting schedule, the current U. K. emiployer’s national insurance
tax rate and whether or not award holders become subject to, or continue to be subject to, U.K. national insurance
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11. Income Taxes

The Company is liable for franchise

taxes to Delaware, its state of incorporation. An amount of $0.2 million

has been included in the provision for income taxes for each of the years ended December-31, 2005, 2004 and

2003. The U.K. Subsidiaries of the Comp
tax credit program. Under this program,
a deduction in taxable profits of 150% th

salaries, salary related costs and consuma
% of the total deduction for those years during which the Company

be surrendered for a cash payment of 16"1

any are eligible to participate in the U.K.’s research and development

small and medium sized enterprises, such as the Company, are permitted
e amount of certain research and development expenditures (primarily

bles used in research and development activities). This deduction may

sustains a loss. Limited and CDT Oxford|

have both claimed and received such cash payments for the years ended

December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 and have booked a credit for 2005 which will be claimed and is-expected to

be paid in 2006. q\

The amount accrued for the “Taxes ’recewable” balance of $2 m1111on at December 31, 2005 consists of $1.9.

million of income tax refunds due for the
anticipated United Kingdom value added
million in relation to 2003 was reviewed
met the criteria of being a small or mediu
adjustment was deemed necessary to this
$1.5 million in relation to the year ended
settled in full in October 2005.

The following is a reconciliation of

application to earnings before income tax

Statutory tax rate

Change in valuation allowance ...

Research and development tax credi

Effective tax rate

year ended December 31, 2005. The balance of $0.1 million represents
tax recoveries. The Company’s claim for an income tax refund of $2.1
by the U. K. tax authorities with respect to whether or not the Company
m-sized enterprise. This review was concluded in May 2005 and no
claim which was settled in full in June 2005. A claim for repayment of
December 31, 2004 was made in the third quarter of 2005 and was

he statutory financial income tax rate and the effective income tax rate
es for the year ended December 31:

. 2005 2004 2003
.............................. 350% 35.0% 35.0%
............................. (35.00% (35.0)% (35.0)%
E e (11.4)% 6% (39%
.............................. (11.4H% (6% (3.9%

Deferred income taxes reflect the ne[t tax effects of operating loss and credit carryforwards and temporary
dlfferences between the carrying amount§ of assets and liabilities for financial reporting and the amount used for
income tax purposes. Given the Company s activities and the uncertainty of the. future utilization of these

carryforwards, the Company has provide

Significant components of the Comp

taxes are as follows at December 31:

Deferred tax assets

Nét operating loss carry forwards .

Other

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred revenue
Tax over book depreciation

d valuatlon allowances for the full amount of the net deferred tax asset.

any’s net deferred tax balances for federal, state and foreign income

2005 2004 2003
Lo $26407  $22940 _$ 18,004
| DU 4,056 2,556 220

30463 25496 18224
Lo (38) - (38) —
R TEIRTrr, (3,069)  (4,178)  (4,800)
SERTITPRR 27356~ 21280 13,424
(aSSetS . (27356)  (21280)  (13,424)




The majority of the net operating loss carryforwards are available only to the results of the UK.
Subsidiaries and their respective consolidated entities ($82 million in 2003, $74 miltion in 2004 and $60 million
in 2003). They are not available to offset income, if any, earned by the Company or any non-U.K. operations.
Under U K. tax laws, such loss carryforwards do not expire, and under certain circumstances, can be used by
other U.K. controlled group entities.

12. Employee Retirement Plans

Limited contributes to individual defined contribution retirement plans for its employees. For the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, contributions expensed were $0.4 million, $0.4 million and $0.3
million, respectively. Until December 2005, the Company and Litrex administered a contributory savings plan
under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code for eligible employees. Contributions by employees were not
taxable until retirement or early withdrawal. The Company’s contributions under the Plan, which amounted to
100% of employee contributions to a maximum of 5% of the total eligible compensation, approximated $17
thousand, $13 thousand, and $0.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.

13. Commitments and Contingencies
Contingencies

Included within “Other Intangible Assets” at December 31, 2005 and 2004 is a license for intellectual
property which is valued, net of accumulated amortization, at $0.8 million and $1.8 million, respectively. The
licensor advised the Company in 2004 that this license was terminated, on grounds which the Company believes
are not well founded. The licensor has been in negotiation with the Company with a view to resolving this
dispute such that the Company would retain its rights to this intellectual property and the Company believes that
this dispute will be resolved satisfactorily without recourse to legal action. In the event that these discussions are
not successful, the Company could incur material expenditures on legal proceedings against the licensor and
might have to write off the net value of this asset.

In January 2005, Sunnyside Development Company filed a complaint against Opsys Limited and a company
named by Sunnyside Development as CDT Limited, which is presumably intended to refer to one of the
Company’s subsidiaries, Cambridge Display Technology Limited, in California Supreme Court alleging breach
of contract and fraud arising out of an alleged property lease agreement between Opsys Limited and Sunnyside
Development. Cambridge Display Technology Limited was not party to the lease. Sunnyside Development seeks
compensatory damages that it claims exceed $10 million and punitive damages in the amount of $25 million.
Prior to the Opsys transaction in October 2002, which is described in Note 3, Opsys Limited and Sunnyside
Development executed an Assignment of Lease and Consent of _Lessdr, which included a release of Opsys
Limited by Sunnyside Development. In February 2005, the action was removed to the United States District
Court for the Northern District of California. In April 2005, the United States District Court dismissed all the
claims against CDT Limited and the claim for fraud against Opsys Limited, but gave Sunnyside permission to
amend all its claims. On May 11, 2005, Sunnyside filed an amended complaint reasserting a fraud claim against
both Opsys Limited and “CDT Ltd.” The Company made a further application to dismiss the claims and on
August 8, 2005 the amended claims against CDT Limited and Opsys Limited were dismissed with prejudice and
with no leave to amend, except for the claim for breach of contract against Opsys Limited which is still being
pursued by Sunnyside Development. The Company believes that the claim has no merit and will fail.

Under the terms of a contract between Merck OLED, formerly know as Covion Organic Semiconductors,
and the Company, the Company is obligated to provide the equivalent of ten full service equivalent scientists and
engineers to work on research and development projects related to P-OLED materials until December 2006. The
Company receives royalties from Merck OLED based on the revenues for all Merck OLED’s sales of P-OLED
materials, whether or not those materials were developed by the project team. Until the end of 2005, the royalties
received from Merck OLED were less than the costs of funding the project team and such excess costs have been
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expensed. Since royalties will continue to;be payable after the obligation to provide research services has

concluded, the Company anticipates that tPe contract will be profitable and accordingly has not included a loss
provision. The Company is currently rene‘goﬁatmg the terms of this contract with Merck OLED.

\
On the basis of facts presently know1’3 the Company is not involved in any other legal proceedings which

could have a material adverse effect on th% Company’s financial condition, liquidity or results of operations.

‘ ‘
|

The Company leases land and bulldmgs under operating leases in which they currently conduct their -

business. The leases expire between March 2011 and July 2014, and can be renewed by negotiation. Future -
minimum lease commitments are as follows

|

Commitments

(in thousands)
Year ended December 31:

2006 ..., P $ 617
2007 ..t e e 617
2008 . 617
2009 ... F PP 617
20 ) 0 . S P 617
Thereafter ............ T 1,413

$4,498

Rent expense for the y'ears ended De:

cember 31, 2005,,2004, and 2003 were $0.6 million, $0.7 million, and
$0.9 million, respectively.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004 the Company had contracted for capital expenditures of approximately
$0.1 million and $0.2 million, respectively, which are not reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004 the'! ’Company had contracted for University sponsored research
expenditures of approximately $2.1 million and $1.4 rmlhon respectively, which are not reflected in the

[
accompanying consolidated financial statements:

Litrex led a consortium developing i
government. Up until August 2003, when
company, $1.5 million had been received

nk jet printing technology under a project which is funded by the U.S.
the Company sold 50% of its equity interest in Litrex to a non-US .
by Litrex in grant funding for that project, of which $1.0 million was

passed on to other consortium members. lHJnder the terms of this arrangement, should Litrex be sold to a non-U.S.
company, previously received grant incoxne may have to be reimbursed. The Company sold its remaining 50%

equity interest in Litrex in November 2005 to the same non-U.S. company. In the event that Litrex is obligated to
repay any or all of the $1.5 million, the C‘ompa.ny has agreed that it will reimburse the amount which has to be

repaid (see Note 16).

The Company has a line of credit from Lloyds TSB, a bank in the United Kingdom, that was entered into in
July 2004 providing for a maximum amount of $15.0 million, which was not drawn upon at December 31, 2005
and of which $0.5 million may not be bofrowed This line of credit is available for a minimum of one year,
renewable for two further years, and is secured by a letter of credit issued by Wells Fargo Bank, which is secured
by the Company’s patents, trademarks and copyrights and associated license revenues. In addition to certain
fixed fees payable regardless of whether or not the facility is utilized and which amount to approximately 3% of
the total amount of the facility per year, the Company will be liable to pay interest and charges of 3.75% above
the U.S. dollar London Inter-Bank Offer Rate on any drawing under this facility. Under the terms of this facility,
4 |
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any draw down requires the Company to certify that it continues to satisfy certain financial covenants:
specifically its Consolidated Total Net Worth, as defined, must exceed $75.0 million, and its current assets less
current liabilities, but excluding deferred revenue, rust not be less than minus $15.0 million. These covenants
were met at December 31, 2005. In addition, the Company is required to report the filing of any new patents,
trademarks and copyrights and add those to the existing intellectual property portfolio which has been assigned
as security to TPI Financial Services which arranged the letter of credit. The Company is obligated to maintain
the validity of all of its patents and only to license such patents to third parties under terms which are within the
parameters of its customary licensing practices or to which IPI Financial Services has provided its consent.

The Company will provide 50% of the equity funding of the joint venture, Sumation, which is estimated to
be $8.1 million to March 2007. This funding figure is an estimate and will fluctuate depending on the cash
requirements of the joint venture. The joint venture will fund certain R&D activities in the Company and that
funding is expected to exceed $8.1 million over the same period.

14. Segments

The Company reports segment data in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information”. SFAS No. 131 requires companies to report financial and
descriptive information about their reportable operating segments. The Company identifies its operating
segments based on how management internally evaluates separate financial information, business activities and
management responsibility. :

According to these criteria, the Company operated in two segments during 2003: “CDT Research and
Licensing” (CDT) and “Litrex Ink Jet Equ1pment” (Litrex). CDT Research and Licensing comprises the parent
company and U K. subsidiary operations of the group, whose business is to develop and commercialize
intellectual property concerning P-OLED technology. This segment performs research into P-OLED’s and
similar devices. It seeks to license the intellectual property which results from this research. The Litrex Ink Jet
Equipment segment comprises Litrex Corporation, based in California. Litrex develops and markets ink jet
printing systems which can be used to manufacture P-OLED devices as well as for other applications.

For the year ended December 31, 2005, revenues from three external customers in the CDT business
segment exceeded 10% of the Company’s total revenues. Total revenues from each of these customers were $4.1
million, $2.9 million and $2.8 million, respectively. The Company has $0.4 million receivable from these
customers at December 31, 2005. For the year ended December 31, 2004, revenues from four external customers
in the CDT business segment exceeded 10% of the Company’s total revenues. Total revenues from each of these
customets were $2.9 million, $1.9 million, $1.6 million and $1.4 million, respectively. For the year ended
December 31, 2003, revenues from two external customers in the CDT business segment exceeded 10% of the
Company’s total revenues. Total revenues from each of these customers were $3.2 million and $2. 0 million,
respectlvely : ‘ :

The Company sold 50% of its equity stake in Litrex on August 14, 2003, and, therefore, the segmental data
for 2003 only includes results for the Litrex Ink Jet Equipment segment through this date. After this date, the
financial results of Litrex are reported by the Company using the equity method, and, because the Company has
sold the remaining 50% in November 2005, Litrex Ink Jet Equipment is no longer considered to be a segment.
Since August 14,2003, the Company believes it operates in a single business segment.

F-30




Revenues from external customers .. ...
Inter-segment revenues
Interest income
Interestpayable. ....................
Depreciation and amortization expenses .
Equity in net loss of investees
Income tax (benefit)
Segment (loss)
Segmentassets . .................0
Expendlture for long-lived assets

15. Related Party Transactions

The folloWihg table summarizes tran

Litrex related party transactions

Ink jet printing systems ..............
Other printing related equipment .. ... ..
Services provided by Litrex to Limited .
Services provided by Limited to Litrex .

. 2003

CDT

Litrex Eliminations Total
R $ 8,072 $2608 $—  $ 10,680
Lo — 500 (500) —
L 563 — (148) 415
Lo, 6 (148) 148 - ()
| S 7,704 331 - . (76). 7,959
b, (3.639) - — — (3,639)
. (929) 3 — (932)
b (19,564)  (3,146) 67 . (22,777
.................... 113,870 — . — 113,870
................... 3746 . 98 3,701

(143)

Tac':tions with Litrex, in iwhichl the Company held a 50% equity stake
from August 14, 2003 until November 4, 2

00s.
to November 4, ) post August 14,
2005 2004 2003
; (in thousands)

............................. $2,126 $3.630 $1,863

......................... 118 102 —
........................... 109 1132 —
.......................... $ 249 % 344 $

112

In addltlon to the amounts shown above the Company advanced to L1trex loans of $2 nnlhon in the

aggregate, of which $0.3 million was rech

|

aracterized as a depos1t for an ink jet printing systems. The remaining

$1.7 million, plus interest, was treated as an investment in affiliates and was repaid in November 2005.

\
I

During the year to December 2005, the Company purchased polymer materials for $0.1 million from

'Sumation. Limited and CDT Oxford charged Sumation $1 million for licenses, to be paid in December 2006, and

$1.1 million for R&D services.

During the year ended December 31

,|2003, the Company forwarded cash amounts of $2.8 million to CDT

Oxford, incurred net expenses on their behalf of $0.2 million which were recharged and purchased fixed assets

from them for $0.5 million. As of Decemb
(2002: $0.3 million) from CDT Oxford.

|

|

er 31, 2003, there was an amount due to the Company of $2.6 million

Dr. David Fyfe, CEO, is employed by the Company but is required to work in the U.K. Under the terms of

his employment contract, the Company m:

A U.S. to UK. tax equalization payment is

during the previous year which are in exce

akes payments to him in order that he can settle his U.K. tax liabilities.
s made to Dr. Fyfe each year to compensate him for any taxes payable
ss of what he would have paid had he been working solely in the U.S.

Any payments of U.K. taxes made in the pnor year are netted off the tax equalization payment. During 2005,
amounts of $0.3 million (2004: $0.1 m1111on 2003: $0.2 million) were paid to Dr. Fyfe for the settlement of U.K.

taxes. There was no liability due to or fron

n him as of December 31, 2005.

Under the terms of Dr. Fyfe’s employment contract, he will become entitled to a pension of $0.5 million,
payable in five equal installments after h1s retirement from the company. No payment will be made if he leaves

J

the Company prior to the end of his contract without good reason or if his contract is terminated for cause.

‘\

Payment.of each annual installment will be deferred if in any year the company’s EBITDA is negative and there

has been no change of control event. The full outstanding sum will become immediately payable to Dr. Fyfe's

estate in the event of his death. This liabili
liability at December 31, 2005 was $0.4 m

ity is being accrued over the period of his employment contract—the

illion.
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Each of Kelso and Hillman is party to a separate consulting agreement with the Company pursuant to which
they agree to provide such specific consulting services as the Company may request and the Company agrees to
indemnify them from and against any claims, losses and expenses they may incur in connection with their
investment in it or their provision of services to the Company under these agreements or their being a controlling
person of the Company, except as may be finally judicially determined to result from gross negligence or
intentional misconduct on their part. Under the terms of each of these agreements, if Kelso or Hillman provides
consulting services specifically requested by the Company out of the ordinary course of business to it, the .
Company and Kelso or Hillman, as applicable, will negotiate a mutually acceptable advisory fee. The term of the
Company’s consulting agreements with Kelso and Hillman end on the date on which, respectively, Kelso (and its
affiliates) and Hillman (and its affiliates) cease to own any shares of the Company’s common stock. In
connection with these agreements, Kelso and Hillman may receive consulting fees from the Company and are
entitled to receive reimbursement of certain out-of-pocket fees and expenses incurred in connection with their
investments in the Company. No such consulting fees have been paid to Kelso or Hillman. The Company paid
Kelso expense reimbursements in the aggregate of $8 thousand, $20 thousand and $67 thousand respectively, for
2005, 2004 and 2003. The Company paid Hillman expense reimbursements in the aggregate of zero, zero and
$34 thousand respectively, for 2005, 2004 and 2003.

16. Subsequent Events

The Company iseued 149,400 stock options to employees, other than executive officers, in January-2006 o
with an-exercise price of $8.21, the then fair market value of the Company’s common stock.

In February 2006, Litrex reached an agreement in relation to the potential repayment of a grant for which
the Company would ultimately have been liable. This potential liability is described in Note 13. Litrex will not
now be required to repay this grant. The Company has agreed to pay $0.1 million to Litrex as a contribution to
Litrex’s costs associated with this agreement and this amount is mcluded in “Accounts payable and accrued
expenses” in the December 31, 2005 balance sheet.
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17. Quarterly Data (Unaudited)

Operating revenues

Grossprofit ......... ... ol
Loss fromoperations .............,.. i,
Net (loss)/profit ......... T o

Net (loss)/profit per common share, basic alnd diluted .......

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding

Operating revenues . ................. e
Grossprofit ............. ... ...

Loss from operations R REETTRETS ILTERPTTERRRRRRY
Net loss before cumulative effect of accounting change
Netloss...........................l ................

Net loss per share before cumulative effect
change .......... ... ... ol R
Net loss per common share, basic and dﬂung

Weighted average number of common shm%es outstanding . ...

Operating revenues
Grossprofit .......................:
Loss from operations
Net loss

Net loss per common share attributable to common
shareholders, basic and diluted . ... ... ‘

Weighted average number of common shar{es outstanding .. ..

l
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Quarter. . Quarter Quarter Quarter
ended * ended " ended ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2005 2005 2005 - 2005
] . (in thousands)
$ 1,561 $ 2672 $6565  $ 7295
1,085 2,011 2,891 2,381
© (7,315 . (6,926) ©(7,433) (5,093)
©(8,669). . (6,709) o (8,591) 10,154
$ (0.44)' $°(0:34) ~ $ (044) $ 051
.. 19485 19485 19485 19,713
. duaﬁer ) Qua;'ter Quarter Quarter
" ended ended ended ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2004 2004 2004 2004
(in thousands) o
$ 1,316 $ 2,558 $ 1,645 $ 7,767
1,077 2,293 932, 6,990
(5,890) (3,987) (6,868) (6,475)
(5,510) (3,857 (7,505) (5,713)
(17,710) (3,857) (7,505) (5,713)
$ 075 $ (0.57) $ (0.56) $ 4.29)
$ (198 $ (0.57) $ (0.56) $ (4.29)
9,822 9,822 9,822 10,695
Quarter Quarter = Quarter Quarter
ended ended - ended ended
March 31, June30, September30, December 31,
2003 2003 2003 2003
(in thousands)
$ 516 $3415 $ 4,688 $ 2,061
271 2,776 4,301 1,805
9,060) (5,526) (3,078) (2,815)
(9,039) (5,994) (3,833) (3,911
$ (1.08) $ (0.80) $ (0.58) $ (0.56)
9,743 9,710 9,710 9,710




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Litrex Corporation

- In our opinion, the statements of operations, of stockholders’ equity and of cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2003 (not presented separately herein) present fairly, in all material respects, the results of
operations of Litrex Corporation and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2003 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit of these statements in accordance with the standards of
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis; evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
and-evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

/s/  PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, Caiifornia
July 19, 2004
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Safe Harbor Statement Under the Private

Statements contained herein that are not historical facts are “forward-looking statements” and their presence may
be indicated by words such as “believe,] “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,” “estimate,” “seek,

“may,” as well as the negative thereof and
affecting us and our subsidiaries will be
uncertainties that could cause actual resu
in such forward-looking statements are |

Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995:

LIS

will” and
similar expressions. There can be no assurance that future developments
those anticipated by our management. Among the factors, risks and
ts to differ, possibly materially, from expectations or estimates reflected
the following: the outcomes of our ongoing and future research and

development activities, as well as those of our licensees; our ability to form and continue strategic relationships
with manufacturers of P-OLED materials and displays; the successful commercialization of products that include
our P-OLED technology by our hcensees the willingness of our manufacturers and licensees to continue to
develop, manufacture and sell commerC|a| products integrating our technology; the future demand for products

using our P-OLED technology; the compa
ability to maintain and improve our comp
adequacy of protections afforded to us by
patents; our ability to obtain, expand and
intellectual property; and our future capltal

;atlve advantages and disadvantages of any competing technologies; our
etitive position following the expiration of our fundamental patents; the
the patents that we own or license and the cost to us of enforcing these
maintain patent protection in the future and to protect our unpatentable
requirements and our ability to obtain additional financing when needed.

Readers should also consider the addmonal factors described under the caption “Risk Factors” in Item 1A of Part |
of our 10-K and 10-Q reports filed with the SEC. Investors should not place undue reliance on such forward-looking

statements and we undertake no obhgatlo
information, future events or otherwise.

n to update any forward-locking statements, whether as a result of new
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